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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

RAFHA  BXEZBMEN

“Acting in Concert Parties”
[—HiTEHAL]

"AGM"

[RRBFRE ]

“Articles of Association”
[RAIER]

"associate(s)”

Rk YN

“Beijing OriginWater”

[ b B KR ]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
==

“Chairman”

[BEFK]

“Company”, “our Company” or
“Yunnan Water”

[ARRA [ EmKE]

“connected person(s)”
[BAEAL]

“controlling shareholder(s)”
[ 22 B A R

“Corporate Governance Code”

[ Ea~Fal]
“Director(s)”

[E%]

TFHARAGUTES

Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong

ReERE BEERESXE  TEEE

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held before 30 June 2023
ARARBER T =FNA=-THAMBTIRRBFARE

the articles of association of the Company

ARAFKRAER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HA MBI T ZE 88

Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (3t 5 E R B i% {5 5 BR 2 &), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300070)

IERBKEEEROMER AT  RPBEKIHRODBERAF ERODEFINEHR S LT
(B& 2 L 5%  300070)

the board of directors of the Company
RARMEES

the Chairman of the Company

BER

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (EmM/KEEERMD B R A F), a joint stock limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

EMAKBERERMERLAA RABEMAIHORNDAER AR  EHRAEB TR EH
(B 7 R 5% - 6839)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
HA MR TZEA0EE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
HA MR FZA R E

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules

FHRBISE T E R EERTARMEE RS
the director(s) of our Company

KRARES
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Definitions

“Domestic Share(s)”

Nak-9d
"ESG"
[ESG]

"ESG Guide”

[ESG#E 5l |

“Group” or “our Group”

[R&EE ]

“H Share(s)"”

THE
“HKS "
el

“HKFRS"

[ & B HmE 2R

“Hong Kong”
(&%
“Listing Rules”
[EmRA

“Model Code”

M2 257 Al

"PRC” or “China”

[ |

"Reporting Period”
[ & 5 |

“"RMB"

[AR®]

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of the
Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

NARBRBIAIER RN ARTDRATFREEARK1.00THE HTEBR
environmental, social, and governance
REHEgRER

the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules

RIE -HERERMEES - 0 EHRBIKEE27
the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
AR A RETE KB A A

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of the
Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EHRXMERLTHOARAARBRAPETREEARE1.00TH B EHTEBR
Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BBEEERBT

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting Standard Board

ERVMBHEEL BEEEGHEALNEEGHEINZE@RMNRE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBFNTR R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B S FTRE 25 AR B

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules

FHRBMESETAEN LT ETAEFETES R INFLESFR

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report only, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

FEARANE  EAREME - TEESE PEARANMBRASITERE R A E
the 12-month period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

H-_E - —Ff—A-HARE-_FT-_—_F+-_A=t+—BLt+-_@MAHH

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEEEERARE
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Definitions

“SFO" the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
[FHKBAEER] BEREEPEST1ECEF RBEERDD

“Share(s)” the H Share(s) and/or the Domestic Share(s)

R n | HB& K23k A& R

“Shareholder(s)” the holder(s) of the Share(s)

[ARER | S SESE=DN

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ B 22 Py | ERBARXHMBRAF

“subsidiary(ies)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

[P 88 2 7 ] HA EmHRIE T ZE 88

“Supervisor(s)"” supervisor(s) of the Company

= RRAIEESE

“Supervisory Committee” the supervisory committee of the Company

[BEEZER RARANEEEES

“Undertaking Shareholders” namely YHTH, YEPI and Beijing OriginWater

[ A R EEERER  ZEZERAEE R REBKR

“YHTH" Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (Ef & EREREBGRE Q)

(formerly known as Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.* (Z & ¥ 1 2 &%
EEBHEPPRAF])), alimited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole shareholder of
YEPI

[EMREIKEE] EHERIREREEERAR(IREHEARTERREEBARAA) RABKINAR
BEERARREEZERAEEBOBE KR

“YEPI" Yunnan Green Environmental Protection Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (EMAHKECREAEEXEE
AR 2 A (formerly known as Yunnan Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd (2@ & KK EE R
& B MR A F]), alimited liability company incorporated in the PRC and the Company’s controlling
shareholder

[EmEgERIREE] EHEASERREXESEERAANEEEZCEREEEEREBRAR) RABEGMH
RIMBREEAARARRZERRKRRE

%" per cent

[% ] ANt

* For identification purposes only

ol EH#HF
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Financial Highlights

The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

EFZ@MAETH N INPHHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+-BHLEE

2022 2021 Change
—=E—-— —E - —F B

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR AREFTT
Revenue Iz 3,789,322 5,280,743 -28.2%
Gross profit EH 753,848 1,316,564 -42.7%
Loss before income tax FriSfiaEE (982,359) (1,030,933) -4.7%

EBITDAMt) BAE - BIE - ER

B85 A 2 R ) 1,177,457 1,158,649 1.6%
Loss for the year FANBIE (1,158,349) (1,055,254) 9.8%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) BRESEHRE(%) -25.81% -13.89% N/A 7 iE A
Loss per share (RMB) sREBEBR(ARE D) (0.889) (0.840) 5.8%

Note: EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of finance cost — net, income tax,
depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s audited loss attributable to ordinary
Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,060 million (for the year ended
31 December 2021: approximately RMB1,002 million).

Loss per share for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB0.889 per
share (for the year ended 31 December 2021: loss per share approximately
RMBO0.840 per share), the calculation of such basic loss per share amount is
based on the loss attributable to ordinary Shareholders of the Company, and
the weighted average number of Shares of approximately of 1,193,213,457
(2021: 1,193,213,457) shares in issue during the Reporting Period.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021: nil). The
Company did not declare or pay any interim dividend or special dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The proposed final dividends shall be subject to the Shareholders’ review and
approval at the AGM.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Since the 18th CPC National Congress put forward the overall layout of “five-
in-one” in the new era, the construction of ecological civilization has received
unprecedented attention. In October 2022, the 20th CPC National Congress
emphasized once again the ecological and environmental protection work.
The report of the 20th CPC National Congress includes 15 chapters, and the
ecological and environmental protection forms an independent chapter. Chapter
X of the report, with the title of “Promoting Green Development and Promoting
Harmonious Coexistence between Human and Nature”, emphasizes the important
role of environmental protection work in the future development. The goal
of ecological and environmental development in the report of the 20th CPC
National Congress is the continuation and upgrading of the previously issued
policies. In terms of pollution control, from “focusing on solving prominent
environmental problems” to “promoting environmental pollution prevention
and control in depth”, the overall goal is defined as “blue sky, blue water and
clean land defense war”, and the construction of environmental infrastructure
is strengthened. In terms of ecological protection, the goal is emphasized
to “improve the diversity, stability and sustainability of the ecosystem”. At
the same time, the report of the 20th CPC National Congress highlights
the promotion of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” and “accelerating
the green transformation of development mode”. Collaborating “pollution
reduction” and “carbon reduction”, accelerating green transformation, promoting
energy conservation and emission reduction, and strengthening ecological and
environmental protection are the key points of future environmental protection

work.

On 24 January 2022, the State Council issued the Notice on Printing and
Distributing the Comprehensive Work Plan for Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction during the “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan” ( (B ENZ [+POH | E58E
PR A TEH Z8IBAN) ), which pointed out that by vigorously promoting energy
conservation and emission reduction, the state should accelerate the establishment
and improvement of the green and low-carbon cycle development economic
system, achieve the synergy in energy conservation, carbon reduction and pollution
reduction, and continuously improve the ecological and environmental quality.
On 10 June 2022, seven ministries and commissions jointly issued the Notice
on Printing and Distributing the “Implementation Plan for Synergistic Efficiency
of Pollution Reduction and Carbon Reduction” ( BARENEE LS Ak 17 R 38 2K
EiEHE) KBA) ), pointing out that in the face of the new situation, new
tasks and new requirements of the construction of ecological civilization, we
must base ourselves on reality, follow the inherent laws of pollution and carbon
reduction, make full use of the existing ecological and environmental system to
promote low-carbon development, innovate policies and measures, optimize the
governance routes, and promote the synergy in pollution and carbon reduction.
In addition to the above two documents, in 2022, various national authorities

EEE RS

TEBE
BENTNAKRIEHTHERIEL 81K
BEMBIAK - ARXAZRTHEXE AR
EWMER —FT-—_F+H BN -+KX]
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

issued comprehensive guidance documents in the field of ecological environment
for many times, constantly emphasizing the synergistic development of “pollution
and carbon reduction”, and put forward specific development requirements and
development directions for water, solid waste, gas, soil and other fields.

From the perspective of water policy, based on the concept of the “synergy
of pollution and carbon reduction” and “energy conservation and emission
reduction” under the “dual carbon” goal, the pollution control policy in the water
industry combines wastewater treatment with recycling use of water and resource
reuse of wastewater; at the same time, the policy document emphasizes the
realization of the “synergy of pollution reduction and carbon reduction” through
the upgrading of water treatment equipment, treatment technology and process.

From the perspective of solid waste policy, the policy document focuses on the
construction of wasteless cities, and the fields of recycling use and resource
reuse. The policy in the field of “wasteless city” focuses on the front-end garbage
collection, storage and transportation and other sanitation services as well as
the back-end garbage treatment. Corresponding to the green transformation
advocated by the “dual carbon” goal, while achieving the reduction of waste
treatment, the industry should pay attention to the realization of energy
conservation, emission reduction, and recycling and regeneration through
recycling use, comprehensive use and resource reuse; at the same time, garbage
incineration power generation has been promoted as a renewable energy
utilization mode in the green transformation of energy while realizing reduction

and resource reuse.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

In 2022, subject to the complex economic situation at home and abroad, the
environmental protection enterprises generally encountered difficulties, and the
supply of the environmental protection market has been reduced due to the
continuous recurrence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The downward pressure
on the economy has continued to mount, and various risks and challenges
has significantly increased. Faced with huge challenges and severe tests, the
Company has continued to promote multi-channel relief through strengthening the
management of operation projects, continuously promoting technology research
and development, actively trying out new business projects and asset disposal, and
steadily pushed forward the work of deepening reform, operation management

and technology innovation.

In terms of operating projects, the Company has further strengthened the
construction of the operation management system, and effectively improved the
quality of the Company’s stock assets and its ability to create efficiency through
the ways and means of adjusting water prices, collecting and clearing debts,
upgrading and renovating, energy saving and consumption reduction as well as
strict incentives and penalties. At the same time, the Company has strengthened
the accounting and analysis of the operating costs of all operating projects and
actively sought appropriate and reasonable room for cost control, so that the
increase of management expenses and operating expenses could be reasonably
controlled.

Relying on the two-wheel model of “technology as the main driver and capital
as the supplementary driver (% 1li 2 £ 58), &€ /EIEE))", the Company has
kept an eye on the new trends and demands of the industry development, and
vigorously promoted technology research and development in conjunction with
the Company’s development needs. In order to solve the problem that organic
solid waste in small cities, counties and villages is too various, fewer and scattered
to use traditional methods, such as incineration, landfill and composting, for
independent treatment, the Company has independently developed the low-
temperature adiabatic pyrolysis and carbonization technology of organic solid
waste, actively carried out the protection of intellectual property rights, and
promoted the establishment of relevant standards and regulations. As for the
intelligent environmental system platform, the Company has realized a series
of functions such as data collection and display of project operation through
continuous debugging and updating of technical support, and the system
functions have the conditions for national promotion.

In terms of new business, in order to actively respond to the national carbon
emission reduction policy, the Company has combined with its own operating
conditions to actively try to apply photovoltaic power generation in its operating
projects. Secondly, in view of the increasingly urgent demand for recycling of
used power batteries in the rapidly developing new energy vehicle industry, we
have based on the deep understanding of the new energy industry and solid

EEE RS
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

waste treatment industry to actively explore the provision of a full set of industrial
solutions and core equipment for the new energy battery recycling industry, so as
to enhance the value of material recycling.

In order to further replenish working capital and improve liquidity of the
Company, the Company has actively carried out the asset disposal in 2022. Since
early 2022, the equity disposal of four asset packages through public tender has
been completed by the Company.

In 2023, the Company will continue to make every effort to accelerate the
progress of project construction, and focus on the project progress of the
annual planned completion projects to ensure that the projects are completed
according to the completion plan as scheduled for preliminary inspection, so
as to create conditions for early commissioning and production. At the same
time, the Company will focus on the improvement of the quality and efficiency
of the operation of the Company, continue to lean the management level
and promote energy saving and consumption reduction. Combined with the
Company’s production and operation management needs, we will further improve
the operation management system, refine the operation management process
and standardize the operation management operation. Through effectively
integrating operation resources, we will give full play to the advantages of
localized management, and focus on identifying operational priorities and solving
operational difficulties to improve the overall level of operational management
by establishing a team of operational management experts. Combined with
the intelligent environment project, we will give priority to the construction of
production management information system to promote the informatization and
standardization of daily operation of projects, and realize information sharing and
timely data analysis to improve operational management efficiency.

In the future, the Company will continue to focus on its strategic positioning as
an “urban environmental protection integrated services provider (M IRELRE
BR# /)" and combine the national policies of “Wasteless City (£ M)” and
“carbon emission peak, carbon neutrality (xZI& e fix/F1)” to invest in quality
projects, strengthen the domestic market and continuously expand international
markets. Firstly, we will prioritize the construction of areas closely related to
the strategic development plan and core business of the enterprise, so as to
quickly realize the business value of intelligent environmental system construction,
realize the business value of information technology resource pooling, establish
a sharing system, carry out business copy of similar projects in various regions,
and jointly achieve business objectives to achieve cost reduction and efficiency.
Secondly, we will continue to improve the standardization of adiabatic pyrolysis
and carbonization technology of organic solid waste, and realize the application
of related equipment as soon as possible. Thirdly, we will accelerate our business
in new industries, such as photovoltaic power generation and recycling of used
power batteries, to further broaden our business scope and further enhance our
core competitiveness, so as to contribute to the development of “Wasteless City”
and “carbon emission peak, carbon neutrality”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in China. The Group mainly adopts the Build-
Operate-Transfer (“"BOT"), Build-Own-Operate (“BOO"), Transfer-Operate-
Transfer (“TOT"), Transfer-Own-Operate (“TOO"), Build and Transfer (“BT"),
Engineering-Procurement-Construction (“EPC"), Rehabilitate-Operate-Transfer
("ROT"), Operation and Maintenance (“O&M") and licensed operation models to
provide customized and integrated turnkey solutions for water supply, wastewater
treatment and solid waste treatment as well as system integration services of core
technologies to customers. The Group's businesses are carried out in the PRC and
the Southeast Asian countries, the Group’s principal businesses comprise five major
segments, namely, wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment,

construction and sales of equipment and others.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s water related projects (including the
following wastewater treatment projects, water supply projects and all water
related projects under other business segments) had the total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 6,098,175 tonnes. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group's solid waste treatment related projects (including the following solid waste
treatment projects and all solid waste treatment related projects under other
business segments) had the total annual treatment capacity of approximately
4,081,900 tonnes.

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 128 concession wastewater
treatment projects, including 7 BOO projects, 65 BOT projects, 2 TOO projects,
25 TOT projects, 1 ROT project and 28 municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects, with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 3,263,375
tonnes, representing a reduction of 4 BOT projects and 2 TOT projects year-on-
year, and a decrease in the daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately
290,000 tonnes due to asset disposal as compared with the year ended 31
December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, 105 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 2,679,250 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
(including 6 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects with a
total daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 215,200 tonnes),
representing an addition of 1 BOT project, 2 BOO projects and 2 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects which commenced operation
and a reduction of 4 BOT projects and 2 TOT projects year-on-year due to
asset disposal as compared with the year ended 31 December 2021. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s average wastewater treatment utilisation rate was
approximately 79.7%, and the average unit charge of wastewater treatment was
approximately RMB1.60 per tonne.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

As at 31 December 2022, 23 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 584,125 tonnes had not commenced commercial
operation (including 22 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 580,100 tonnes), representing
1 BOT project, 2 BOO projects and 2 municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects under construction converted to operation as compared with
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Water Supply Projects

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 66 concession water supply
projects with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 2,429,100 tonnes,
including 15 BOO projects, 34 BOT projects, 11 TOT projects and 6 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects, representing a reduction of
1 BOT project year-on-year, and a decrease in total daily treatment capacity
of approximately 20,000 tonnes due to asset disposal as compared with 31
December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, 50 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 1,625,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
(including 1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project with a total
daily treatment capacity of approximately 30,000 tonnes), representing an addition
of 1 BOO project and 1 TOT project, and a reduction of 1 BOT project year-
on-year due to asset disposal as compared with 31 December 2021. During the
Reporting Period, affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group’s water supply
for non-residents and special industries declined, the Group’s average water supply
utilisation rate was approximately 60.3%, and the average unit charge of water
supply was approximately RMB2.33 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2022, 16 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 804,100 tonnes had not commenced commercial
operation (including 5 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 389,700 tonnes), representing
a reduction of 1 BOO project and 1 TOT project under construction as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Solid Waste Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 24 solid waste treatment projects
with total annual treatment capacity of approximately 4,081,900 tonnes, 13 of
which with an annual treatment capacity of approximately 2,186,600 tonnes
had commenced commercial operation ((including 1 municipal environment
comprehensive treatment project with an annual treatment capacity of
approximately 219,000 tonnes); 11 of them with an annual treatment capacity
of approximately 1,895,300 tonnes were under construction (including 2
municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects with the total annual
treatment capacity of approximately 900,800 tonnes). The treatment capacity
remained generally stable as compared with 31 December 2021. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s average solid waste treatment utilisation rate was
approximately 74.02%.

Construction and Sales of Equipment

The Group’s construction and sales of equipment segment comprises BT projects,
EPC projects and sales of equipment. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a
total of 11 BT projects, which were either under construction and/or completed,
among which revenue of 10 BT projects was recognised during the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 13 EPC projects.

The Group engages in the production, sales and installation of equipment for
wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment and other infrastructure
facilities. The major category of water related equipment in the Group's
production is membrane products. Most of the membrane products are produced
by the own plant of the Group.

Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M projects for
wastewater treatment, water supply, and solid waste treatment facilities owned
by third parties as well as provision of technical and consultancy services in
relation to environmental protection. As at 31 December 2022, the Group was
providing relevant operational services for 29 O&M projects, which remained stable
as compared with 31 December 2021. These projects included 28 wastewater
treatment projects with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 400,700
tonnes (including the capacity of wastewater treatment projects adopting O&M
model within municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects), and 1

water supply project with daily treatment capacity of approximately 5,000 tonnes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB3,789.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 28.2% compared
with the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group realized a net loss of
approximately RMB1,158.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
9.8% compared with the year ended 31 December 2021. Loss attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB1,060.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 5.8% as compared with 31 December
2021. Loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB0.889.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group decreased from approximately RMB5,280.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB3,789.3 million for the
Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 28.2%.

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from wastewater
treatment decreased from approximately RMB3,387.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB2,289.3 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from water supply decreased by approximately 28.4% from approximately
RMB921.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB660.2 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from solid waste treatment
decreased by approximately 5.0% from RMB754.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB716.9 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from construction and sales of equipment decreased by approximately
66.3% from approximately RMB137.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB46.2 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from
other business decreased from approximately RMB79.8 million for the year ended

31 December 2021 to approximately RMB76.7 million for the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the wastewater treatment segment was mainly
attributable to the decrease in construction revenue of the existing wastewater

treatment projects under construction during the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the water supply segment was mainly attributable
to the decrease in construction revenue of the existing water supply projects
under construction and operating revenue from water supply service projects
during the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the solid waste treatment segment was mainly
attributable to the decrease in revenue from hazardous waste treatment in solid
waste projects during the Reporting Period, resulting in a decrease in operating

revenue from solid waste.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The decrease in revenue from the construction and sales of equipment segment
was mainly attributable to the decrease in scale of EPC construction services and
equipment sales and BT construction services during the Reporting Period.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB3,035.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 23.4% as compared
with approximately RMB3,964.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in cost for construction which
was in line with the decrease in construction revenue of the existing wastewater
treatment projects and water supply projects under construction during the
construction period.

Gross Profit Margin

During the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
19.89%, representing a decrease of approximately 5.04% as compared to
approximately 24.93% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other Income

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income of approximately
RMB1,358.7 million as compared with approximately RMB54.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase of approximately 2,411.5%.
The increase in other income was mainly due to the increase in income from debt
restructuring.

Other Gains — net

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net losses of approximately
RMB95.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB259.6 million
as compared with a net gains of approximately RMB164.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The change in other gains was mainly due to a profit
of RMB42.5 million from the disposal of an associate and a profit of RMB170.2
million from fair value changes in last year, while a net loss of RMB28.4 million
was generated from the sale of investment in subsidiary company and a net
loss of RMB11.8 million was generated from the withdrawal of a solid waste

management license project in the current year.

Selling Expenses

During the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB42.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB6.4 million or
13.2% as compared with approximately RMB48.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by RMB378.6 million from
approximately RMB650.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB1,029.3 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of approximately 58.2%. The increase in administrative expenses was
primarily due to the provision for impairment of long-term assets in the current
period.

Finance Costs — net

Net finance costs decreased by RMB194.1 million from approximately RMB1,526.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB1,332.2
million for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 12.7%.
The decrease in net finance costs was primarily due to the decrease in borrowing
rates during the Reporting Period, resulting in a decrease in borrowing costs.

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for the Reporting Period
was approximately 4.42% per annum, representing a decrease compared with
approximately 5.73% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Loss Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded loss before income tax
of approximately RMB982.4 million for the Reporting Period, representing a
decrease of approximately 4.7% as compared with the loss before income tax
of approximately RMB1,030.9 million recorded for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased by RMB151.7 million from approximately RMB24.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB176.0 million
for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 624.3%.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in the amount of tax losses not
recognised by the Group as deferred income tax assets.

Loss for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, loss for the Reporting Period increased by
approximately RMB103.0 million from the loss of approximately RMB1,055.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to the loss of approximately
RMB1,158.3 million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of

approximately 9.8%.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group’s receivables under service concession arrangements increased by
approximately RMB1,049.0 million from approximately RMB6,493.1 million as
at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB7,542.1 million as at 31 December
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2022, representing an increase of approximately 16.2%. Such increase was due
to a number of concession projects commenced commercial operation during the
Reporting Period.

Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group's trade and other receivables and prepayments decreased by
approximately RMB637.3 million from approximately RMB8,951.0 million as at 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB8,313.7 million as at 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of approximately 7.1%. Such decrease was mainly due to
the increase in the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables in the
current period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents increased by approximately RMB172.2
million from approximately RMB428.4 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB600.6 million as at 31 December 2022, representing an
increase of approximately 40.2%. Such increase was mainly due to a decrease in
restricted cash and an increase in bank deposits during the Reporting Period as
compared with last year.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group’s trade and other payables increased by approximately RMB162.3
million from approximately RMB8,807.8 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB8,970.1 million as at 31 December 2022, representing an
increase of approximately 1.8%.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB30,132.6 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB28,655.5 million).
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had unsecured borrowings of approximately
RMB16,968.5 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB14,708.6 million),
and secured borrowings of approximately RMB13,164.1 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB13,946.9 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, borrowing of approximately RMB13,164.1 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB13,946.9 million) were secured by the Group’s
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets, right-of-
use assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total capital)
increased from approximately 78.79% as at 31 December 2021 to approximately
86.81% as at 31 December 2022. The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to

the increased scale of debt financing during the Reporting Period.
The Board will closely monitor and improve the gearing ratio of the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 6,516 employees (31 December
2021: 6,998). During the Reporting Period, staff cost was approximately RMB605.0
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: RMB666.5 million). The Group will
strive to ensure that the remuneration level of employees is in line with industry
practices and prevailing market conditions, and remunerations of employees will
be determined based on their performance. The remuneration package provided to
employees also includes basic and floating salaries, discretionary bonus and staff
benefits. The Group also provides external and internal training programs for its
employees.

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes causing any material

impact on its normal business operations.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most of the transactions being
settled in RMB, which is the functional currency of most of the group entities.
The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises from the recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group's foreign
operations is managed primarily through financing activities denominated in the
relevant foreign currencies.

The group entities are exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies
other than their functional currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars
("US$"), Euro ("EUR") and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-
functional Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit its exposure to foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring and minimizing its net foreign currency
position. Management considers the fluctuations in exchange rates between the
functional currencies of respective group entities and Non-functional Currencies in
which the group entities conduct business will not have significant effect on the
Group's financial position and results of operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

Affected by the cases of financial leasing contract dispute, some assets of the
Group were taken property preservation measures by the relevant courts from
December 2021 to May 2022. Although the Group has settled its historical
overdue borrowings, as at 31 December 2022, a lender of overdue borrowings
has taken property preservation measures through judicial procedures, and the
freezing of the Group’s 7.27% equity in Qianjiang Biochemical with a book
value of RMB348,856,000 has not yet been lifted. At present, the Company is
actively communicating with relevant financial institutions involved in the lawsuit,
seeking solutions from the professional lawyer team, hoping to reach a settlement
through mediation and ensuring the smooth implementation of relevant settlement
agreements. If the relevant settlement matters can be reached, the Company's
assets subject to preservation measures and enforcement may be unfrozen, and
such release will not have any adverse impact on the ownership of relevant assets
and the circulation of funds in the account. Therefore, the Company believes
that the property preservation and enforcement caused by relevant financial lease

contract disputes will not constitute major contingent liabilities of the Group.

From January to March 2023, the aforementioned lender has released the
freeze on the 4.75% equity in Qianjiang Biochemical with a book value of
RMB228,018,000 as at 31 December 2022.

Final Dividend
The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEE ®

DT

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

On 3 November 2022, Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(“Yunnan Water (Hong Kong)”, being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) (as vendor) and Global Environment Investment (HK) Limited
("Global Environment Investment”) (as purchaser) entered into an equity
transaction agreement, pursuant to which, Yunnan Water (Hong Kong)
agreed to sell, and Global Environment Investment agreed to acquire,
100% interest in Yunshui Technology Co., Ltd.* (ZE/KEHEARAF]) at the
consideration of RMB296,259,700.

On 20 December 2022, Hyflux Utility WWT (MG) Limited (“Hyflux Utility”,
being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (as vendor) and CGN
Environmental Protection Industry Co. Ltd. (FEZIRREEBR QA
(“CGN Environmental Protection”) (as purchaser) entered into an equity
transaction agreement, pursuant to which, Hyflux Utility has agreed to sell,
and CGN Environmental Protection has agreed to acquire, 100% equity
interest in Hyflux NewSpring Waste Water Treatment (Mingguang) Co., Ltd.*
(FE5KER (B%) AMRAR]) at the consideration of RMB96,523,000.

On 28 December 2022, the Company (as vendor) and CGN Environmental
Protection Industry Co. Ltd. (FEZEREEXABRAA) (“CGN
Environmental Protection”) (as purchaser) entered into an equity
transaction agreement, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to sell,
and CGN Environmental Protection has agreed to acquire, 100% equity
interest in Lu’an Yeji Yunshui Water Investment Co., Ltd.* (REZTEERE
KKIEIREBRAR]) at the consideration of RMB87,295,900.

For details of the above-mentioned significant investment and acquisition, please

refer to the announcements published by the Company on 3 November 2022, 20
December 2022 and 28 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Subsequent Events:

On 27 February 2023, the Company (as vendor) and Beijing Enterprises
Water Group (China) Investment Limited* (At32k% (FE) REBRAA)
(“Beijing Enterprise Water”) (as purchaser) entered into (a) the Honghe
Equity Transaction Agreement, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed
to sell, and the Beijing Enterprise Water has agreed to acquire, 100% equity
interest in Honghe Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (ALAJ/KESE
EHRRAR]) at the consideration of RMB155,400,000; and (b) the Shuifu
Equity Transaction Agreement, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed
to sell, and Beijing Enterprise Water has agreed to acquire, 100% equity
interest in Shuifu Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (KEEKEEERE
ARQF]) at the consideration of RMB28,300,000.

For details of the above-mentioned subsequent events, please refer to the

announcement published by the Company on 27 February 2023.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 EFNEAEBEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Long (“Mr. Yu”), aged 51, joined the Group in June 2011, and
currently serves as an executive Director, vice chairman and the general manager
of the Company. Mr. Yu obtained a MBA degree from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2013, and is now studying as a doctor
at the School of Economics and Management at University of Chinese Academy
of Sciences. Mr. Yu has more than 18 years of experience in environmental and
water works industry, market development, project management, investment
capital management, and risk control management, and he is mainly responsible
for the overall operation and management, strategic planning and business
development of the Company. Mr. Yu was appointed as general manager of
water works division and deputy general manager of Beijing Tsinghua Novel
Environmental Protection Company Limited between July 2003 and August 2007.
Mr. Yu was appointed as project management director of Kardan Water Group
Limited* (SFf/KISEIBR R ER) between August 2007 and July 2008. Between
July 2008 and April 2009, Mr. Yu was appointed as the deputy general manager
of Ruoshi (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (BA (dtFR) EEHGR2AF]). Between
May 2009 and October 2012, Mr. Yu was appointed as the sales director and the
deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater. Between June 2011 and August
2017, Mr. Yu served as General Manager and executive Director of the Company,
and as General Manager of the Company between August 2017 and December
2018. Mr. Yu has served as an executive Director, vice chairman and General
Manager of the Company from December 2018 till now, and Mr. Yu has been
elected by the Board to act as the Acting Chairman from September 2021 till
now. In addition, Mr. Yu has been appointed as chairman or director of various
subsidiaries of our Group since January 2011.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

I

-

Mr. Zhou Zhimi (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 48, joined the Group in March 2011,
and currently serves as an executive Director and Chief Financial Controller of
the Company. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in statistics from Shanxi
University of Finance and Economics in July 1999, and obtained the title certificate
of senior accountant in March 2022. Mr. Zhou has over 22 years of experience in
corporate finance management. From July 1999 to March 2006, Mr. Zhou worked
in Yunnan Beifang Optical Electronics Group Co., Ltd.* (Efit T HBETFEE
BMRAR]); from August 2005 to March 2011, Mr. Zhou served as the deputy
director in the finance, accounting and audit department of Yunnan Yunguang
Development Co., Ltd.* (EEEXER AR F]); from March 2011 to June 2014,
Mr. Zhou successively served as the deputy manager and the manager of the
finance department of YEPI, and also acted as the chief financial controller of its
subsidiary; from June 2014 to September 2015, Mr. Zhou served as the manager
of the finance department of the Company, and also the chief financial controller
of various subsidiaries; from September 2015 to September 2021, Mr. Zhou served
as the deputy financial controller of the Company, and successively served as the
deputy general manager of its associated company and the financial controller of
Shanghai Center of the Company. From September 2021 till now, Mr. Zhou has
served as the financial controller of the Company. Mr. Zhou also serves as director
and chairman of several subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Mei Wei (“Mr. Mei”), aged 52, was awarded a bachelor’'s degree in water
conservancy and hydropower engineering construction by Gezhouba Hydropower
Engineering College (BM3H/KETIEZM) in July 1992, and became a senior
engineer in water conservancy engineering in November 2013. Mr. Mei has more
than 22 years of rich management experience in the environmental protection
industry. From May 2000 to March 2003, Mr. Mei served as the deputy director
of the Yunnan Institute of Water & Hydropower Engineering Investigation,
Design and Research (£ & KFI7KE &Rl ZEHATEL). From March 2003 to May
2008, Mr. Mei successively served as the deputy dean and dean of the Water
Conservancy Branch of Yunnan Institute of Water & Hydropower Engineering
Investigation, Design and Research (7&K FI7KE #)BIRR 5T T B 2K ) 2 B).
From May 2008 to June 2009, Mr. Mei served as the executive deputy dean
of Niulanjiang Branch of Yunnan Institute of Water & Hydropower Engineering
Investigation, Design and Research (ZF& KFIZKE &R R FTIRAE T HBR).
From June 2009 to January 2022, Mr. Mei successively served as the deputy dean,
executive deputy dean and dean of Yunnan Institute of Water & Hydropower
Engineering Investigation, Design and Research. Since January 2022, Mr. Mei has
served as the secretary of the Party Committee and chairman of Yunnan Green
Environmental Protection Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (EFASBREEZEERR
A 7)), a controlling shareholder of the Company.
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55 EFNEAEBEAER

Mr. Dai Richeng (“Mr. Dai”), aged 58, joined the Group in October 2020, and
currently serves as a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Dai holds a
master’'s degree in environmental engineering from the Department of Chemical
Engineering in Nanjing University of Science and Technology and a doctora
degree in environmental engineering of the Department of Environmental
Engineering from Tsinghua University. Mr. Dai has extensive experience for about
30 years in the water treatment industry. He was an engineer at the Water
Pollution Research Office of the Quan Jun Environmental Science Research Centre*
(EERIBRIEMAEPOKTRIARE) and later acted as a senior engineer in the
China Water Pollution Research Centre* (FFB/KS5ZHITH L), From 1998 to
2010, Mr. Dai acted as the general manager and senior engineer in a subsidiary
principally engaged in wastewater treatment of Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (/&
ZEEFRHBABMRAE]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 600100). From 2010 to 2012, he was the vice-president and senior engineer
of Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited (JLIZ/KISEEBR A &) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 371). Mr. Dai has
been the general manager of Beijing OriginWater from October 2012 to April
2016, has been the director of Beijing OriginWater from April 2014 to September
2020 and has been the general manager and executive general manager of
Beijing OriginWater since March 2018; Mr. Dai was the executive Director and
vicechairman of the Company from June 2016 to August 2018, and the non-
executive Director of the Company from August 2018 to December 2018, and
from December 2018 till now, he has been the non-executive Director of the
Company.

26 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A &l Annual Report 2022 4 [& i &

BAREETHEE]D 58 WZT=ZF
FTAMAXRER  BRETEAARERTE
EoHLEESHRBRIABLETRREIRE
HETEBEITRFERBRRIBERERT
BEETEE 246 - S ERKEEITE
BEAN=ZTFHNEELR HERE2EFERR
REmEh L5 LMESEME IR &
BRPEKFLEREROEERRIIRAD -
BEER—NMANFE-_Z—ZFHME - B
BERTBROBERAR(REEESFR ST L
MERAAE - RGN 600100) A5 KERE A
THMBAREEAEERS A TIRA o &
RZB—TFE-FT—ZFHRE - RIEEK
BEEBERAA (RBRFAERLTHAF -
RGOSR 371N EEIN R R ITIEAM -
BAEEEa T —F+AE=-ZT - F0A
HE - EERILEREKRELRE R-_FT—N0
FOAZ-_Z-_TFNAHME  EEIERE
KEESE RZT-—N\F=ZARES  EF
I RBEKRBLIE PITHEKLE S BE4ER
CE-REXRNAEZZE-NFNAELXRQT
HITEE BEER —Z—-N\ENAEC
E—N\F+ZAFEAQBERTESE N =
T-NF+ZAES  HEALERBEARARFFE
WITESE o



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Chen Yong (“Mr. Chen”), aged 49, joined the Group in June 2019, and
currently serves as a non-executive Director of the Company. He is a postgraduate
and senior accountant. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’'s degree in computer
science from Xinjiang University (¥7@A2) in July 1999 and a master’s degree
in business administration from Xinjiang University of Finance and Economics in
June 2009. Mr. Chen has over 26 years of extensive experience in accounting
and management. From February 1992 to July 2008, Mr. Chen worked for
CNPC Xinjiang Sales Company* (F Bl /A 5845 E 2 7)) and served as a Deputy
Director of the Finance Department and a Director of the Corporate Management
Department. Since September 2010, Mr. Chen has been the General Manager of
the Equity Investment Department of Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.* (Em{ELBRET
‘A \]), the General Manager of the Equity Investment Department of CNPC Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (F & EEE AR ARF]), the Managing Director of Ningbo
Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (%)% E
BELREETEAENLE (BRA%) ) and an Authorised Representative of the
Executive Partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity Investment Center (Limited
Partnership)* (E&{z EAZRERESR L (BRAF) ). In addition, Mr. Chen has
been a supervisor of Shandong International Trust Co., Ltd.* (IIERABRELR
BB 7F]) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1697) since September 2014. He has been a director of Tianjin Climate
Exchange Co., Ltd. (RIEHFHIERZ ZPMBMR A A since December 2015. He has
been a director of Jiemian (Shanghai) Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (@ (Lt
8) MBI AR AR since July 2016, and a director of Beijing Wuerzhilu
Technology Co., Ltd.* b RE = ZIREHEBBRAF]) since April 2017, and a
director of Beijing Weiche Technology Co., Ltd* (At REHERIFER A F) since
May 2017. Mr. Chen has been a director of Shandong Provincial Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (LRESHMEEERRHERQE) since July 2018, the
vice chairman of Beijing Kunlun Zhihui Technology Co., Ltd.* (It RE@mBERTHE
BR/AF]) since February 2018, and from June 2019 till now, he has been the non-
executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. Liu Hui (“Mr. Liu”), aged 44, joined the Group in 2021,
serves as a non-executive Director and deputy general manager of the Company.

and currently

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in medical insurance from Nanjing Railway
Medical College in August 1999 and a master’s degree in political economics
from Yunnan University in July 2008. Mr. Liu has over 22 years of extensive
experience in corporate financial management. From August 1999 to September
2005, Mr. Liu acted as an assistant economist in the Third People’s Hospital of
(EEEE = ARER), from July 2008 to January 2011, Mr. Liu
worked in the accounting department of the Rural Credit Cooperative Union of

Yunnan Province*

Wuhua District, Kunming City; from January 2011 to August 2013, Mr. Liu served
as the business supervisor in the financial management department of Yunnan
(EHERTRERRESEERA

Al); from August 2013 to September 2014, Mr. Liu served as the chief financial
officer of Yunnan Urban Investment and Venture Capital Co., Ltd.* (EfEH %Al
¥ EAFBR AR, from September 2014 to August 2016, Mr. Liu worked as a
business supervisor in the financial management center of Yunnan Metropolitan
from August 2016 to November 2020, Mr.
Liu worked as a deputy general manager of the financial management center
from June 2019 to

Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.*

Construction Investment Co., Ltd.;

of Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.;
December 2019, Mr. Liu concurrently served as the chief financial officer of
Chengdu Global Century Convention & Exhibition Tourism Group Co., Ltd.* (BX#D
R RIREEEBBR A A]); and from November 2020 to 25 February 2023,
Mr. Liu has acted as the deputy general manager of the financial management
center of YHTH. Since June 2021,
the Company. From 29 March 2023 till now, Mr. Liu has been the deputy general

Mr. Liu has been the non-executive Director of

manager of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (“Mr. Liu”), aged 50, joined the Group in June 2018,
and currently serves as an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting and a master’'s degree in
accounting from RMIT University of Australia in 1996 and 2002, respectively. He
subsequently obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Deakin
University of Australia in 2004. Mr. Liu has more than 21 years of experience
in accounting, auditing and management and is a qualified accountant of CPA
Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liu has
worked at KPMG since 1996 as a manager, senior manager and supervisor.
From 1996 to 1999, he worked in the audit department of the Hong Kong
office of KPMG. From 1999 to 2010, he worked in the financial advisory service
department of the Guangzhou office and Shenzhen office of KPMG. From
October 2010 to December 2013, Mr. Liu was chief financial officer and company
secretary of Leoch International Technology Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 842). From December 2013 to May
2017, Mr. Liu was executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary
of Yestock Car Rental Company Limited. Since May 2017, Mr. Liu has been the
managing director of member companies of Heungkong Financial Group. From
June 2018 till now, Mr. Liu has been the independent non-executive Director of
the Company.
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Mr. Zhong Wei (“Mr. Zhong"), aged 54, joined the Group in October 2020,
and currently serves as an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Zhong graduated from Nanjing University in 1990 majoring in applied
physics and from Southeast University in 1994 majoring in industrial economics
management. Mr. Zhong received his doctorate’s degree in 1999 from Beijing
Normal University majoring in international economics. Between September 2001
and July 2004, Mr. Zhong engaged in postdoctoral research in management
science at Tongji University. Mr. Zhong served as an assistant engineer at
Wuxi Alarm Devices Factory from July 1990 to July 1992. Mr. Zhong worked
as a lecturer at the Business School of Jiangnan University from July 1994 to
July 1997. Mr. Zhong served as an associate professor at the Business School
of Beijing Normal University between 1999 and 2003. Mr. Zhong has been a
professor of the department of Economics and Business Management of Beijing
Normal University since July 2003. Mr. Zhong has long been engaged in the field
of finance and macroeconomic research. He was selected by the PRC Ministry
of Education and the Beijing Supported by Program for New Century Excellent
Talents in University* (bRt EFTEHL S RIEZ A A 5HE]). From April 2017
till now, Mr. Zhong has served as an independent non-executive director of China
Resources Land Limited GEEEH AR F]) (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1109). From August 2020 till now, he has
served as an independent non-executive director of China Jinmao Holdings Group
Limited (FEEEIZEREBEEGR QA (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 817). From October 2020 till now, he has been the
independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Beihai (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 60, joined the Group in October 2020, and
currently serves as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Zhou Beihai obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from the Department of
Environmental Engineering at Tsinghua University (B3 AZIRIE TR K) in March
1992. Mr. Zhou carried out research on solid waste landfill technology at The
University of Fukuoka in Japan from March 1992 to March 1994, and conducted
research on photocatalysis water treatment technology at Saitama University in
Japan from January 1995 to March 1995. Mr. Zhou served as the director of
the Registration and Management Centre for the solid waste under the State
Administration of Environmental Protection (RZRIRREBEEEMELEIEF D)
from October 1996 to August 2001, and served as diplomatic officer of science
and technology at the Chinese Embassy in Japan from October 2001 to December
2004. Mr. Zhou has been appointed as the professor at the School of Energy
and Environmental Engineering of University of Science and Technology Beijing
since January 2005. From October 2020 till now, he has been the independent
nonexecutive Director of the Company.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. Long Limin (“Mr. Long”), aged 54, joined the Group in August 2017, and
currently serves as a shareholder representative Supervisor and chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company. Mr. Long obtained a bachelor’s degree in
engineering from Chongging University in 1991 and a master’s degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University in 2004. Between 1991 and 2000, Mr.
Long acted as deputy factory director of Beijing Plumbing Equipment Factory 1
(AL = TH7KBE 284 — ). Between 2000 and 2010, Mr. Long served as vice general
manager of Tsinghua Tongfang Artificial Environment Co., Ltd* (BZERF A TIRE
BR7AF]). Between 2010 and 2011, Mr. Long was the director of operation and
the manager of procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. Between 2011
and 2013, Mr. Long served as the general manager of Shandong Yashi Co., Ltd.*
(LRI AR A F]). Between 2013 and 2016, Mr. Long was the director
of enquiry and procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. From 2016 to
March 2018, Mr. Long was the director of operation planning center of Beijing
OriginWater, and he has been the director and deputy general manager of Beijing
OriginWater since March 2018.

Mr. Zhu Zhen (“Mr. Zhu"”), aged 38, joined the Group in August 2017, and
currently serves as a shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Zhu obtained his master’s degree in law from Tsinghua University in September
2009. Mr. Zhu has almost 10 years of experience in law and investment related
industries. Mr. Zhu was the deputy general manager of the auditing and legal
department of YHTH from October 2013 to September 2016, and he was
promoted as the general manager of the legal department of YHTH in September
2016. Mr. Zhu has also acted as the general manager of the leisure industry
department under the investment and management center of YHTH since 2018. In
addition, Mr. Zhu has served as director and supervisor in various subsidiaries of
YHTH since September 2014.
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Mr. Huang Yi (“Mr. Huang”), aged 47, joined the Group in June 2011, and
he is currently an employee representative supervisor, deputy general manager,
the deputy general manager of the technology and risk control center and the
general manager of the southwest region of the Company. Mr. Huang Yi obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in Computer and Application from Yunnan University in July
1998 and a master’s degree in Business Administration from Nanjing Normal
From July 2001 to November 2003, Mr. Huang Yi served
as a principal staff member of the economic and trade division in the Kunming
Resident Office of the National Audit Office. From November 2003 to May
2009, Mr. Huang Yi served successively as senior analyst in the planning and

University in July 2001.

development department, assistant to the director of the audit department and
deputy director of the discipline inspection office of Yunnan Malong Industry
Group Company Limited* (2 G REEXEBARMH AR AQF). Since August 2009,
Mr. Huang Yi has served successively as deputy manager of the investment
development department, manager of the investment development department,
deputy general manager of the market and investment centre, the deputy general
manager of the technology and risk control center and the general manager
of the southwest region of the Company. In addition, since August 2007, Mr.
Huang Yi has served as chairman or general manager of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Since 29 March 2023, Mr. Huang has been appointed as the deputy
general manager.

Ms. Tang Shuang (“Ms. Tang”), aged 39, joined the Group in January 2015,
and currently serves as the deputy manager of the business department and
an employee representative Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Tang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in management from Yunnan University in Yunnan in July 2007,
and she obtained the qualification as an accountant in May 2006 awarded by the
Ministry of Finance. Ms. Tang is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors,
managers and other management personnel of the Company to ensure compliance
with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Tang has more than 11 years of working experience
in large-scale enterprises. Ms. Tang was an employee of the Yunnan branch
office of Ping An Life Insurance Limited between July 2007 and June 2008, later
she served as the accountant for the Beijing branch office of Ping An Property
& Casualty Insurance Company of China Limited from July 2008 to March 2010.
From March 2010 to February 2015, Ms. Tang served in the business department
of Yunnan OriginWater Technology Company Limited. Ms. Tang served as the
deputy manager of the bidding and procurement department of the Company
from March 2015 to November 2015. Since December 2015, she has been the
deputy manager of the business department of the Company.
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Mr. Tan Hairui ("Mr. Tan"), aged 52, joined the Group in January 2015, and
currently serves as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Tan obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in economics from Yunnan Finance and Trade College
(now known as Yunnan University of Finance and Economics) in July 1993. Mr.
Tan obtained the certificate as a registered accountant issued by Accountant
Examination Committee of Ministry of Finance of the PRC in April 1999 and a
Lawyer's License in August 2004. Mr. Tan has more than 19 years of working
experience in large-scale enterprises, and he is mainly responsible for supervising
the Directors, managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance
with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Tan was the deputy manager of the financial
department of Yunda Science & Technology Industry Company from 2000 to
December 2001. Mr. Tan joined Yunnan Hengxin Law Firm as trainee solicitor and
lawyer from January 2002 to August 2007. Mr. Tan joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law
Firm as lawyer between September 2007 and March 2009. Mr. Tan worked in
Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm as a lawyer from March 2009 to January 2018. Since
January 2018, Mr. Tan has been working in Beijing Yingke (Kunming) Law Firm

GEmBE (BRA) EREEE) as a lawyer.

Ms. Zhang Ling (“Ms. Zhang"), aged 47, joined the Group in January 2018, and
currently serves as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Zhang is the
deputy professor and Master's tutor of law school of Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics and director of the collaborated regional resources law research
center of law school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Zhang
obtained her law degree in July 1997 at Wuhan University and master degree in
international business law and European Union law at University of Sheffield in
November 2004. Since September 2005, Ms. Zhang has been working at the law
school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics, responsible for teaching,
research and application of law. Ms. Zhang had published dozens of professional
academic papers on law, held discussions on national social topics and research
on provincial laws. She was invited by the Legal Affairs Office of the State
Council* (BT A$I3%), the Ministry of Civil Affairs* (RIK#EF) and the Ministry
(81N 325F)
regulations and legislative consultation. She has received the research award of
(EFE TS SR BMRER) twice

In addition, Ms. Zhang had approximately 21 years of solid experience in the

of Foreign Affairs* ) to participate in the amendments of two laws and

Yunnan Philosophical Social Science Society*

legal field. Since she was qualified as a practicing lawyer in November 1999, Ms.
Zhang had worked in five different law firms in Yunnan Province and is currently

(B N\RERMEBA).

working on or part-time basis at Yunnan Bagian Law Firm*
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ma Xiangyi (“Mr. Ma"), aged 48, joined the Group in February 2016,
successively served as the deputy general manager and general manager of the
project management center and was appointed as a deputy general manager of
the Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Ma obtained a bachelor’s
degree in industrial and civil construction from Yunnan Polytechnic University
in July 1997 and the qualification of intermediate engineer (in water supply
and drainage) in August 2002. Mr. Ma has over 23 years of rich experience in
water and relevant industries. Mr. Ma served as an engineer at the infrastructure
construction division of Kunming Municipal Water Discharge Company* (&8
W KA E]) from August 1997 to August 2005, a deputy general manager
(BRAEMIEE B AR
from September 2005 to October 2012 and a standing deputy general manager
of Kunming Dianchi Construction Management Company* (B EREE

A]) from November 2012 to February 2016. In addition, Mr. Ma served as the
chairman or a senior management member of a number of subsidiaries of the

of Kunming Dianchi Project Management Company*

Group since September 2016.

Ms. Luo Shujie (“Ms. Luo”), aged 38, joined the Group in January 2021 and
successively served as served as the deputy financial controller of the Company
and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the Company by the third
session of the Board. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’'s degree in finance (risk
management and insurance) from Yunnan University of Finance and Economics
in July 2006 and a master’s degree in software engineering from Xiamen
University in June 2011. Ms. Luo has over 11 years of management experience
in the financial sector. From July 2006 to July 2008, Ms. Luo worked in Kunming
Commercial Bank. From July 2008 to January 2021, Ms. Luo served as the
president of Kunming Baida Sub-branch of Fudian Bank Co., Ltd., the director
of the Wealth Center of Kunming Chajie Sub-branch of Fudian Bank, and the
assistant president of Kunming Economic Development Zone Sub-branch of Fudian

Bank.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo (“Mr. Li"), aged 44, joined the Group in May 2013 as company
secretary of the Company and served as the secretary to the Board of the
Company. Mr. Li graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business
in Beijing with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 2001 and obtained a
master’s degree in accounting from Macquarie University in Australia in April
2006. Mr. Li is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He
is mainly responsible for assisting with the operation of our Company and the
operation of the Board. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of experience in finance
related senior positions. Mr. Li was engaged by Audit Office of New South Wales
as an auditor since August 2007 and was later promoted to senior auditor.
From March 2011 to June 2013, Mr. Li served as the financial controller and the
company secretary of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 814).
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Directors’ Report
EERRS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 31
December 2022 to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2022, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00 each. Details
of changes in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note
27 to the Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company
is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its

existing Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is an operator primarily engaged in municipal environmental integrated
services and the only urban environmental integrated service provider in Yunnan
Province. The Group is also one of the few integrated operators in municipal
environmental services in China that has expanded overseas successfully, and our
overseas business is mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the
Group operates upstream and downstream development industries to improve the
Group's profitability structure and broaden the sources of income. The Group has
good track records in projects such as urban wastewater treatment, tap water and
raw water supply, watercourse management, solid waste treatment and others.

The major business segments of the Group include investment, construction and
management services for urban water supply, waste water treatment, solid waste
treatment, and comprehensive environmental treatment projects, construction
and sales of equipment and other environmental protection related services. The
corporate strategy of the Group is to set our foundation of business in Yunnan,
identify overseas investment opportunities continuously, and gradually expand our
business to other favourable regions in China and overseas emerging markets, in
order to secure stable income sources.
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RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 81 to 82. The financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position
on pages 83 to 85. The consolidated cash flow of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 is set out in the consolidated cash flows statement on pages
88 to 89.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements
affecting the results of operations and financial condition of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report from pages 9 to 23.

DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

Considering the actual situation of the Group, the Board has decided not to
recommend the payment of final dividends for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting Period
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity, of which details of
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 86 to 87.
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EEEWmE

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS BITERRHEMER

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as of 31 December 2022 are AKEBR -_E-_—_F+-_A=+—HHNETT

set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report. ERREMETNFABIENERERS 5
WwWEMFE30 -

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR EE EENEACTERE

MANAGEMENT

Certain information concerning the Directors, the Supervisors and senior TEREBINARRRBREHARBEEZARFRA
management of the Company during the Reporting Period and as of the date of HEE EENaNBEENSGOEE -
this annual report is set out below.

Directors EE

Date of Appointment
Name Title in the Company for the Current Term

A& RA QBB BOEHMNEEAY

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Yu Long Executive Director, Vice-Chairman, 12 October 2020
General Manager

FEEE BITES BESE B8 e ;=

Mr. Zhou Zhimi Executive Director, Chief Financial 10 November 2021
Controller

B S A BITES  MGHRE —E-—F+—A+H
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Name

g

Title in the Company
R D B WA

Directors’ Report
EERRS

Date of Appointment
for the Current Term

ROEHNEERE

Non-executive Directors
FHTES

Mr. Mei Wei

BEEE

Mr. Dai Richeng
®AKEE

Mr. Chen Yong

BRESEE

Mr. Liu Hui

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

BMT A

Mr. Zhong Wei

BEEE

Mr. Zhou Beihai

itk 4

Non-executive Director, Chairman
FMITER EEER
Non-executive Director
FEHITESE

Non-executive Director
FEHMITEF

Non-executive Director,
Deputy General Manager
(appointed on 29 March 2023)
FHMITES  BRKHE
(R=ZB=_=F#=A=+A1H
EZME)

Independent
Non-executive Director

BYFENTES

Independent

Non-executive Director
BUERITES

Independent
Non-executive Director

BYFRTES

30 January 2023
—E-=F—A=+H
12 October 2020
—E_ZE+HA+=H
12 October 2020
—E-EFE+A+H
11 June 2021

12 October 2020

—T-THF+A+=H
12 October 2020

—EEF+HATZH
12 October 2020

—T-FTF+A+=H
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EEERE

Supervisors and Senior Management

Name

HE

Title in the Company
R D B A

EEREREERE

Date of Appointment
for the Current Term

ROEHMNEEAH

Supervisors
E=x
Mr. Long Limin

EAMR %A
Mr. Zhu Zhen

RIRE A&

Mr. Tan Hairui
BEH kL
Ms. Zhang Ling
RIFR L

Ms. Tang Shuang
Bzt

Mr. Huang Yi

HEEA

Senior management
BREEE

Mr. Wang Yong (resigned on 12 April
2023)

ITEAE(AZT-_-FWNA+=-AL
BE(E)

Mr. Ma Xiangyi

BRERE

Mr. Li Bo

FEEE
Ms. Luo Shujie
BRERA L

Chairman of the Supervisory
Committee, shareholder
representative Supervisor

EREEEF BRERRES
Shareholder representative
Supervisor

BRERRKRES
Independent Supervisor
BEEE
Independent Supervisor

BIEE

Employee representative Supervisor

BIRKRES

Employee representative Supervisor,

Deputy General Manager
(appointed on 29 March 2023)

BIRKRES AlgrE
(R=—ZE-_=F=ZA=-1+hH
EZEAT)

Senior management

SRERE

Deputy General Manager
Bl s

Company Secretary, Secretary to
the Board

RAME ZEEFSWE
Deputy General Manager

Bl
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—EZEF+A+ZH
12 October 2020

= e S
12 October 2020
—E-THE+HA+TH
12 October 2020
—E_FTEH+H+_H
12 October 2020
—E-THE+A+H
12 October 2020

N =

12 October 2020

—E-EFt+A+=H

12 October 2020
—E-EF+HA+=H
15 August 2013

—T—=FNA+HAH
29 March 2023
—_E-=#=AF=+ANH



During the period from the listing date to the Reporting Period, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent from the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 24 to 34 of this annual report. There are no
relationships among the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company, including financial, business, family or other material relationships as
defined in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors and
Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and
provision on arbitration. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with

the Articles of Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with
the Company during the Reporting Period which is not terminable within one year
nor may be terminated by the Company without payment of compensation (other

than statutory compensation).

DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR
DETERMINATION OF THE REMUNERATION OF
THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management is subject
to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and determined by the
Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending remuneration for
Directors, Supervisors and senior management to the Board with reference to,
among other factors, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance subsisting in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was directly or indirectly a party and any
Director or Supervisor had a material interest.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting Period
had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance with any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, nor had
any contract of significance been entered into for the services provided by any
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors and Supervisors and
their respective associates has any business or interest that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or have or may have any conflict of
interest with the Group that were required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the Reporting
Period.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2022, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interest in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise, to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows:

Directors’ Report
EERRS

Bt
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EZx
HHE R

X it
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w0
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EERFERITHABRAR A E A a5
B (F % REF K E G EXVE) 8B 75
HERDRESRY  BEREBEEFRHPEK
Bl 235216 sk LA Bt 5 NABH A K R AR IR 3%
BXMTEENELEMOER  IREBZE
FREMNSEAR A MBI EZ  HEH
EMARREZET -

Percentage
Percentage of of the total
the respective number of
Name of Director, type of Shares Shares in
Supervisor and chief in issue (%) issue (%)
executive Type of Number of HE BT e BT
EE EERES Capacity Shares Shares held 5 R 0 B0
THRABKA 51 R 17 %8 5Bl BEROGHE B EE B (%) B EE B (%)
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 10,820,000 (L) 1.30 0.91
TRExEE EREAA AE=AY
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner H Shares 770,000 (L) 0.21 0.06
FiExEE Em#EAA HA%
Mr. Zhou Zhimi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 325,000 (L) 0.04 0.03
BB & EREAA NE KR
Mr. Huang Yi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1,560,000 (L) 0.19 0.13
=L EREAA NE KR
Note: B &E -
(L) refers to long position (L) REFE

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31
December 2022, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executives of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company's best knowledge, as of 31 December 2022, the following
persons (other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests are disclosed in the
section headed “Interests and Short Positions of Directors, Supervisors and Chief
Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
which were required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the
respective type of share capital in issue of the Company which were recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

T ERRARA 0 RR
B

BARRAM RZTZZF+—A=+—
B THAT(ERRRANESRESKRIN - #
ErRENEXES - EERERTTHRAES
R, - BEAROREHFZEERAR ] —
BE)NRAABRGD - HERDRESTES
RIECEFH R E GO EXVBE2REID T
ARARBHWBEESIOAE JRBEF RS
EEBIE3361&BF ELA R A E LA Lk
WiERSORE MAEGARRRER 2 BEITR
KR5%s LA RS SOA R ¢

Percentage Percentage
of the  of the total
respective number of
type of Shares Shares in
in issue (%) issue (%)
Type of Number of HE 81T HE 8T
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares Shares ERR 5 BB M
KRR A BR &5 B 13 38 5l R &R B9 EE Bl (%) B9 EE Bl (%)
YEPI! Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
EHAERRESE EnEAA HE—BALH N & iR
CESESR: 35
Mr. Huang Yunjian' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43,58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
mEREA EnfAA HE-—ZALH NE
CESEER: $-4
Mr. Liu Xujun' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
2B E AT BEnAA HBHE—FZATH N & %
[Fl+5 6 &=
Mr. Wang Yong' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
FE BERafBEA HBE-—ZALH N & %
CESTSR: £
YHTH' Interests in controlled Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
corporation, interests held Shares
jointly with another person
R EKEE REZEEENER  HE5 -8 N & IR
AT HRAFAEER
Beijing OriginWater Beneficial owner Domestic 286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
Shares
IR E KR EmEA A A& IR
China National Petroleum Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Corporation? corporation Shares
FEAHRAREE REEEE R E =S A& %
AR A?
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EEEHRGE
Percentage Percentage
of the  of the total
respective number of
type of Shares Shares in
in issue (%) issue (%)
Type of Number of HE BT HE R8T
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares Shares ERR 6 B 6
RER A R &5 B 13 %8 5l K13 & E B9 £ Bl (%) B9 £ Bl (%)
CNPC Capital Company Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Limited? corporation Shares
BB A & B E AR AR D REELEENER A& iR
BRAA?
CNPC Assets Management Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Co., Ltd.? corporation Shares
PMEEBEIERR AR M EEN#ER W& R
Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.2 Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
corporation Shares
EmiEFEREERF? NEELEE N E = N & IR
Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Investment Management corporation Shares
Partnership (Limited
Partnership)?
EREmETREREER AR BN R W&
ariEE
Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity ~ Beneficial owner Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Investment Center (Limited Shares
Partnership)?
BEAEERBRERESR L BEmERA N & IR
(BRAER)?
Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
Investment Limited'
YVERBRABRA A e PN Hi
YHTH! Interests in controlled H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
corporation
EEEKEE REEEBNER HA%
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EEHE

refers to long position

YEPI is wholly owned by YHTH and is the beneficial owner of 361,487,162 Domestic Shares.
Caiyun International Investment Limited (“Caiyun International”) is wholly owned by YHTH
and is the beneficial owner of 8,449,000 H Shares. YHTH is deemed to be interested in all
the Domestic Shares held by YEPI and H Shares held by Caiyun International pursuant to the
SFO which representing approximately 31.01% of total issued Shares.

Mr. Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 Domestic Shares.
Mr. Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 Domestic Shares.
Mr. Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 Domestic Shares.

By virtue of the acting in concert agreement dated 24 July 2014 (the “Acting in Concert
Agreement”) entered into between YEPI, Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr.
Wang Yong, each of Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong agreed to act
in concert with YEPI in exercising their voting rights in the Shareholders’ meeting of the
Company. Each of YEPI, Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by each other in aggregate pursuant
to the SFO.

Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan”) is a general partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity
Investment Center (Limited Partnership) (“Xinzhen Tianying”), holds 3.85% equity interests
in Xinzhen Tianying and is the beneficial owner of 124,754,169 Domestic Shares; Ningbo
Kunlun Xinyuan is owned as to 99% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is
owned as to 82.18% by CNPC Assets Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly owned
by CNPC Capital Limited; CNPC Capital Limited is wholly owned by CNPC Capital Company
Limited, which in turn is owned as to 77.35% by China National Petroleum Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31

December 2022, no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief

executives) had informed the Company that he had interests or short positions in

the Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the Company which were

required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5% or

more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business
were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted the following non-exempt
continuing connected transactions.
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BEEEXN

RERREALHN  RBEBRNLRERS
HWAEMERHH AR A EHEERTH
ST S A D -

FEREXS
RBEBR ARERETATTERLS
MMERS

Actual
Annual cap Transaction
Name, date and term of Nature and description of for 2022 amount in 2022
the agreement Connected Persons the transaction Pricing Basis “E-_CFE —2-_C
HEAE - AHRER BEAL REMERER EEER LR BERXZEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR
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Several related-party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under the definition of
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  carried out on normal commercial terms or better;

(3)  carried out according to the relevant transaction agreements, the terms of
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a

whole.

Auditor’'s Letter

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance Engagements other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the requirements

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the above continuing

connected transactions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition undertaking on
6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”).
Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert
Parties has irrevocably undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its
associates (except the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as
principal or agent, either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other
things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any
services to or otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with
the business of the Company from time to time (the “Restricted Business”).
Each of the Acting in Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if
there is any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a
reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to the Company
on a pre-emptive basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking and had determined that the Acting in Concert Parties have fully
complied with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Undertaking during
the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements (the “Non-
Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the Company. Pursuant
to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
irrevocably undertaken that it will not and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either
on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on,
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the business
of the Company from time to time. Each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any new business opportunity in
the Restricted Business, it shall within a reasonable period of time refer such new

business opportunities to the Company on a pre-emptive basis.
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The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking Shareholders have fully complied
with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Agreements during the
Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of procurement from the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 20.62% of the
total amount of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2022, and the
procurement from the largest supplier accounted for 12.01% of the total amount
of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for approximately 18.13% of the total amount
of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022, and the total amount of sales
to the largest customer accounted for approximately 6.73% of the total amount
of revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective close
associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do not hold any interest in
the top five customers and top five suppliers of the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the note 2.26 to the consolidated financial statements for detailed

information on the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance for the Reporting Period and material factors relating to its results
and financial conditions are set out in the chapter headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from pages 9 to 23 in this annual report. Such
discussions constitute an integral part of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment services providers
in the PRC, the Company is committed to operating its various business segments
in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Board believes that compliance
with the relevant environmental protection rules and regulations is crucial to
the long term development and success of the Group’s businesses. In order to
maintain a high standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations,
the Company offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at the
various water treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants. As a result
of the Company’s commitment to environmental protection and through the
implementation of advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe and

environmentally-friendly production during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the cornerstone
of a business and attaches considerable importance to it. To the best knowledge
of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
Furthermore, as the H Shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange,
the Company shall be bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’'s business, future results of operations and prospects could be
affected by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to the chapter headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 9 to 23 in this annual report

for detail analysis of the relevant risks and uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has undertaken and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as defined under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director and Supervisor or their respective spouses or children under the age of
18, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of Shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 55 to 70 in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under

the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not been involved in any material
litigation nor arbitration and the Directors are not aware of any litigation or claims
of material importance pending or threatened against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 9 to 23 in
this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which, before declaration or proposed distribution of dividends, the Board shall
consider the following factors:

—  the actual and expected financial performance of the Company;

—  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and the
subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and

future expansion plans of the Group;

—  the liquidity of the Group;

—  the overall economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group’s business
and the inherent or external factors that may affect the business, financial

performance and positioning of the Company; and
—  Other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The distribution of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and the Articles
of Association.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results and the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company for
the financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the year ended
31 December 2022. The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 prepared in accordance with HKFRS have been audited by Moore
Stephens CPA Limited. The Company has engaged Moore Stephens CPA Limited
for audit service after the conclusion of extraordinary general meeting on 30
January 2023.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MBREE

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and liabilities of the AEBRBARRETBRFENLEEERE
Group for the recent five financial years is set out on page 257 in this annual ErBBERRAFRETE -
report.

For and on behalf of the Board RERESE

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* EFMABERERMERLD T
Mei Wei EER

Chairman &

Kunming, the PRC hE R

31 March 2023 T =f=HA=+—H
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report of the Company
from the listing date to 31 December 2022.

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhance
Shareholder value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The Company’s corporate
governance principles emphasise the importance of a quality Board, effective
internal control and accountability to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view of safeguarding the interest of the Shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of the Shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. The Group has made
specific enquiries with all of its Directors and Supervisors, and all Directors and
Supervisors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition
The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Long (Vice-Chairman, General manager)
Mr. Zhou Zhimi (Chief financial controller)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mei Wei (Chairman) (appointed on 30 January 2023)

Mr. Dai Richeng
Mr. Chen Yong
Mr. Liu Hui
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

Mr. Zhong Wei

Mr. Zhou Beihai

To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. In
particular, there is no such relationship between the Chairman and the general
manager. The roles of Chairman and the general manager are assumed by Mr.
Mei Wei and Mr. Yu Long, respectively. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors
containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and provision on
arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors (including the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a
term of three years from the date of he/she takes up the appointment.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (at least one-third of the Board) with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence during the Reporting Period pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent during the Reporting Period in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgement and to
act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board oversees
management’s efforts to promote the Company’s success while operating in an
effective and responsible manner. The Board also formulates the Company’s overall
business strategies and monitors management'’s execution of such strategies.
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By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business and
governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these matters reserved
for the Board have been separately defined, and are reviewed periodically, to
ensure that the Company maintains the proper level of corporate governance and
to ensure they are up to date. In this regard, the Board discharges, among others,
the following duties:

(1) to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a general
meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its work to the
general meeting and to implement the resolutions of the general meetings;

(2)  to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment plans;

(3) to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and final financial
budgets and profit distribution plans and plans for recovery of losses;

(4)  to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal, repurchase
of shares of the Company or merger, division, dissolution and alteration of
corporate form of the Company;

(5) to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and punishments of the
Company's staff;

(6)  to decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and
to appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

(7)  to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of
accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the Company; and

(8) to review and supervise the policies and practices of the Company in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and operations
to the Company’s senior management, which includes its chief administration
officers, the general manager and deputy general manager. The senior
management meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies
and make recommendations to the Board. The senior management administers,
enforces, interprets and supervises compliance with the internal rules and
operational procedures of the Company as well as its subsidiaries and conducts
regular reviews, recommends and advises on appropriate amendments to such
rules and procedures. The senior management reports to the Board on a regular
basis and communicates with the Board whenever required.
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Corporate Governance Functions of the Board
The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance policies and
performing the corporate governance duties, which include, among others:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on

corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code; and

(5)  to review the compliance of the Company with relevant code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and make its disclosure in the
corporate governance report prepared under the Listing Rules.

Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a year. Meetings
shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of and documents for such
meetings shall be sent to all Directors and Supervisors 14 days before the meeting
is held. The Chairman, any Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth
voting rights, more than one-third of the Directors, the Supervisory Committee or
more than one-half independent non-executive Directors or the general manager
of the Company may propose the holding of an extraordinary meeting of the
Board. The chairman shall convene and preside over the extraordinary meeting
of the Board within ten days upon receipt of the proposal, and shall give written
notice to all Directors and Supervisors five days before the meeting is held. During
the Reporting Period, the Board held 58 Board meetings and 1 annual general

meeting.

In case of urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon approval
by the chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting notice as set out
in the Articles of Association, provided that reasonable notice shall be given to
Directors, Supervisors and the general manager.
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Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of new directors are
considered first by the nomination committee and the remuneration committee,
then they will make recommendations to the Board for consideration. All
nominees of new directors must be approved by the Shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company. Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain
approval of the Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 58 Board meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or by electronic
communication means. They made informed decisions to safeguard the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The attendance of Directors is as

follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings

EESHERE
Name of Director EENA BITRE
Mr. Yu Long FELE 58/58
Mr. Zhou Zhimi BAE®REE 58/58
Mr. Dai Richeng B AKEE 58/58
Mr. Chen Yong PR B8 5 A4 58/58
Mr. Liu Hui 2108 5 A4 58/58
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BT AE 58/58
Mr. Zhong Wei EEEE 58/58
Mr. Zhou Beihai AitE k& 58/58

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board considered and approved important
proposals, mainly including:

— Proposal in respect of the 2021 annual results (unaudited)

—  Proposal in respect of the transfer of 100% equity interest in Yunshui
Technology Co., Ltd.*

—  Proposal in respect of the asset disposal by batches
—  Proposal in respect of the 2021 annual results (audited)

—  Proposal in respect of the appointment of the PRC auditor and the
international auditor of the Company for 2022

—  Proposal in respect of the review of the interim results of the Company for
the six months ended 30 June 2022

—  The resolution on nomination of candidates for non-execution director of
the third session of the Board of the Company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings. Annual general meetings are held
once every year and within six months after the conclusion of the previous
financial year. During the Reporting Period, only one general meeting (being the
2022 annual general meeting) was held. The attendance of Directors is as follows:
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Attendance/

Number of

general meeting

BRAGHERY

Name of Director EENE ERRE
Mr. Yu Long FHEE 11
Mr. Zhou Zhimi BEREE 1”7
Mr. Dai Richeng BAKEE 11
Mr. Chen Yong BRE %K & 11
Mr. Liu Hui 24 11
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BRIk & 11
Mr. Zhong Wei BELE 1
Mr. Zhou Beihai At E LA 171
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities as Directors of
the Company, and the mode of operation, business activities and development of

the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that newly
appointed Directors have appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and are fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under

the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company constantly arranges
internal seminars and provides reading materials on relevant topics to Directors,

and all Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the general manager of the Company
are separate and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in the
Articles of Association. The Chairman is elected by a majority vote of all Directors,
and the general manager is nominated and appointed by the Board.

The Chairman places great emphasis on the communication with the independent
non-executive Directors. The Chairman holds meetings with the independent
nonexecutive Directors at least once every year, in respect of development
strategy, corporate governance, operational management, at which no executive
Director is present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors may speak freely
at the Board meetings and actively participate in the discussions of significant

decision making in the Board meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The

Company had established four Board committees, being the Nomination

Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Compliance Committee and Audit

Committee.

(1

62

Nomination Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:
reviewing and monitoring the structure, size, composition and diversity
of members of the Board in light of the Company’s strategy; identifying
suitably qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board
to be new Board members; reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on individuals nominated to be Directors by the Shareholders;
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and reviewing and monitoring the implementation of diversity policy of
Board members of the Company. Terms of reference of the Nomination

Committee have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee consists of
one non-executive Director, Mr. Yu Long (as acting chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Beihai and Mr. Zhong Wei.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the Company
had held one meeting, to discuss the nomination and appointment matters
of Directors of the third session of the Board of the Company, and review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors. At such meetings, Mr. Mei Wei
was nominated as a candidate for a non-executive Director of the third
session of the Board. The attendance record of the committee members are

as follows:
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MBI R REEARAEEEK

BZTIEBRRNET - ARRELZEE
PR S EC AN A DAY
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B o

RBEHRR  RARREZBEGHET
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ZEUM SHRIBEEEREERE=ZRE
EESIINTEFREA -ZBEIZK
B EEEEMT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERE,S

Name of Director EEpE BRRE
Mr. Yu Long FreLE 11
Mr. Zhou Beihai A s EE 1/1
Mr. Zhong Wei EEELE 11
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The Company had adopted a board diversity policy with a view to
achieving the diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board
members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the possible contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for all Directors and senior management members
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; review and approval of the remuneration
proposals from the management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management members; and to advise Shareholders of the Company with
respect to the service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the third session of the Remuneration
Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors Mr. Zhong
Wei (as chairman) and Mr. Zhou Beihai and one executive Director, Mr. Yu
Long.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee of the Company RBEPRR - RARHFNEZE BT
had held one meeting, to discuss the matter in respect of the performance T—Rkg®E M uTuﬁZK AlEAEEA
and remuneration of senior management of the Company for 2021. The B2 EERFNER - ZTER 2K
attendance record of the committee members are as follows: BHERENT :
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HERE
Name of Director EENA CEYVS
Mr. Zhong Wei EEELE 11
Mr. Zhou Beihai AigikE 11
Mr. Yu Long TREEE 11
Compliance Committee 3). ERZEEE

The principal responsibilities of the Compliance Committee are to conduct
independent investigation and make decisions on compliance matters
with respect to our business operations by authorisation from the Board.
The Company has established the Compliance Committee to ensure the
operation of any projects acquired and operated by us are in compliance
with the Group’s internal control standards and the relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Compliance Committee was consisted of
one executive Directors, Mr. Yu Long, three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong, Mr. Zhong Wei (as chairman) and Mr. Zhou
Beihai and one employee representative Supervisor, Mr. Huang Yi.
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Audit Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, including making recommendations on
appointing or changing the external auditor and its terms of engagement;
reviewing and monitoring external auditor’s independence and audit
process objectively; monitor the truthfulness, accuracy and integrity of
the Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts and
halfyear report; oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system; and other matters that the Board
has authorised it to deal with. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee
have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee was consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (as chairman), Mr
Zhou Beihai and Mr. Zhong Wei.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee of the Company had
held 5 meetings, to review the annual report 2021 of the Company, interim
report 2022 of the Company, the resolution of the appointment of the
PRC auditor and the international auditor of the Company for 2022, the
recommend not to distribute dividends, proposed payment of dividends, and
to discuss and make recommendations on matters such as internal control
and internal audit procedures. During the Reporting Period, the attendance
of the committee members are as follows:

(4).
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERE,

Name of Director EEME BRRE
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BT R4 5/5
Mr. Zhou Beihai AL gk E 5/5
Mr. Zhong Wei ERELE 5/5
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating
policies on remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 are

set out in Note 41 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the remuneration
paid to the senior management of the Company (excluding the Directors) by
bands for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

EEREREE AN H M

KRABERBITREBRSREIE A E K H BN
BERZEVEIALRAZERENEF BE-FT
T T A=t -RUEFEREFHFIN
HEHENA G B WMERMEL -

BECEEARTREBISE  TREANNEE
-+ A=+t BUFEREMHE
PENTFEREBAB(TREES) MEFH -

Number of individuals

Remuneration bands (RMB) FHER(ARYE) A
Nil to 500,000 = £500,0007T 6

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Directors
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue its operation as a going

concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information

as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s Financial Statements, which were put to the Board for approval.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that effective environmental, social and corporate governance
(ESG) management policies are crucial to the sustainability of the Group’s business.
As such, the Group proactively enhances its understanding of the latest laws
and regulations and the best practices both within and outside the PRC, which
are relevant to the Group's business, as well as its management approach and
management system. As a responsible corporation, the Group is also committed
and dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental and social standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
noncompliance with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business,
including but not limited to health and safety, labour standards, employment and
the environment, which would have a significant impact on the Group, such as
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC ( {(FFEARKMBELEERE) ), the Law
of the PRC on Work Safety ( (FZEARZMBEIZ 2 £EE) ), the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC ( (HFEARLRBIRERMEE) ), the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid
Wastes ( (#EARFEMEEBEREY))FRRENAE) ), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ( {FFZE A R B A 5,55 240
JA7A) ), the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ( {#
= N RAMBKIFEPEE%) ), the Standard for Pollution Control on the Landfill
Site of Municipal Solid Waste ( (A& HKIEIR IS5 2 HIF%) ) (GB16889-2008),
the Standard for Pollution Control on the I\/Iuniopal Solid Waste Incineration ( {4
SEBLIR S A HIIZ ) ) (GB18485-2014), the Technical Requirements on
Medical Waste Incinerator ( { BEEEMIGEERITEK) ) (GB19218-2003), the
Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Incineration ( (/BB IESS
FAEHIEAE) ) (GB18484-2014) and the applicable pollutant emission standards
formulated by local governments. The Group believes that a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. To this end, the Group has
encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.
The Group also maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services

to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

An ESG report has been prepared with reference to ESG Guide set out in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The report presents our contributions to
sustainable development during the Reporting Period, and covers the major
environmental and social policies, environmental indicators of our Group, measures
adopted for reducing emissions by the Group and the relevant achievements of

the Group. The ESG Report is set out on pages 258 to 316 in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management and
internal control system to safeguard the Shareholder’s investments and the
Company’s assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis with the support of the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal audit system and the risk management and internal control system of the
Company and its subsidiaries, including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training

programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries was
effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities
for the Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from
page 71 to 80 of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to Moore Stephens CPA

Limited as the auditor of the Company is set out below:

2| B B 3 B ok D BE 4
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ARMBERRBE T ENER BIEER
KHBEDRH ARBIMEXOEIRE
LEWBRERDRR -

RBEHAN EFSRERIRBERAR
HMBLARANEREERANLEZERLR R
N s e

B BUEM K ¥ BB BN &

AR AR B BB A BB S B R B AU
SEET S RET RS E ESIELED
bt ECILR

TERENABREHALN BN FADER
THBMAESEENHM

Amount

&%

RMB’000

AR® TR

Fee for audit services Bt IR %W & 6,945

Fee for non-audit services EER IR U B 1,324

Total fees BERES 8,269
The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit services and AEERBREHANINES T HE bz HAIRH

non-audit services during the Reporting Period
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the Shareholders
is essential to enhance investor relations and investors understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enable Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions. The
general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face communication
between the Board and the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholder(s) holding more than 10%
(individually or together with others) of Shares of the Company shall be entitled
to request for an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting according to the
following procedures:

(1) Upon signing one or several written requests with the same content and
format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the aforesaid Shareholders
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting. Concerning the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with
the law, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply with
a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon receipt of the proposal.
Shares held by the above Shareholders who made the requests shall be

calculated as at the date of submitting the written request.

(2)  If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within five days upon
making the Board decision. Any changes made to the original request in the

notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.

(3) If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal, the
Shareholders individually or together holding more than 10% of the Shares
are entitled to request the Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an

extraordinary general meeting or class meeting.

(4) I the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon receiving the requests. Any changes made to the original

request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.
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If the Supervisory Committee does not issue the notice of general meeting
within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the Supervisory
Committee not convening and not holding the general meeting. Then
the Shareholders who individually or together hold more than 10% of
the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days may convene and hold the
meeting themselves. Before publicly announcing the resolution(s) of the
general meeting, the convening Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of
the Shares. When the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general
meeting and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities regulatory
authority where the Company is located and relevant stock exchange

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually or together
holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad-hoc proposals in writing to
the convener of the general meeting ten days before the holding of the general
meeting. The convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the
ad-hoc proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to
communicate with the Company:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716

Company website: www.yunnanwater.cn

E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by the law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo is the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Li provided his training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional development
by attending courses on company secretary functions, accounting system and
Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yunnan Water
Investment Co., Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 81 to 256 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As described in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
reported a net loss of RMB1,158,349,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB4,699,176,000 as at 31 December 2022. As at the same date, the Group’s
total borrowings amounted to RMB30,132,635,000, of which current borrowings
amounted to RMB3,384,810,000, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB600,642,000 only. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB9,347,286,000, which were mainly related to
various concession projects and construction projects of the Group.

These conditions, together with other matters described in note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

BRESER

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BREETEE(A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEANNEERRENSEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements under financial asset model

REFFREZFTHERNEEER R RFTORMBANREZNTE

Refer to note 2.11.1(i) for the accounting policy of service
concession arrangements under financial asset model, note 4(b)
for the critical accounting estimates and judgements involved,
and note 20 to the consolidated financial statements for the
receivables under service concession arrangements.
REFAEELTETHeREERENBB ST ERAL2HE 0
BRI R M TE2.11.13) - EE & FHEET R A BT 2 B M R 4b) - A
MIRGFFEERBE TR B FIAFZ 2 MM 320 -

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”) under Build-Operate-Transfer
arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer arrangements in
respect of its wastewater treatment, water supply and solid
waste treatment services. Certain of these service concession
arrangements are accounted for using “financial asset” model
while others are accounted for using “intangible asset” model. For
the Group's service concession arrangements under financial asset
model, the fair value of receivables and revenue recognised are
derived from valuation in which a number of critical assumptions
were used. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
receivables under service concession arrangements amounted to
RMB7,542,082,000, which accounted for 16% of the Group's
total assets.
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With respect to valuation and revaluation for the service
concession arrangements under financial asset model
undertaken during the year, we assessed the methodologies
used by management of the Group and/or the external valuers,
and evaluated the independence, competence and capabilities
of the external valuers and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk factors.

AR A FREEREFTCERETHNEREEERETHNMG
BREME  RFOFETANEEERE R SINE TS D65 A
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We selected samples of service concession arrangements under
financial asset model for testing. The key procedures included:
BPERBEACLERHE TN EREEREET T HER
A FTERFELE:

1. Examining the agreements between the Group and the
Grantors.
1. BRESEBERTAREENGL -

Annual Report 2022 4F & 4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k B8 &5 B R A & 73



Independent Auditor’s Report
¥8 N % BUAD i

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

BRESER

HRESNTSEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEANNEERRENSEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements under financial asset model (continued)

BREFSTFRERFTHERNEEERNBERFRMBUANRINGE (&

Management has mostly engaged external valuers to perform
the valuation for those service concession arrangements under
financial asset model at initial recognition, and to perform
revaluation when there were indicators that the critical
assumptions in the initial valuation have been significantly affected
and deviated subsequent to initial recognition. Such valuation
and revaluation were determined based on the forecasted cash
flows to be derived from the related projects which involved
critical judgements and assumptions including but not limited to
the effective interest rate, forecasted unit price of service fee,
operating costs and profit margins of the operating services.
The judgements and estimations are subject to high degree of
estimation uncertainty and leading to relatively higher inherent
risk. With reference to the valuation and revaluation performed
by the external valuers, management determined the amount of
receivables and revenue to be recognised for service concession
arrangements under financial asset model during the year, and the
subsequent measurement of receivables and revenue.
ERETZERFIIDTEMERBETECERETNEREE
EMEW%%=%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ' S8 B 53R B ) o6 B RS e (B P
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We paid significant attention to this area due to the significance
of receivables and revenue recognised for service concession
arrangements under financial asset model and critical judgement
involved in determining the critical assumptions used in the
valuation and revaluation.

BMPZFERIZRE  TEHRREEHALLELHETHEREE
BREEERENRASERAER  UAREEEENKRTE R
BENEHEFERNBREBRRSREAHE -

2. Testing the reasonableness and appropriateness of critical
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts, mainly
in relation to:

2. HESRBAMEANERBRINSEBEMEREE E#T
AE - EFEBE

— assessing and analysing the reasonableness of the
operating costs by comparing to the actual costs of
other existing service concession arrangements of
the Group;

— HHESHEHEMRAENRBETFEERLTFHER
A - AL DT ELRANE IR

— assessing and analysing the profit margins of the
operating services by comparing with the average
profit margin of the operating services of the
industry; and

— HURTEELSRBOHFHEMNX
ERBOEMNZTNEEN K

© FEfE AT E

— assessing the effective interest rate by reference to
our knowledge of the industry and independent
research on external evidence.

— Z2ERMBTENT R REINBIENBLHRE
ERER-4 R

We also challenged management’s assessment of whether
the subsequent measurement of receivables and revenue
recognised for the service concession arrangements under
financial asset model should be subject to revaluation by
comparing the actual outcome, if available, with the critical
assumptions applied in the valuation in previous years and
assessing the potential impact of reasonably possible changes
in the critical assumptions.
BMABEITEERENRBEACELH THEREER
ARRTEETENNAE  RMNEENEFTSEK IR
MERREANERERENNFREEMERNERETY
o R AR ARBRELEETENFTIER -
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Key audit matters

BRESER

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BREETEE(A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEANNEERRENSEE

Recoverability of trade receivables

BE Uk R RR Y T (= W A

Refer to note 4(c) for the critical accounting estimates and
judgements involved, and note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements for trade receivables.

HHEZ AR NATFELHAH U BRERMTAORKME23 -

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade receivables
amounted to RMB5,302,455,000, which accounted for 11% of the
Group's total assets.

RZZZZF+ZA=+—H BEEEEKEFONEE2EAAR
#5,302,455,0007T F G EELTEMN11% ©

The identification of impairment events and the determination of the
impairment provision of trade receivables require the application of
critical judgement by management.
EREHRKEFREESHNEIIA L RELEENTIRFTEERS
K HI B -

Management recognised the impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses rather than only incurred credit losses, which
is subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty and leading
to relatively higher inherent risk. These evaluations focused on
the customers’ settlement history and current ability to pay, and
took into account information specific to the customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the customers
operated.
EREEREREEFREMEEERELENEEHBERREE
B EXRINSEGFTEELENHY TEFHERSOHERE
o ZENHERBEITPNELEECHEREMNNEEN L E
EEFPASRAKEMENKERRNFERS

We paid significant attention to this area because management made
critical judgements over both timing of recognition of impairment
and the estimation of the amount of any such impairment.
BMZFBERTZEAE T E BN E IR E 5 W R FOR B 25 R
BRORESEOMEETEL T ERAL -

We obtained an understanding of management’s processes
and controls over credit risk management and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and other inherent risk
factors. This included the identification of which receivables
were impaired and estimation of the impairment provisions.
AP E B IR [ IR MR RU(E PR R B B IR B MR A2 AN A B 4
AT TR - WA E B ET N E M A IR R A A A E A R R
ERFH TEREROEERR - ZFREMATIEHEE
BEHEBRFOREFEA#N R ES BN -

In addition, we selected samples to inquire management for
the details of their recoverability assessment and challenged
the underlying information referenced by management, which
included comparing with external evidence obtained from
our independent research on public available information
of the customers, performing ageing analysis, examining
the historical transactions and settlement records of the
customers and testing of the subsequent settlements.

UEoN - BRI EUEREBR RN MERE TR REREZSE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BEREFITSZE(A)

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRETEE BANEA NI EERERASTE

Valuation of new borrowings to be recognised on extinguishment of original borrowings

HEEBERERES TFRANFERETNMGE

We identified the valuation of new borrowings recognised on We obtained the borrowing agreements and assessed

extinguishment of the original borrowings as key audit matter due the appropriateness of management’s judgement on

to the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial extinguishment of original borrowings and recognition of new

statements as a whole, and the significant judgment involved by the borrowings with reference to terms and conditions of the

management in determining the fair value of the new borrowings to  agreements.

be recognised. BPREERGE  T2EZFBBENERREETHER

BPMEHERERERSERNMEBEIETNHERINABAREZE EUHEERERARERFERNHEESSHE

B RARERARYEHMBERRERBNS VEEXN  BERE

EETHE FTRIANTNERO R FERBEELEZE XY E - We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies and key inputs adopted by the management

As explained in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, in determining the discount rates to be applied when

there were modifications to the terms of the Group’s certain determining the fair values of the new borrowings.

borrowings which the management of the Group had concluded BHMFHEEEEETCHAREEFTERNAFEMIMIEEX

that the modifications were substantial modifications and hence BFRAMNGEEIEZRTEGARBERETHRE

should be treated as extinguishment of the original financial liabilities

and recognition of new liabilities. The new liabilities are measured We checked the accuracy of the calculations prepared by

at fair values on respective dates of extinguishment of the original the management for determining the fair values of the new

borrowings with the difference between the carrying amounts of  borrowings.

the original borrowings derecognised and the fair values of the new HFfIBREEEBEEECHERNAFEEMETNEERS

borrowings being recognised in profit or loss. A o

WMana O R M 30Tt - BEREE TEREIRKRE TIERT -

MEXEETREERRBHEBI VEEXRE:]  AMERERRER

BERERNAGERE HAGERREXNEHEEIHEATE

R CWAREBERPHERIACKUIEERRERNEREEESEBERO AT

BZZEH -

In determining the fair values of new borrowings to be recognised
on extinguishment of the original borrowings, the management
of the Group is required to estimate suitable discount rates. The
management of the Group had taken into account key inputs such
as risk-free rate, credit spread and illiquidity spread when determining
the discount rate applied to determine the discount rates.
EEETEEREXNFETEANMERNATER EEEETERE
BAEEHEZENMRRE EETAREEATENRRER B85
HEREEEZRERRMNX FEZERRIUTCEZEEIEH
ANEUE -

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had recognised
gains of approximately RMB1,006,874,000 on extinguishment of
original liabilities and recognition of new liabilities, as disclosed in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

WGP BMERM TR 2T _—_F+_HA=+—H
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#1,006,874,0007T °
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed a disclaimer
of opinion due to multiple uncertainties relating to going concern on those
statements on 29 April 2022.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors of
the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥8 N % BUAD i

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

3 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥8 N % BUAD i

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit

Practising Certificate Number: PO5544

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
EHERNMEMTE WS

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-_ZT-—"F#+_A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E=-= - —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR TR ARET T
Revenue I z= 5 3,789,322 5,280,743
Cost of sales and services 35 65 BN K R 5 (3,035,474) (3,964,179)
Gross profit E 753,848 1,316,564
Other income H g A 1,358,701 54,080
Other (losses)/gains — net Hi(EEB), W55 (95,273) 164,333
Selling expenses iH & 7 X (42,031) (48,374)
Administrative expenses TR X (1,029,308) (650,674)
Net impairment losses on financial and eRMEEHNEERBEEIE
contract assets F 8 (619,678) (419,125)
Operating profit mEHR 326,259 416,804
Finance income A& WA 11 16,806 10,932
Finance expenses AR 11 (1,348,984) (1,537,186)
Finance costs — net A& KA F R 11 (1,332,178) (1,526,254)
Share of profit of investments accounted for NEREARNEGERE
using the equity method i Al 16 23,560 78,517
Loss before income tax FrEHRAIEE 9 (982,359) (1,030,933)
Income tax expenses FriS R 12 (175,990) (24,321)
Loss for the year FRER (1,158,349) (1,055,254)
Other comprehensive expense HMmREMX
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss AlEEF BB A H A
— Exchange differences on translation of foreign — REBINEBH
operations N ER (231,823) (22,147)
Total comprehensive expense for REZFRAGEHIHAE
the year, net of tax (1,390,172) (1,077,401)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
eHERNMEMTE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE - ZT- "+ -_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—ZE=-= —E - —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR TR ARET T
Loss attributable to: RATATEMAER:
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company - RAREBRARR (1,060,342) (1,001,876)
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - KABARIAHEBA 107,555 113,587
— Non-controlling interests - EERER (205,562) (166,965)
(1,158,349) (1,055,254)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ LT ATEMEREE
income attributable to: (BX) Wz :
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company - AR R EBARAR R (1,270,446) (1,024,023)
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - XKABARTERBA 107,555 113,587
— Non-controlling interests - EERRERE (227,281) (166,965)
(1,390,172) (1,077,401)
Loss per share for loss attributable to ERAREBERRRELERE
ordinary shareholders of the Company HEREER
- Basic and diluted - EANEE 13 RMB(0.889) RMB(0.840)
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive e OB R R H M 4R S U e & FE B 48 B BT
income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. EOHEE -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& P B B R O 3%
31 December 2022
—E-_-_F+=-A=+—8”

2022 2021
—EgE=-= T4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB MR E 17 4,208,587 4,250,964
Investment properties BEWHE 18 22,270 23,115
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 290,352 333,390
Receivables under service concession arrangements ARG 55 & L L HE T &Y
FE W FK IR 20 7,330,827 6,406,389
Contract assets EHEE 5 11,954,436 12,700,091
Intangible assets B EE 21 11,461,398 12,409,296
Investments accounted for using the equity NEREARNRE
method 16 1,090,769 1,084,751
Financial asset at fair value through other NAFEFEBEZFHFA
comprehensive income Hiira Wamm e g EE 4,675 4,675
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H bW R IE 23 258,059 914,561
Prepayments 8 1~ x| 23 1,207,570 1,463,032
Deferred income tax assets BEEFRSEREE 33 329,935 872,127
38,158,878 40,462,391
Current assets RENEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements FRIEEHHF KL L2 H T H
Ji& W 3R 1A 20 211,255 86,731
Inventories FE 22 129,920 116,043
Contract assets EHEE 5 233,236 486,042
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e YR IE 23 6,595,713 6,427,612
Prepayments TEfTRIE 23 252,334 145,841
Restricted cash 2R FI3E € 24 82,789 272,533
Cash and cash equivalents RekRREEEY 25 600,642 428,427
8,105,889 7,963,229
Assets classified as held for sale DERFELEEE 26 403,737 —
8,509,626 7,963,229
Total assets HmEE 46,668,504 48,425,620
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& P BF S R O 3%
31 December 2022
—E-_—F#+=-A=+—~8

2022 2021
—ZE=-= —E - —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt AR¥® T ARKETT
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders AAFEERBRELES
of the Company
Share capital A& A< 27 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves Hh#E 28 2,560,971 2,752,075
Retained earnings RE ET (1,010,428) 68,914
2,743,756 4,014,202
Perpetual capital instruments KABARIA 29 — 1,622,300
Non-controlling interests FE 15 R e 2 1,744,560 1,961,636
Total equity R 4,488,316 7,598,138
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEEF
Lease liabilities HEBE 26,820 30,956
Borrowings &= 30 26,747,825 7,970,439
Trade and other payables & 5 K& H A JE 1 58 31 49,900 2,833,401
Deferred income B E WA 32 814,430 817,160
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEMSHBEE 33 805,290 1,326,435
Provision BE 34 527,121 526,247
28,971,386 13,504,638
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B PF I B AR &=
31 December 2022
T F+=ZR=+—H

2022 2021
—E2-— —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T AREEF T
Current liabilities REBAE

Contract liabilities AEHEE 5 101,162 87,344
Lease liabilities HEAE 12,188 14,315
Borrowings &K 30 3,384,810 20,685,107
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A FE A R IE 31 8,920,186 5,974,439
Current taxation B AR % 18 570,419 561,639
12,988,765 27,322,844

Liabilities associated with assets classified HOMAREFLHEERE
as held for sale EEBEBENEE 26 220,037 —
13,208,802 27,322,844
Total liabilities BeE 42,180,188 40,827,482
Total equity and liabilities EaNEEAE 46,668,504 48,425,620

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the LA EEAEREREBBENT—HEE

accompanying notes.

o

The financial statements on pages 81 to 256 were approved by the Board of BB 2S6 A EREEN S -—=—4—=A1

=

Directors of the Company on 31 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf. =S+-—BRARTEETEHE THTIA

THRERZH -

Director

B=%

Director

=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AN 3 HEE X 4EA

AUt E@mE IR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—_F+-A=+—8I1FE

Attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company

ERAEARREES
Holders of
perpetual Non-
Share Other Retained capital  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total  instruments interests equity
KAER
BE  HtfEE  REERA @y IARBBEAN FiERER o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFn ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT AR%Tn
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(Msk27)  (Mi5rs) (Fit3529)
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-B--F
—-B-HiEs 1,193,213 2,800,727 1,181,421 5,175,361 500,000 1,932,201 7,607,562
Total comprehensive (expense)/ Eqsa(BX)/
income for the year g 35 48 55
Loss of the year EFREE - —  (1,001,876)  (1,001,876) 113,587 (166,965)  (1,055,254)
Currency translation differences EHmE = = (22,147) = (22,147) = = (22,147
— (22,147)  (1,001,876)  (1,024,023) 113,587 (166,965)  (1,077,401)
Transactions with owners in HEEANREEASR
their capacity as owners ETHRE
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWBAT = = = = = (48,116) (48,116)
Capital contribution by FERESTEE
non-controlling interests = = = = = 188,518 188,518
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments #{7:k A E AR T & - — — — 1,622,300 — 1,622,300
Redemption of perpetual capital BRXAEARIA
instruments - — — — (500,000) - (500,000)
Transfer to statutory reserve B ETHE = 39,693 (39,693) = = = =
Change of ownership interests in a ERELEHENERLT
subsidiary without loss of control EEHEBARINMERE
ey — (66,198) — (66,198) — 66,198 —
Dividends for the year ended BE-T_ZF
31 December 2020 +ZA=+-HILFE
g — — (70,938) (70,938) — — (70,938)
Distribution to holders of perpetual DEFKABRIEFEA
capital instruments = = = = (113,587) = (113,587)
Distribution to non-controlling interests 43k ¥ 3 12 Bk # 25 — - - — — (10,200 (10,200)
— (26,505) (110,631) (137,136) 1,008,713 196,400 1,067,977
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
APERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+_-_A=+—RALEE

Attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the Company
ARREBRRREM
Holders of
perpetual Non-
Share Other Retained capital  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total instruments interests equity
KAER
Ba  HttREE  REER B IEREA FERER mEs

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARMTRT AR®TR ARETR ARHTT AR%Tx

(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(K&27)  (KizEs) (Kt 29)
Balance at 31 December 2021 and RZE=—F
1 January 2022 +ZA=+-8k
“E--%-A-H
1 4 £3 1,193,213 2,752,075 68,914 4,014,202 1,622,300 1,961,636 7,598,138

Total comprehensive (expense)/ ERGAFEXR)/

income for the year K BE
Loss for the year FRER - —  (1,060,342)  (1,060,342) 107,555 (205,562)  (1,158,349)
Currency translation differences ERBEER — (210,104) — (210,104) — (21,719) (231,823)
— (210,104)  (1,060,342)  (1,270,446) 107,555 (227,281)  (1,390,172)
Transactions with owners in HEEAUREEASS
their capacity as owners ETNRS
Capital contribution by FERER A
non-controlling interests — — — — — 11,070 11,070
Redemption of perpetual capital BEXAEATLA
instruments — — - —  (1,622,300) —  (1,622,300)
Transfer to statutory reserve EEEERE - 19,000 (19,000) = = = =
Distribution to holders of perpetual ARTXABRIAREA
capital instruments - — — — (107,555) - (107,555)
Distribution to non-controlling interests 73k T 3£ R # & — — = = = (865) (865)
— 19,000 (19,000) —  (1,729,855) 10,205  (1,719,650)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-B-Z&
+-B=+-AHEH 1,193,213 2,560,971  (1,010,428) 2,743,756 — 1,744,560 4,488,316

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in titA s EE R EEBEN T —HEE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

o
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Consolidated Cash Flows Statement

VAN ani AN =g —1
EHHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

2022 2021
—E=-= - —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR TR ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations wEE /(A BES 35(a) 872,436 (1,604,268)
Income tax paid B EH (174,937) (47,362)
Interest paid EERE/ES (1,092,897) (1,170,150)
Net cash outflow from operating activities KEFHRS M FE (395,398) (2,821,780)
Cash flows from investing activities RETENEERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment, Y BB MEE
right-of-use assets, land use rights and EREEE - T RE
other intangible assets Ko H Ath 7 K B R (264,301) (199,072)
Disposal of an associate HE—RHHE AR — 30,000
Disposal of subsidiaries HE—RHHEBAQR 384,885 77,593
Proceeds from disposal of solid waste REEBEYTAIEIER
license projects FTiS ;1A 53,289 —
Others — net Hth — 558 (817) (2,002)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities R &E/EBR LR A
Ot ) 3 8 173,056 (93,481)
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Consolidated Cash Flows Statement
BHBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-_—_+_-_A=+—8BItFE

2022 2021
—ZE=-= —E - —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR TR ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities RETENREERE
Proceeds from borrowings EBEZrERIE 5,230,588 16,635,978
Repayments of borrowings BEER (4,776,110) (15,955,384)
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital BITRAEBART AFSHKIE
instruments — 1,622,300
Redemption of perpetual capital instruments EEXAEARTA = (500,000)
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual capital MAKABERIERFEA
instruments X AT EY 5k (42,304) (113,587)
Dividends paid BEREKRE = (21,166)
Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests A JF 45 AR 7 2 2 ST B9 AR B = (1,825)
Capital injections by non-controlling interests JEERERTE 11,070 5,210
Others — net EHfbh — F8 (13,062) (26,229)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REEEIR &M AEEE 410,182 1,645,297
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeERBSEEYWHEM
cash equivalents (R2) 28 187,840 (1,269,964)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of BRFEFEFTNRE R
the financial year BeEEY 428,427 1,697,688
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEWER W (14,117) 703
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESMB2EEY 602,150 428,427

Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiaries classified as disposal group held PEABEHEZLERNNNBARER S
for sale are included in cash and cash equivalents as stated in the condensed RBE2EEW AEHEHRERERMI

consolidated statement of cash flows.

MRERBEESEEYD -

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction L& OFIR &% = & FE B AR BAMT 2 — O B9RE -

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& OF B 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—F+_-_A=1+—BLEE

1.

90

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"”) on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the Company was
converted from a limited liability company into a joint stock limited
liability company with registered capital of RMB787,880,000. The
Company’s H shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May 2015 with the total share
capital subsequently increased to RMB1,193,213,000.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the development, design, construction, operation and maintenance
of municipal water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste
treatment facilities. The address of its registered office is Yunnan
Water 2089 Haiyuan North Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and
its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

TEETREREE(A)

21 mEEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets measured

at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
depicted in note 4.

2.1.1 Going concern basis

The Group reported a net loss of RMB1,158,349,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB4,699,176,000
as at 31 December 2022. As at the same date, the Group’s
total borrowings amounted to RMB30,132,635,000, of which
current borrowings amounted to RMB3,384,810,000, while
its cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB600,642,000
only. The Group had capital commitments of approximately
RMB9,347,286,000, which were mainly related to various
concession projects and construction projects of the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Going concern basis (Continued)

92 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

Although the Group settled all its overdue loans during the
year ended 31 December 2022, in respect of those overdue
loans, the lenders previously had applied to the courts in the
PRC for property preservation measures and the Group's equity
interests in Zhejiang Qianjiang Biochemical Co., Ltd. (“Qianjiang
Biochemical”), which is the Group’s interest in an associate,
were frozen by the court orders. As at 31 December 2022
and the date of the consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue, 7.27% equity interests with carrying value
of RMB348,856,000 and 2.52% equity interests with carrying
value of RMB120,838,000 have not yet been released from the
property preservation respectively.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the

Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the assumptions that the Group will continue to operate as a
going concern notwithstanding the conditions prevailing as at
31 December 2022 and subsequently thereto up to the date
when the consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue. In order to mitigate the liquidity pressure, to improve its
financial position, and to sustain the Group as a going concern,
certain plans and measures have been and will be taken by the
Group which include, but are not limited to, the following:

A% 13 AR A 7 Annual Report 2022 4 & i &

2.

TEETREREE(A)

2.1

RREXE(EF)
211 FEAAELEE(F)

REAEEREZE=_ZT ==
F+ZA=+—RHIEFEE
HEEBHRER  BRAULA
BB E 88 E A EE
BRERBEMERDER  ~&
BRI 8T AL 2R
MEBERAB(EIER]D
AR (BN A EE R E R
AR ER) B ER TS
/%r\\lil ° if’g::i‘F:
A=+ —BRAHGTBHR
RERENEBS KRB
B A R # 348,856,000 7T #J
7.27%REREEEARKE
120,838,000 JT #J 2.52%f%
EHABRIERS

Lﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi
rm%%ﬁLﬁiﬁﬁﬁ

BER-_T-_—_F+=A
—+—HAREBREESHY
BHRRERETZBEHEAR
HIR FaER - A0t B R
RINBRBARE B S E AR
BRREEELEEMRE - &
FRAEBESE N  WEH
MR - WHERAERES
iﬁmﬂ’$¢@E%Wﬁ
14 EREUE T 5T 8 R & i

?ﬂ@$ﬁﬁ%?@%ﬁ:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Going concern basis (Continued)

@)

(i)

(iii)

The Group has plans to divest certain of the Group's
concession projects and construction projects. In the
meantime, the Group is also actively looking for strategic
investors to invest in certain existing projects of the
Group so as to enhance the capital structure and reduce
overall financing expenses of the Group;

The Directors are of the view that they have the
ability to manage the progress of the projects from
time to time and defer the payment schedule of the
borrowings in these projects, if necessary. The Group
has unutilised project loan facilities from banks to
provide financing of up to RMB9,252,242,000 to satisfy
part of the construction cost payable and committed
capital expenditure in the next twelve months from 31
December 2022. The Group has also initiated the process
to obtain new project loans to fund the Group’s existing
and new concession projects and construction projects.
The Directors believe that these unutilised facilities will
continue to be available to the Group and they are
confident that they will be able to obtain such project
loans from banks and other financial institutions as and

when needed;

The Group will actively obtain additional new sources of
financing as and when needed;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Going concern basis (Continued)

(iv)  The borrowings from Caiyun International Investment
Limited (”Caiyun Investment”), a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, amounting to RMB961,717,000 as at 31
December 2022 were classified as current liabilities. The
Group is in active negotiations with Caiyun Investment for
renewal and extension of the relevant borrowings. The
Directors are confident that the renewal and extension

of the relevant borrowings will be completed within

reasonable time period; and

(v)  The Group is actively communicating with the lenders and
has requested them to apply for release of the remaining
2.52% frozen equity interests in Qianjiang Biochemical
with carrying value of investment in associates of
RMB120,838,000 as at the date of the consolidated

financial statements were authorised for issue.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) have reviewed the
Group's cash flow projections prepared by management. The
cash flow projections cover a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2022. On the basis of the successful
implementation of the plans and measures described above in
the foreseeable future and after assessing the Group’s current
and forecasted cash positions, Directors are of the opinion that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within twelve months from 31 December 2022.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate

to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going

concern basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)

211 HEAEEE(EF)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as
a going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

2.1.2 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKAS 16

BB GFHERIF 165 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB EFERIEI7HR (BRIA) BEAX

Amendments to HKFRSs
BAVBEREEL (BFTA)

The adoption of the amended standards does not have
significant impact on the financial information.
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Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BEEMBIRELEDNEIR (BRIA) B iEZR 2 Rt

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use

M BERSZE —HREEAAZAEHEA

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

— BiTAaHKRAR

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

ERVBRELEN —ZE-NEFE_Z_ZFFE
B

RNEIERT M ERH M E
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

ZRA=+—HLFE

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.3 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020
and February 2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

BB EIRELERNETR

(BE—ZE-_ZF+AK

—E-—F - Az BERVBWmEER
F75 (BFRTA) )

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEVBREERFE109 &
EASTERIE28% (B5]4)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
BBMGWEERE 1698 (BFIA)
Amendments to HKAS 1

BEBGFERIE S (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BAGEERE 15 R BB RS LR

BEEHREFE25 (BTA)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BERGFTERIE’H (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BB GFERIE125 (BRTA)

TEETREREE(A)

RREXE(EF)
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98 445 181 1% oK A S BT 5T AR
BT BB RE £

2.1

Insurance Contracts’

R A R

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

REEREBERAAGELEZRANEELETA?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

EREENEEEE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

EESBERARYRIERY RBAETERRESHNEI(ZE_FF)!

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

related

B BE L RE

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

BRI 2ER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

HE-—RGMELNEERBERM BTN

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 1. RZZEZ=F—-—HF—H%
ZERENFEERRE
B o
2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2. R—ERFE RS 2ER
determined. 1) E B AR -
3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024. 3. R-ZT-_mME—-A—B3k

216 B th o 4 S A 2
2 -

The impact of new standards and amendments to standards
that issued but not effective is still under assessment by the
Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 REANRRAIRERS S
BB

2.2.1 Subsidiaries 22.1 {1 B 2\ &

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group is depicted in note 2.3.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and consolidated balance sheet respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised

at cost.

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the

consolidated balance sheet.

2.2.4 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or

made payments on behalf of the other entity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 REANRRAIRERS S

(Continued) BE(£)
2.2.4 Equity method (Continued) 224 B Eat L (4E)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary

to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy depicted in note
2.13.

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within

equity attributable to owners of the Company.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 REANRRAIRERS S

(Continued) BE(£)

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests (Continued) 225 BEREREZZE (; %ii)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account EAREB AL EZGIRE -

ﬂzﬂ%@iﬁwaﬁﬁT
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity ﬁ%ﬁ%é{,ﬁ%é]\ﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁé*
SEARE REBEMT
ARBESEEAFEER
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently FrE MEREEZIHNIERE

for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control

is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes

accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
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If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is VR NGI R
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

where appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Business combinations not under common control

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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23 FHEEHTHELSH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred,;

ii. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

iii.  equity interests issued by the Group;

iv.  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement; and

V. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

consideration transferred;

ii. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity;
and

iii. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations not under common control
(Continued)

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or

loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

2.6

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the executive directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

2.6.1

2.6.2

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional currency

and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or
are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis within
other gains or losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
2.6.3 Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,

as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHEBME(F)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 ME - -BERFZE

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss accounts
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Plants and buildings 20-50 years
Machinery 10-30 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Electronic equipment and others 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction, which
is stated at actual construction cost less any impairment loss.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when completed
and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.13).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained

earnings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of investment properties to its residual value over

its estimated useful life. The estimated useful life is as follows:

Plants and buildings

2.9 Intangible assets
2.9.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as depicted in note 2.13. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal

management purposes.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued) 29 B EE(HE)
2.9.2 Development expenditure 292 R EH

When the future economic benefits become apparent as
a project progresses into the development stage the costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are capitalised as
intangible assets when recognition criteria are fulfilled and tests
for impairment are performed annually. Other development
expenditures that do not meet those criteria are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as expenses are not recognised as assets in subsequent periods.
Capitalised development costs are transferred to technical
know-how when the assets are ready for use.

2.9.3 Operating concessions
The detailed accounting policy of operating concessions is
depicted in note 2.11.

2.9.4 Unfulfilled contract rights
Unfulfilled contract rights represent the fair value of unfulfilled
contracts in excess of the carrying value for unfulfilled
construction contracts acquired through business combination.
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2.9.5 Licenses 295 &
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2.9.6 Technical know-how and software

Acquired technical know-how and software are capitalised on
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

2.9.7 Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life

using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Operating concessions 16-30 years
Unfulfilled contract rights 30 years
Licenses 5-54 years
Technical know-how and software 5-47 years

2.10 Land use rights
Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for
land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining

lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter.

Land use rights

2.11 Service concession arrangements
The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”). The service concession arrangements
consist of Build — Operate — Transfer (the “BOT") arrangements
and Transfer — Operate — Transfer (the "TOT"”) arrangements. Under
the BOT arrangements, the Group carries out construction work of
the facilities of the sewage and reclaimed water treatment, water
supply or solid waste treatment for the Grantors and receives in
return a right to operate the facilities of service project concerned
for a specified period of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in
accordance with the pre-established conditions set by the Grantors,
the service project should be transferred to the Grantors with nil
consideration at the end of the operation period. A TOT arrangement
is similar to a BOT arrangement, except that the Group pays
consideration for the right to operate the facilities of the wastewater
treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment that has been

built.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities as Grantors will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the facilities, and retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the facilities at the
end of the Service Concession Period. Each of these service concession
arrangements is governed by a contract and, where applicable,
supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the
relevant governmental authority that set out, inter alia, performance
standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered
by the Group, and specific obligations levied on the Group to restore
the facilities to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the
Service Concession Period and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.

2111 Consideration given by the Grantor
(i) Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model

A financial asset (receivables under a service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the Grantor for the construction
services rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor during the Service
Concession Period. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the Grantor contractually guarantees
to pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users of the public service and the specified or
determinable amounts. The financial asset (receivable
under a service concession arrangement) is accounted for
in accordance with the policy set out for financial assets
measured at amortised cost under note 2.14.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)
2111 Consideration given by the Grantor (Continued)

(i)

Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model (Continued)

During the construction periods, the Group recognises a
contract asset (note 2.12) and accounts for the significant
financing component in the arrangement. When the
construction services are completed, the contract asset
would be classified and measured as receivables under a
service concession arrangement accordingly.

When the Group receives a payment during the
concession period, it will apportion such payment
between (i) a repayment of the financial asset (if any),
which will be used to reduce the carrying amount of
financial receivables on the consolidated balance sheet, (ii)
interest income, will be recognised as revenue in profit or
loss and (iii) revenue from operating service in the profit
or loss. Revenue from operating service is calculated
based on cost plus a profit margin.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)
2111 Consideration given by the Grantor (Continued)

(if)

Service concession arrangements under
intangible asset model

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses and service. The
intangible asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible assets”
in note 2.9 above, which is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the Service Concession Period.

Revenue relating to operating service are accounted for
in accordance with the policy for note 2.29 “revenue
recognition” below. Costs for operating services are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

BE-_E-_—_F+

—A=+—HLEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)
2111 Consideration given by the Grantor (Continued)

2N BRBBIFEE T T (A)
2111 ﬁ%&#ﬁ%ﬂ?/ﬁ/ﬁ“(ﬁé’*)

(i)

Service concession arrangements under hybrid
mode/

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by
a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of

the consideration.

(i) 22 B T 4R
BT E L
WAEEAELEIR
R RTS 5 B K
CRMEEMERLE
E SBEEEMRIA
BRI VIR EREND
FEEER -

Therefore in this arrangement it is necessary to divide A RZLHEF B
the operator’s contract asset during the construction Hﬁ’;@éﬁﬁﬂﬁé\,’jﬁé
aN v

period into two components, a financial asset component
based on the guaranteed amount and an intangible asset
for the remainder. When the construction services are
completed, the two components of the contract asset

DRME D BERE
REFHNEHEER
BEEE - BERS
TR ANEED

would be classified and measured as a financial asset and (8 78 A 3B 5 #8 48 e
an intangible asset accordingly. RemEERERE
EDEMETE -

2112 B #ERHRIRE

e e T gE R
the concession arrangement is calculated as the estimated total FRIGE A FE IR (HT4
BER NI EGH -
MERBILA ﬁT%ﬂETEEﬂin
market rate applicable to similar construction services rendered Rz EEERREUMNE
TR ERNELEERBH R
TS BERMGE -

2112 Construction and upgrade services
The fair value of the construction and upgrade service under

construction cost plus a profit margin. The profit margins are
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based on prevailing

in similar location at date of agreement.

Revenue relating to construction and upgrade services are BERALREEBENE
F U AL FE2. 2989 B3R 3|

BE o

accounted for in accordance with the policy in note 2.29.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)

QNMBHETEE R (H)

2113 Contractual obligations to restore the
infrastructure to a specified level of
serviceability
The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as
a condition of its licences, that is (i) to maintain the sewage
and reclaimed water treatment and water distribution plants
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or (ii)
to restore the plants to a specified condition before they
are handed over to the Grantor at the end of the service
concession arrangements. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the sewage and reclaimed water treatment
and water distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out
for note 2.27 “provisions” below.

2114 Interest income
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
("HKFRS 15"), a receivable is recognised only if the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises
the related revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised
when a customer pays consideration, or is contractually required
to pay consideration and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. For a single contract with
the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHTHERBEE)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued) QNENEEREGHVEE(E)
An impairment of a contract asset is measured, presented and BEHZT214 GHEERER
disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset under note 2.14. BERREEZSHEESZ 2

5l R BE 5R o
The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract MAEBBERETREASRER
with a customer within contract assets if the Group expects to recover FeEdmMEELEZIZESERKA - Ale
those costs. HEBXABRRBAERNEE -
Generally, the Group receives advances from its customers which are —RmE  AEEREEFPKRZ
short-term in nature. The advances previously included in trade and BRBREEME - BEFAES
other payables are reclassified to contract liabilities. Ko L & 5P FRIE B B R E T R

REHWETRE -

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets 213ERMEENRE
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are BEERAGHEHAHENE
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, FEETE#HE mAESTFAR
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate —AEBRE  WESHXREBR
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment FEEONREES S ER
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the AR UR B SRE - A BHK
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 15 o & B %8 7R BR @ (B 3 A~ 7] Y [8]
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount B EMmEESETHREINR -
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher MEBEBERAEERDMERSB
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For EaWEl S EMEE - o s
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the BRAEELATEREEERAHEME
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows AEEMENRSSE - BFLHER
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets B BERABRBLIREMEE
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other NEEMAR(HEeELESN)ME
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible BAHNRERARELAELRS
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. HoEBREMNIEREE(BER

SN RS R E AR ZE A4S
O (& e
2.14 Other investments in equity securities 2QIARBREAFBHENHMIRE
2141 Classification 21 5B
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following rEBERESREENEA
measurement categories: IATErE85 -
. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either o EBmRATEGEB
through other comprehensive income (“OCI") or through Hib R U as ([ H b
profit or loss), and e W m]) kiE R
BR)GTENSRE
E R
. those to be measured at amortised cost. o REBHEKAFTENSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

2.14.1

2.142

2143

Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investment when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued)
2143 Measurement (Continued)
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

116

their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

(@)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEETHHREME(EF
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued) 214 RIRAF/H W HMIRE (F)
2143 Measurement (Continued) 2143 5T E (&)
(a) Debt instruments (Continued) (a) /ﬁffsz (%)

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of MNAFEFEZ
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial BEZFH A

assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are

H b &5 & W
@ BRI E
EHRERE

taken through OCI, except for the recognition REEemE
of impairment gains or losses, interest income EZEE
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are ZEEEBRS
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial mEEEXM
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss e kAL
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from A LA A & 5t
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other = HHEEHF
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial A H fth 45 & W
assets is included in finance income using the @HETE o BRE
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange BEZHT AR
gains and losses are presented in other gains/ fib 47 & W &
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented MR 18 = P
as separate line item in the statement of profit or PERER &
loss. HEE - FE
WA R SN BE U
wmRIEB®
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B ERTRH
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R Bt

L E BB ER
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHERBEAE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued) 214 ARAFB SN EMIIRE ()
2143 Measurement (Continued) 2143 FrE (&)
(@) Debt instruments (Continued) (a) EFELA(E
. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for . LA FERFE
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. BE#FHF A
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is BE: 54
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in B R IEE
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/ AR FEE
(losses) in the period in which it arises. 2 B EZFET
A HAth 47 & I
w2 EE T
AFEFEER
H#®tAE
wmErE o BER
KAFEFE

BHEBHA

BEFAEZE

BREZ K H
HEERER
R IR
EXBHREREF
2R EAM
Wz /(& 8)
M oo
(b) Equity investments b) #zmITA
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments KEBRAEBRAKE
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has BER IR ANFEE -
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity MAREEREDE
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification BERAKREZAFE
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following Bl REEREAM
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such FEWERY - B
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as IR ER &
other income when the Group's right to receive payments BESEHHSBEAFE
is established. KmkEBEER -

AR5 B B AN R
ML - BREKRE
ZRBEBEBNBED
ERRBEMUEA -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEETHHREME(EF
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued) 214 RIRAF/H W HMIRE (F)
2143 Measurement (Continued) 2143 it E (4&)

(b) Equity investments (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement
of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from

other changes in fair value.

2144 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses (“ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) simplified approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for receivables under service concession
arrangements, trade receivables, amounts due from customers
for contract work and contract assets. Impairment on other
receivables is measured as either 12-month ECL or lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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2.

120

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently have
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group have also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,

such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.16 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

3 the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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Bz ——#+-_A=+—HILEFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Inventories 2177 E

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note
2.14 for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call
with financial institutions. Bank deposits which are restricted to use
are classified as “restricted cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from
cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Share capital 220 &<

122

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity

as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21 Perpetual capital instruments

Perpetual capital instruments with no contractual obligation for the
Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holders are
classified as equity instruments. They are initially recorded at the
proceeds received within equity. Discretionary interest declared by the
Group to the holders of perpetual capital instrument is treated as
dividend.

2.22 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.23 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE T -_—_F#+-_A=+—HItFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Borrowing costs 224 B R A

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

2.25 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is he tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

2251 Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its
tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2252 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor

taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the

related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses, and does not give rise to

equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
2252 Deferred income tax (Continued)

225 AR IEREFR S B (&)
2252 EAEFr 1S B (4B )

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special
tax deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts for such
allowances as tax credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax expense. A deferred
income tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are
carried forward as deferred income tax assets.
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2.26 Employee benefits 226 REREA
2261 Defined contribution plan 2061 EBE BT E

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees’ payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administrated funds managed by the PRC

government.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued)
2262 Defined benefit plan

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service

and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such

bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and

settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised

immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued) 226EEREFI (&)

2262 Defined benefit plan (Continued)
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

2.27 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised

for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Government grants

TEETREREE(A)

2.28 B %8 B

128

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and

the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that

they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.29 Revenue recognition

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. This

may be at a single point in time or over time.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following

criteria is met:

3 when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

3 when the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

o when the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternate use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.29 Revenue recognition (Continued)

229 AHERR (#B)

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises

revenue at a single point in time at which the performance obligation

is satisfied for the sale of that good or service when control has been

passed.

If control of the product or service transfers over time, revenue is

recognised over the period of the contract by measuring the progress

towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.

2291

2292

2293

Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised at the point in time when the control
of the product is transferred to the customer which generally

coincides with delivery and acceptance of the product sold.

Rendering of construction and upgrade
services

Revenue from construction and upgrade services is recognised
over time by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based
on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage

of total estimated costs for each contract.

Rendering of other services

Revenue from wastewater treatment, solid waste treatment and
other services is recognised over the period by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases

The Group leases land use rights on long-term contracts and offices

and warehouses on both short-term and long-term contracts.

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for
land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining

lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter.

Rental contracts for offices and warehouses are typically made for
fixed periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but

leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by

the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and

instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

3 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with

similar terms, security and conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease

payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in

the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease

payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
3 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date

less any lease incentives received;

3 any initial direct costs; and

O restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued) 2300 & (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of

adopting the new leasing standard.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.

2.32 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged.

The Group's derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.33 Earnings per share
2331 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

2332 Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares;
and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ot B 7% R 2% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-_A=+—RHILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.34 Non-current assets held for sale

2UBFELHENERBEE

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an
investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or joint
venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity
method in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, except for financial assets within the scope
of HKFRS 9 which continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.35 Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Except for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform in which the
Group applies the practical expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial liability are modified, the Group assess whether the revised
terms result in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers
that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received, and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for
as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial liabilities’ original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted
to the carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

risk (including foreign exchange risk and fair value interest rate risk

and cash flow interest rate), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions being settled in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group entities.

The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises from the
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group's foreign operations is managed
primarily through financing activities denominated in
the relevant foreign currencies. The group entities are
exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies
other than their functional currencies, primarily with
respect to the US dollars (“US$"), Thai Baht (“THB"”) and
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional
Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit its exposure to
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring and minimising

its net foreign currency position.
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ZRA=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. The Group’s interest-bearing
bank borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents are stated at amortised cost and not revalued
on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and
expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as earned/

incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has floating rate
borrowings amounting to RMB11,968,246,000 (2021:
RMB11,856,091,000).
increase/decrease in the market interest rates by 100

If there would be a general

basis points, with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss would have increased/decreased
by approximately RMB83,582,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB75,441,000). The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in market interest rates had occurred as
at the 31 December 2022 and 2021 and had applied
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk to those
financial instruments in existence at those dates. The
estimated 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s estimate of a reasonably possible change
in market interest rates over the period until the next
annual year end.
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3.

140

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets is the

carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents,

trade and other receivables, receivables under service concession

arrangements, amounts due from customers for contract work

and contract assets.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group's

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
85l

Group definition of category

FEEHEERANRE

BEERER (&)

31 W¥RAKREE (&)
(b) 1=/ E
ERRRZEERERTE
B AEEFEYHEHOR
BENSAERAR AT
REEE BERALEE
Y B 5 RE M EKEE
AR 5 5 5 40 M 22 TS 0 U
2B AN IREREFR
BRANBEMEEE -

EAREERAEEBEE
BHBREMEOT

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

BRRNEEBERENEE

Performing

Underperforming

2=

Non-performing

T8

Financial assets for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition

B Y16 T R LA SRS A [ 3F 8 8 B 3 N
ETREE

Financial assets for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, but are not credit-impaired

B ¥R HERR LA SR A5 A B b B R 1 M R
EREERENSREE

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date

RRERHHREERENSHEE

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less
than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime

128 AFEEEE - BRERERAFHE
12 2 AMEE - TRHERIRATARE
REHTE

Lifetime expected losses

FHRHER

Lifetime expected losses

FHRYEER
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Cash deposits at banks and restricted cash

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of loss

on such assets.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. Future
cash flows for each group of receivables are estimated on
the basis of historical default rates, adjusted to reflect the
effects of existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

For the year end
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables with known insolvencies are assessed
individually for impairment allowances and are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators of insolvencies include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual payments. Trade
receivables without known insolvencies are assessed on a

collective basis based on shared credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables have been assessed for impairment
on a collective basis based on different credit risk
characteristics. Trade receivables are categorised as

follows for assessment purpose:

Group 1: Trade receivables due from local governments;

Group 2: Trade receivables due from related parties which
included mainly state-owned enterprises;

Group 3: Trade receivables due from other state-owned

enterprises;

Group 4: Trade receivables due from other third parties
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE Tt A=t —HIEEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MERKBEREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BiEREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EHER (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) B 5 JE U 3 5
(&
On that basis, as at 31 December 2022, the loss TUbER R
allowance provision for the trade receivables was ——%+=A :Jr—
determined as follows. The expected credit losses below B 85EKRKREE
also incorporated forward looking information. BEETIREOT - T
XHTEBEEBET
ERIEEER -
Group 1 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
At 31 December 2022 1year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
£-4
RZBZZF+ZA=1-A 15 50R 1225 123 3F4E 4ENLE B
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FEeE (ARETT) 758,267 359,848 206,216 64,598 82,736 1,471,665
Expected loss rate BHEER 0.08% 0.14% 0.23% 0.23% 8.32%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) ~ BHE&E (ARET) 623 505 480 147 6,883 8,638
Group 2 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
At 31 December 2022 1year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
-4
RZBZZF+ZA=1-A 15 50R 1225 123 3F4E 4EN L 2%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FmesE (ARETT) 27,618 13,564 432,658 264,730 1,445,599 2,184,169
Expected loss rate BHERER 1.00% 0.29% 0.42% 131% 32.11%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) ~ EE&E (ARET) 276 39 1,805 3,480 464,167 469,767
Group 3 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
At 31 December 2022 1year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
#=4
RZBZZF+ZA=1-A 15 50R 1225 123 3E4E 4EH L aE
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FoesE ARETr) 48,184 26,150 1,089,428 365,121 123,688 1,652,571
Expected loss rate BHEEX 1.74% 1.65% 1.92% 5.92% 34.54%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  [SIERE (ARBTT) 840 81 20,938 21,612 0 86,538
Group 4 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
At 31 December 2022 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
Ema
RZBZZE+=A=1-A 15 MUA 1228 123 3E4E 4EYE ag
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) Rmes (A\RET) 186,624 63,499 250,944 114,065 290,230 905,362
Expected loss rate BHEEX 6.00% 16.23% 27.94% 45.33% 70.04%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) 5% (ARET) 11,206 10,307 70,118 51,705 203,287 346,623
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BiXERERE(&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 M¥EBRER &)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EHER (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) B 5 JfE W E
(%)
As at 31 December 2021, the loss allowance provision R-—_ZTE-_—F+=-A1
for the trade receivables was determined as follows. The =+—8B EBESEHK
expected credit losses below also incorporated forward RIEE B EETIRD
looking information. T TXWBEHEE
BETEEAELE
# o
Group 1 Less than 110 2to0 3to QOver
At 31 December 2021 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
-4
R=B=-£+ZA=+-H (£ 1224 223 3E4E AN £ 4%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEAE (\RETT) 649,629 285,507 92,267 23,805 79440 1,130,648
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.10% 0.15% 0.21% 0.21% 0.24%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) &% (AEHT) 631 439 193 51 188 1,502
Group 2 Less than Tto 2to0 3to QOver
At 31 December 2021 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
-4
R=B=-F£+ZA=t-H 1EUR 1224 2E3E 3E4E AN E 4%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEAE (\RETT) 19,236 286,761 282,527 684,203 779751 2,052,478
Expected loss rate BHEER 0.72% 151% 3.17% 6.58% 19.44%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) 5% (\RET) 138 4323 8,948 45,042 151,553 210,004
Group 3 Less than 110 2to 3to QOver
At 31 December 2021 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
#=4
RZ2=-%#1=A=1-H 1L 1226 2235 3545 4EHE 28
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REA% (\RETT) 47280 1,094,853 365,121 109,295 38,721 1,655,270
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.76% 2.27% 5.00% 7.78% 2243%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) 8% & (\RETiL) 360 24877 18,271 8,499 8,684 60,691
Group 4 Less than 110 2to 3to QOver
At 31 December 2021 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
Ema
RZ2=-%1+=A=1-H 1L 1226 2335 3545 AEHE 28
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ REAH (ARETT) 304,023 314,743 130,657 202,120 78134 1029677
Expected loss rate kil b 2.15% 8.70% 14.38% 20.36% 37.48%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  ElEfiE (ARETTT) 6,530 27,395 18,795 41,14 29,82 123,144
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE T+ ZA=t—HLFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MRRARER(EF)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BiEREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EHER (&)
(i) Other receivables (iif) E 1t JE Y 5 H
The Group expects that the credit risk associated with AEBETEH - HEEY
other receivables due from local governments and related 75 AT K B B U5 B
parties is considered to be low, since they have a strong HibEWFRIAAR B

capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. The Group has assessed that the ECL rate
for the amounts due from local governments and related
parties are immaterial under 12 months ECL method and
considered them to have low credit risk, and thus the

loss allowance is immaterial.

For other receivables other than those from local
governments and related parties, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past
experience.

EERBRE  RE

EREHAHEEN
AERHREHES
HNREREER - &
SECFE  RIR12
BAEBEEEBER
A R WO T R
BB SR TEHE
BEEBREXYAEXR
ERRZEREAR
ERENEERR
At B R AEEY T &
K o

BER 2K B 0 77 BUF K
A Bt 77 O B WO R R O
By H b 8 U SR IE
5 OEEERBES
HHTEIBELR
E MBS T R E
Bl 77 3 HTE B YR
TR H A] Y [E] 1 4F AT
f e
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BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MKREKRERE(E)
31 W¥RAKREE (&)
(b) =/AEE (&)
(iii) H ft fE Y 3% H

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ili)  Other receivables (Continued)

(&
The Group considers the probability of default whether RKEBERENHNHA
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on BN REERRERZ

an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To BES @RS PR
BRIEEHA - BT
EERRBRST KNIE
Lt AEBEEEE
REBBEERD
B [ B B R ) OK T R
H B8 E & & B (e 4
Lt o AEEZE R A
B A& B AT A
WERTREMEE R o L
HBEUTERZ:

assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

146

external credit rating

actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrowers, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers and changes in
the operating results of the borrowers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ T —"F+_A=+—HIFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MERKBEREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 W¥RAKREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EHER (&)
(i) Other receivables (Continued) (i) A b J& 4g 5 B
(&
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting REREBE A&
date using the probability of default approach to measure B 5 B & A R OE K
expected credit losses. The probabilities of default mERREEEE -
rates are estimated based on comparable companies AEITRE D T o
with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects BABMERRESEM
the probability weighted outcome and reasonable and ERAFEHRAAE L&
supportable information that is available at the reporting NAEVEITE © &%ET
date about past events, current conditions and forward- & I B AEE R 0 A A
looking credit risk information. As at 31 December 2022, AR #E B B r &
the probability of default applied for performing other SNEBBATEMY -

receivables ranged from 0.04% to 5.39% (2021: 0.04%
to 4.96%), and the loss given default was estimated to
59.48% (2021: 53.12%). The expected loss rate of the
non-performing other receivables was estimated to 100%.
The movement of the Group’s provision for impairment
of other receivables are set out in note 23(b).

2 A R K AT BE
ERERESNAE
AXFHER -R-_F

—ZE+ZRA=+—
= =
HFTARENBEN

TF0.04%%E539% (=
T —F 0.04%=
496%) BB X
5t 559.48% (=%
— — 4 :53.12%) °
R H g Uy 3R IE K9
TEHEE XA
100% ° 7N & B H b
R U5 R TE R B 9 S O
2815 g8 M A
23(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MRRARER(EF)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 W¥RAKREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EHER (&)
(iii) Other receivables (Continued) (i) EH 1t f& 4 5 H
(/ééf
Performing  Underperforming  Non-Performing Total
EE B TR L]
At 31 December 2022 et
+=A=t-A
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FRABARETR) 1,565,352 - 157,353 1,722,705
Expected loss rate BHERZ 0.90% — 100.00%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) ~ BEEE(AR%T) 14,035 — 157,353 171,388
At 31 December 2021 RZB--&
+ZA=+-H
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FEAE(AR%TT) 1,878,251 = 104,937 1,983,188
Expected loss rate BHERX 0.47% = 100.00%
Loss allowance provision RMB'000)  BREBARET ) 8,810 = 104,937 113,747
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Receivables under service concession
arrangements and contract assets

The Group has assessed the allowance for credit losses
for its receivables under service concession arrangements
and contract assets which were mainly attributable to
provision for construction and upgrade services and
operating of the concession facilities. As the customers
are primarily local governments and PRC state-owned
entities, the Directors considers the credit risk is low. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using the probability of default approach to measure
expected credit losses. The probabilities of default
rates are estimated based on comparable companies
with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects
the probability weighted outcome and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forward-
looking credit risk information. As at 31 December
2022, the probability of default applied ranged from
0.04% to 5.39% (2021: from 0.12% to 0.56%), and
the loss given default was estimated to 59.48% (2021:
53.12%). There has been no significant increase in credit
risk in the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements with gross amount of RMB7,588,356,000

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year end

ed 31 December 2022
+ZA=+—RHLFE

EE(E)
MEEREEE)

(b) 1=/ k(&)

(iv) REBEFFEE L

f# TE/?/E&“ Wk E
REHWEE
AEECHRBE T
KERZHEREHNE
ETHERREE
ZREHNREHREE
N R AR 7S A R 7
KBS %ﬁ)
MEEBBERG
ﬁﬁﬁommgﬁi
EAEMH BT EHR
EEEER EFR
BEEARBEIRK-
REFREBH - K&
[ 7 A 38 AU AR
BEHEHEEES -
LAEITIRE DT © 8
HBERIEEBEMHE
AFRNELERAD
RIEITIRET - %5 E
F2 Bl A% 2 o e 45 SR A
@& B ES
WERBBEEMH &
AT AR S & A BE M= A
EREENEGETX
BEH RZT=Z=
F#+=-RA=+—8 "
FRIERMENBEN
F0.04%%E539% (=
TZ—F 0.12%=
0.56%) ' & #) B X
st A259.48% (=%
— & :53.12%) °
B )56 R A K -
REERBIFTEE
ZHE T K K E
(%_$::¢+_
BR=+—BM@EEs
A R #7,588,356,000
T(ZEZ—F : A
R ¥ 6,509,663,000
T REHWEET
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

3.

150

ZRA=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv) Receivables under service concession

v)

arrangements and contract assets (Continued)

at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB6,509,663,000) and
contract assets of gross amount of RMB12,224,795,000
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB13,211,280,000), since
their initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contract

At the end of the reporting period, the Directors have
performed impairment assessment, and concluded that
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of the financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly, any loss allowance for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group is measured at an amount
equal to 12m ECL. No loss allowance was recognised as
at 31 December 2022 in accordance with HKFRS 9 as the
amount is immaterial. Details of the financial guarantee
contracts are set out in note 37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet funding
requirement for operations and monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s cash on the basis of expected cash flow. The
Directors have prepared cash flow projections for the year
ending 31 December 2023 and are of the opinion that, taking
into account the plans and measures as depicted in note 2.1,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within twelve months from 31 December 2022.

The Group will assess the relevant future costs and benefits and
pursue such options as are appropriate. The Directors consider
that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient financial
resources to meet its operation needs.

Hz—-—ZT——

+=-A=+—HLFE

3. BKEKRERE (&)
31 W¥RAKREE (&)

(c)

B &z EE
EEEETCABRENER S
NAREENEST R I
BEEHRESTEELAE
ERSHRETER - EEE
REHE—T-_=F+=A8
=+ HLEEENRSRE
TEA - WRA - LEEHEE
AR ET B RS iR
REBERBBERANEEED
REEERMHEASWEITH
BT _F+-A=+—
BE+—EA RPN 5
B

7452 B 5 37 14 4R B 6 SR G
7 B s I SR 3R
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BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

3.

152

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.

KRR EE (&)
31 W¥RAKREE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) nEEZEREE)
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into TROIMAEENS R A
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from & YRR A B 2A
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. As the Bl BEBELEEBREAHTH
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted HE RIS EBABEITHN - K
cash flows after consideration of overdue borrowings and AT BN S EAKEER
borrowings considered as default and cross-default, including HERRERBELHTRZX
interest payments computed using contractual rates, or, if BAHAMERENE LHKRE
floating, based on current rates. RFAESRE  BEREED

= (M mZE A E - 8
REVEAR R ) s E oA E A
R
2022
—ECCE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRBBREME
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1year but 2 years
1year or within within After Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
MENLR BB1E BiB2F
ARER  EMER  ERSER SE4 @t BEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT  ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Borrowings (6 3,305,917 3,158,673 17,907,713 9,187,778 33,560,081 30,132,635
Trade and other payables (*) EAREMBENTE) 8,681,650 36,461 — 14,702 8732813 8,730,836
Lease liabilities HERE 13,076 4,830 12,983 11,286 42,175 39,008
12,000,643 3,199,964 17,920,696 9,213,766 42,335,069 38,902,479

Maximum exposure of financial quarantee  EfERARMNSEARR
contracts (note 37) Ho (H37) 220,745

— 220,745 220,745
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Hz—-—ZT——

+—A=+—HLFE

3. BKEKRERE (&)
31 W¥RAKREE (&)

The Group also provides guarantees to borrowings of a joint

venture and an associate, which will have contractual cash

flows only if the joint venture and associate default the

repayment (Note 39(0)).

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) ZEESEE (&)
2021
—E2--%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SHABRRE RN
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years
1 year or within within After Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
MELR BRE BiBE
FHRER  BIER  ERSER SEE o BHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETn ARET:n
Borrowings B3 22,138,787 5,545,568 731,892 2,470,762 30,887,009 28,655,546
Trade and other payables (*) EAREMBEATER) 5713951 2,681,428 54,834 100,000 8550213 8547352
Lease liabilities HEEE 15,851 7,764 28,366 26,361 78,842 45271
27,868,589 8,234,760 815,092 2,597,623 39,516,064 37,248,169
Maximum exposure of financial quarantee 1T 1EIRA ARG AER
contracts (note 37) #o (FF37) 287,140 = = = 287,140 287,140
o Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable. @ TREENEIRAMER

i FE S BEIR o
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JiE]
=N

oS¢ o> > B
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—BLEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, sell assets to reduce debt or raise funding through
capital markets as necessary.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “total equity” as
shown in the consolidated financial statements plus net borrowings.

3.

KRR EE (&)
32 EXERE

AEENEAERENE O /RE
REBMERFERLE  ARKRE
RECH L SEMAEEEE R
HHE  UREFRENEAR
BRDEARKA -

BRBAARERLEE K& E
Mg ARRMN TRENRES
BOAREREEAN  HEEBE
RO EBRBRERTISESE
B (MBE) -

AEERBEEABLXERE
A o BZ L RIBF AT R ABRE A
AE - FEBREFEE(BRES
HEEBBRARAENERIEED
HEFDRRERASEEYS
H o ERRA M RERAR

ISR MERFREFTE -

2022 2021

—E_-= - —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR T T

Total borrowings (note 30) & sk 42 %8 (M 7%30) 30,132,635 28,655,546
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 25) B ReERASEEY

(P 7E25) (600,642) (428,427)

Net borrowings ERF5RE 29,531,993 28,227,119

Total equity B 4,488,316 7,598,138

Total capital BEARBEEE 34,020,309 35,825,257

Gearing ratio BEABLE 87% 79%

The increase in the gearing ratio was resulted primarily from the
increase of borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

3.3 Financial instruments by category

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B fF B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

o ——

BEERER (&)

+=-A=+—HLFE

33 RENE HNEmMIA

2022 2021
B8 T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEK AT ENSREE
— Trade and other receivables - B REMEWKIE 6,853,772 7,342,173
— Receivables under service concession - RBET SR T
arrangements FEWGRIB 7,542,082 6,493,120
- Cash and cash equivalents - RENREEEY 600,642 428,427
— Restricted cash - XRFIRE 82,789 272,533
15,079,285 14,536,253
Financial assets at fair value BATEFENSHEE
— Financial asset at fair value through - UATFETEBEESFHTA
other comprehensive income Hittir e WammemiE 4,675 4,675
15,083,960 14,540,928
Financial liabilities EHMas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEK AT ENSRIAE
— Borrowings - B 30,132,635 28,655,546
— Trade and other payables (*) - B REMERFIA) 8,730,836 8,547,352
— Lease liabilities - HEAE 39,008 45,271
38,902,479 37,248,169

* Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable.

* T EERMN R TR &k H MR

IR °
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B=
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Fair value estimation
The Group’s financial instruments recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet are mainly receivables and financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost. The fair values of these financial instruments
approximate their carrying amounts.

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by levels of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing these financial statements are
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements. The assessment of
the going concern assumption involves making a judgement by the
Directors, at a particular point of time, about the future outcome
of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The Directors
consider that the Group has the capability to continue as a going
concern and the major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast significant
doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in note 2.1 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Service concession arrangements under financial
asset model

When the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade services
by a financial asset, significant judgement is exercised in determining
the fair values of the financial asset at initial recognition. Cash flow
forecast, effective interest rate and other factors are used in the
valuation model. Any changes in the expected cash flows, such as
forecasted unit price of service fee, operating costs and profit margins
of the operating services, will result in change in the carrying value of
the financial asset and the revenue recognised in concession period.

According to the service concession arrangements signed with the
Grantors, the unit price of service fee would be periodically adjusted
to compensate operating cost increase, including labour costs,
material costs, taxation, through a pricing mechanism which is still
subject to regulation by local government authorities. Judgement is
required in assessing whether increase in costs can be compensated
through unit price adjustment and the timing. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service
concession arrangements, the extent of development of the project

and status of negotiation with the government authorities.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

158

(9]

(d)

(e)

Impairment provision of trade and other
receivables

The Group records impairment provision of trade and other
receivables based on an assessment made by management on the
ECL of trade receivables. The evaluations focused on the customers’
settlement history and current ability to pay, and took into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customers operated. Provisions
are made where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. Impairment assessment requires
the use of judgement and estimates. The Group would revisit and
evaluate those assumptions related with ECL model periodically.

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Thailand and Indonesia. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the year in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date
or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
of goodwill has been determined based on fair value less costs to
disposal calculations, taking into account latest market information
and past experience. These calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A 7] Annual Report 2022 F [& i &

4. ETEEFHAF RHE (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

B 5 REMERFIRRE
B

AEBERBEEREYHE S EUR
HEMEEBEELOFTGEAR
B 5 RUGRIERERE - ZFT
HEHBITFPHNES EHTH
REMXfMEN YEEREFA
GREEEMENEERRTN
EER - —BEMHHLERBERAKR
HBNREE A AL R B - Y
SEHRE - RENHREERH
B e (5t o AN SR B B B X
R EEEREEEREED

B -

iR RIELRSHE
AEBEIEABMTE  FE -
FERERAHSH - BEFMEH
B R A EAHE - XA H
EBBRE  TLRBRAHY
SRBEEHTHRE - MESER
MRRBSERENSDENS
TR BEEEEYEREY
B B E O T PR A3 B ROR AT AR
BHARE -

EEEERBARKALAERD
A AR R B B RN IR
BERE  SHREETEREZR
LBIBRBREEBENREMRSHE
E-HERPANGERAELES
Bt AR

B R B P
MEREAERBERAHAAE
{26 55t SRR B9 B UK A A%
g B0 L B M A RS R
B -AENTRE S A REA
TEABRERANHHERE
REHDHENRBELRHERE
TEE - ETAMHEBREY
HIBT R A5t -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Impairment assessment of intangible assets (other
than goodwill)

The carrying amounts of items of intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with the
accounting policy as disclosed in note 2.9 to the financial statements.
The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use, and calculations of which involve the use of
estimates. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated
future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in an
adjustment to the estimated impairment provision.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating decision-

maker of the Group. Management has determined the operating segments

based on reports reviewed by the executive directors of the Company for

the purpose of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business from product

and service perspective. The Group is organised into five business segments

as below:

(a)

Wastewater treatment project construction and operation;

Water supply project construction and operation;

Construction and sales of equipment;

Solid waste treatment project construction and operation;

Others, including operation and maintenance services and other
businesses.

B=E
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of revenue and gross profit
of each operating segment.

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company with
respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Unallocated assets mainly represented cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, certain prepayments and certain receivables of the group entities
engaging in multiple business segments. Management considered that it is
impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different segments.

Unallocated liabilities mainly represented certain borrowings, certain payables
and deferred income of the group entities engaging in multiple business
segments. Management considered that it is impracticable or not meaningful
in allocating to different segments.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER(F)

(i) Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i) HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLt
December 2022 are as follows: FEMDHBEEREARAZIHAT
Year ended 31 December 2022: BE-Z2-_-_+=-A=+—-H

LEE:
Wastewater Water Solid waste
treatment supply treatment
project project project
construction  construction Construction  construction
and and  and sales of and
operation operation  equipment operation Others  Unallocated Total
5K BB
REEA #KER BER REEA
BEREE RBEREE REHE RBEREE Hitr KR @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETn AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETR ARETn AR%ETxn
Gross segment revenue PHREEE 2,289,334 660,200 252,654 716,897 76,735 — 3,995,820
Inter-segment revenue P EPRAKE = - (206,498) — — — (206,498)
Revenue from external customers REMBEPHYHA 2,289,334 660,200 46,156 716,897 76,735 — 3789322
Revenue from contracts with HEPANZBA
customers
~ Recognised at a point in time - RE-KEER - 586,870 27,118 - — - 613,988
— Recognised at over time - RE-BERER 1,723,766 53,881 19,038 667,792 76,735 — 2541212
Revenue from other sources Htp A RR
- Finance income -BEWA 565,568 19,449 — 49,105 — — 634,122
Gross profit £ 704,093 14,575 1,154 18,394 15,632 - 753,848
Other income Hi A 1,358,701
Other gains — net Hitt S 38 (95,273)
Selling expenses HERX (42,031)
Administrative expenses THRAZ (1,029,308)
Net impairment losses on financial and £ & & 418 E i f&
contract assets BRFE (619,678)
Finance costs — net BERKFE (1,332,178)
Share of (loss)fprofit of investments MENEREANRARE
accounted for using the equity (BB)/&H38
method — net (12,124) - - (324) 36,008 - 23,560
Loss before income tax MERAIER (982,359)
Income tax expenses FEREAY (175,990)
Loss for the year ENER (1,158,349)
Depreciation and amortisation HEMEH (114,153) (368,672) (16,912) (297,942) (17,011) (12,948) (827,638)
Segment assets PREE 18,080,978 15,060,370 5,166,026 7,614,797 726,072 20,261 46,668,504
Segment assets include: NBEERE
Investments accounted for using the Bz & ABREIRE
equity method 57,964 - - 21,076 1,005,729 - 1,090,769
Segment liabilities AHER 11301511 17207371 5894442 5032528 1732637 1,011,699 42,180,188
Additions to non-current assets (other JERBEENARE
than financial instruments and (ERIAMEEHMEH
deferred income tax assets) BERIN) 1,524,580 156,055 11,289 163,412 24,490 8973 1,888,799
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DEER (&)
(i)  Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 () #H=E—Z—_—_F+=-A=+—81
December 2022 are as follows: (Continued) FENDHAEEREARTHIT :
(%)
Year ended 31 December 2021: BE-—_E-—%+=-HB=+—H
EFE
Wastewater Solid waste
treatment  Water Supply treatment
project project project
construction  construction ~ Construction  construction
and and  and sales of and
operation operation equipment operation Others  Unallocated Total
Kk 3
REEH #KER BER REEH
BEREE RBEREZ REHE BEREE it AARE @it

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR

Gross segment revenue PHREEE 3,387,304 921,809 185,511 754,765 79,798 — 5,329,187
Inter-segment revenue LRl = = (48,444) = = = (48,444)
Revenue from external customers RENBEEHKA 3,387,304 921,809 137,067 754,765 79,798 = 5,280,743
Revenue from contracts with BEPEHIHBA
customers
- Recognised at a point in time - RE-KEER — 700,091 18,550 — — = 718,641
- Recognised at over time -RE-RRER 2,697,007 172,748 118,517 695,990 79,798 — 3,764,060
Revenue from other sources Hi A RR
- Finance income -BERA 690,297 48,970 — 58,775 = = 798,042
Gross profit eS| 1,089,813 161,201 (1,574) 45,154 21,970 — 1,316,564
Other income EfA 54,080
Other gains — net HElEFE 164,333
Selling expenses HERX (48,374)
Administrative expenses GG (650,674)
Net impairment losses on financial and £ & R A& KB ERE
contract assets FEFE (419,125)
Finance costs — net BERATE (1,526,254)
Share of profit/(loss) of investments A& Wz E AR
accounted for using the equity RBEH/(BE)
method — net F5 36,370 8,862 16,457 (2,389) 1,928 17,289 78,517
Loss before income tax FERIER (1,030,933)
Income tax expenses FERAY (24,321)
Loss for the year ERBE (1,055,254)
Depreciation and amortisation RENEH (164,981) (251,987) (12,703) (204,445) (6,487) (22,725) (663,328)
Segment assets PHEE 23,136,847 8,425,005 5,985,077 8,418,512 1,772,449 687,730 48,425,620
Segment assets include: PBEERE
Investments accounted for using the  JAEZEARERE
equity method 58,287 — — 39,200 987,264 — 1,084,751
Segment liabilities AHEE 12,946,848 1,192,607 5,288,207 3,510,081 767,151 17,122,588 40,827,482
Additions to non-current assets (other JERBEENRE
than financial instruments and (ERIAMERHMEH
deferred income tax assets) BERIN) 2,043,812 119,749 207,613 409,046 770,469 45499 3,596,188
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(i) Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the
financial statements. The table of segment assets/liabilities by region is
as follows:

5.

PR TS SRR BT AT

For the year ended 31 December 2022

 E_E - —F+-_A=+—HILEE
DEBER (&)

DEWEEKBEAERA X EH
ﬁ“‘i RRAPETE - TR IR

E

AP EE,AE

4:‘.

2022 2021
—ZE2-— —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
Segment assets PHEE
— Mainland China — PR ARE 45,370,634 46,277,480
— Indonesia - Hfe 671,529 925,306
— Thailand - £H 431,589 410,617
- Hong Kong - B 164,814 108,358
— Singapore — BN 9,677 16,129
Total segment assets DEPEELREE 46,648,243 47,737,890
— Unallocated - Ko 20,261 687,730
Total assets BEE 46,668,504 48,425,620
Segment liabilities PHEE
- Mainland China - RBIRRE 39,376,333 23,173,420
— Indonesia - HIE 303,106 407,133
— Thailand - ZE 54,065 72,251
- Hong Kong - B 1,341,963 20,279
— Singapore — AN 93,022 31,811
Total segment liabilities AEEERRE 41,168,489 23,704,894
— Unallocated - Kok 1,011,699 17,122,588
Total liabilities #EE 42,180,188 40,827,482
Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into at terms and DEEERNZT G IIREFHE
conditions agreed upon by respective parties. Eliminations comprise ISR RIEHEET  HESHED
inter-segment trade and non-trade balances. Pricing policy for inter- MEE S RIEE SR o D EpME
segment transactions is determined by reference to market price. AN TEBRERREMBLE
F o
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7HMER(HF)

(i) The revenue of group entities from external customers broken down iy WEEETEKRBIINDEFEHU S
by location of the goods or services are delivered to is shown in the B E sk AR A 2E & DAY
table below. A T & -

2022 2021
—ZE2-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

- Mainland China - PEIRRE 3,626,418 5,144,711

— Indonesia - HfE 112,263 95,795

— Thailand - ZEH 46,342 40,176

- Hong Kong - BB 4,299 61

3,789,322 5,280,743

(iv)  Breakdown of the revenue from all services and sales of goods is as (ivy, B2IRBLEEEMELNK

follows: w2 BMAES AT

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETTT

Operating services BERS 1,795,588 2,053,894
Construction services BIERRTS 1,236,721 2,211,942
Finance income BEUA 634,122 798,042

Engineering — Procurement — Construction REt —HBE — T
("EPC”) and sales of equipment ( TEPC] ) RHRfBIHE 46,156 137,067
Others =i 76,735 79,798
3,789,322 5,280,743
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

(v)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

It B 75 5 % B AE

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related

to contracts with customers:

B=E

D RRE R (&)

(v)

For the year end

ed 31 December 2022

TCFEFT A=+ —HLEEE

BEFPITVANEBZEERA

{3:

AEEKEERAUNTERREPEIZ
BHHRCEEREIE

2022 2021
—E2_-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARETF T
Contract assets — Non-current (note a) AHMEE — RS (HsEa)
— Related to wastewater treatment services - BEKEERE A 9,509,785 10,349,156
— Related to construction services - HEEREA 914,877 901,993
— Related to solid waste treatment services — A [E|RE R IR RS A 938,386 866,662
— Related to water supply services - BEUOKREE @ 627,804 606,886
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (36,416) (24,600)
11,954,436 12,700,091
Contract assets — Current (note a) BHEE — n® (KFa)
— Related to wastewater treatment services - BS5KERIE RIS A RE 80,869 276,192
— Related to construction services - HEERTS A 150,640 190,970
— Related to water supply services - BAKARTE B 2,434 19,421
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (707) (541)
233,236 486,042
12,187,672 13,186,133
Contract liabilities — Current AHAEE — K
— Related to wastewater treatment services - H55KERIE RIS A RE 2,153 —
— Related to construction services - HEERTE A 49,298 44,936
— Related to water supply services - BAHKARTE B 39,854 34,211
— Related to solid waste treatment services - EERERIERE AR 9,857 8,197
101,162 87,344
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5.

166

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(v)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

Contract assets arose from the Group's revenue from
construction under BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements and bear
interest at rates ranging from 0% to 9.12% (2021: 3.68% to
9.9%) per annum.

Pursuant to the BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements, the Group
receives no payment from the grantors during the construction
period and receives service fees when relevant services are
rendered during the operating periods. The service concession
assets are not yet due for payment and will be settled by
service fees to be received during the operating periods of
the service concession arrangements. Amounts billed will be
transferred to debtors.

All of the current portion of service concession assets are
expected to be recovered within one year.
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o ——

For the year ended 31 December 2022
TZRA=+—HIEFE

OTHER INCOME 6. HMWA
2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T AR T T
Government grants 8B 49,969 39,003
Value-added tax refunds BEFRRE 1,048 9,547
Gains on substantial modification upon REREARFIELENFAEZ
loan restructuring (note 30(g)) ez (M47E30(9)) 1,006,874 —
Gains on non-substantial modification of ERIEERTARY S
borrowings (note 30(g)) (F43E30(g)) 297,449 —
Miscellaneous income MW A 3,361 5,440
1,358,701 54,080
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 7. Hitt(f#8) W= FHE
2022 2021
—EgE=-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®EF T
Penalty expenditure SREH (52,299) (40,865)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of investments in HERKBAR - A& A&
subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate —HBEARIREELN
(E18) s F48 (28,409) 42,538
Net loss on disposal of a solid waste license RERE R AIIE B M EEFEE
project (11,763) —
Fair value gain on derivative assets relating to R — B A RIR B AR
investment in an associate (note 16(b-2)) PTEBAEMATEKEZE
(M3E16(b-2)) — 170,164
Others Hih (2,802) (7,504)
(95,273) 164,333
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8. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND

CONTRACT ASSETS

ERRENEERERFE
HH

2022 2021
B8 T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARKETT
Impairment losses on BEREE
— Trade receivables - BHREWEIE 519,265 305,892
— Other receivables - H i pERskE 57,662 80,893
— Contract assets - BREE 11,976 19,387
— Receivables under service concession - BRBE T E LT R
arrangements FEW R IE 30,775 12,953
619,678 419,125
9. EXPENSES BY NATURE BEMHEEHEX
2022 2021
—E=-= —EF - —%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARETT
Employee benefit expenses (note 10) EERFA (MizE10) 604,965 666,450
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME -« BEMRETE
(note 17) (F5E17) 238,815 210,675
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 19) EAEEENE (FI7E19) 24,638 22,688
Depreciation of investment properties (note 18) BEMENE (H7F18) 845 845
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 21) mivEERE (ME21) 563,340 429,120
Impairment of intangible assets (note 21) mREEAERE (MizE21) 525,555 198,155
Impairment of inventories (note 22) FERE (M22) 6,800 —
Impairment of prepayments (note 23) B RERE (Mi:E23) 2,694 39,267
Impairment of assets classified as held for sale DERFEHEEERE
(note 26) (Bt&E26) 14,502 —
Legal and professional fee FRREXER 13,527 18,725
Auditor’s remuneration G 8,269 7,450
— Audit services - BEHRTE 6,945 7,250
— Non-audit services - JEERT RIS 1,324 200
Electricity, raw materials consumptions and other — EZRBHEH - BIEDEFER
costs for operating services HAbRK A 412,098 815,387
Costs of construction services EERIEAK A 1,415,037 2,017,032
Costs of EPC and sales of equipment EPC K 3% 15 85 &5 A A 90,854 115,295
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& OF B 1% 5k I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8BItFE

EERANHAX —BEES
[k

2022 2021

B8 T —4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR T

Wages and salaries ITERF® 424,370 468,689

Pension costs of defined contribution plans TE R RET BIM R IR SRR 63,101 63,091
Housing funds, medical insurances and FEAKEE BERRK

other social insurances Hibrt =R 72,851 73,964

Other welfare and allowance Efth 285 R AR A 44,643 60,706

604,965 666,450

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group

for the year include one (2021: one) directors, whose emoluments are

reflected in the analysis shown in note 41. The emoluments payable

to the remaining four (2021: four) individuals during the year are as

() EEEEHEAL
AEERAEENRAE RS T A
+EE—Z(ZE-—F: —%£)
EF HS RN FE4 AT
DT - RAFERBHTEEZ(ZF

follows: Z—F : mE)ATEMNBBE N
TR :
2022 2021
—E-C—f T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARETT
Basic salaries, housing allowances EXF® - FEER -
other benefits in kind HibEWREF 3,994 2,879
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B % R 2R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 10.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of highest paid employees (including the directors) whose

EERANAX —BEES

<= (&)

() TEBEFHAL(H)
MeEN TRENNSSHIES

emoluments fell within the following band: (BREEF)ABOTAHAMR :
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—4F
Emolument bands B < €5
HKDnil to HKD1,000,000 ZH 21,000,000 7T 4 4
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 721,500,000 7T = —
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 C22,000,000/# 7T = —
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 T 2,500,000/8 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE-_ZT-_—"F#+_-_A=+—RHIFE
11. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES M. BERARBEX
2022 2021
—=-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AR T T
Finance income A& WA
— Interest income - FLBUA 16,806 10,932
Finance costs =59
— Borrowing costs — B (1,381,661) (1,631,394)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets W BBREEN
(note a) ERfteE (MisTa) 81,505 139,644
(1,300,156) (1,491,750)
— Net exchange loss on financing activities - BEEBHELBRFE
(note b) (P &Eb) (25,976) (33,712)
— Unwinding of provision (note 34) - FREREE (MHEE34) (22,852) (11,724)
(1,348,984) (1,537,186)
Finance costs — net BB K AN F 5 (1,332,178) (1,526,254)
(@) Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of (@) BE-—_ZTZ-_—_F#+-_A=+—8H
4.42% for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 5.73%). WLEE BN EL42% (=
T —4%F :5.73%) M N F5F|
KT AE R ©
(b)  Amounts mainly represented the exchange gains or losses of by ZRBEBFEBEREHBEUIEDGEEE
translating financial assets and liabilities denominated in non- FENREEERBENE LB
functional currencies. =

= e

Annual Report 2022 4 #4 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & #/k 1% & Bk 15 B R A 7 171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

172

12. FREHEX

2022 2021
—E=-= —ETE-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Current income tax BNERFT1SHR
— Corporate income tax - EFTISH 113,688 146,046
Deferred income tax EIEFTISHR
— Corporate income tax - EFFHR 62,302 (121,725)
175,990 24,321

(a)

(b)

PRC corporate income tax

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operating in the western
region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15%, provided their revenues generated from main
operating activities accounted for more than 60% of their total
revenues of the period.

Certain subsidiaries operating wastewater and solid waste treatment
projects in Mainland China are eligible for a tax holiday of three-year
full exemption followed by three-year half exemption of corporate
income tax commencing from their first year generating operating

revenue.

Except for preferential treatments available to certain subsidiaries as
mentioned above, other subsidiaries within the Group in Mainland
China are subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of
25% (2021: 25%).

Thailand corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Thailand is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 20% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 20%).

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A 7] Annual Report 2022 F [& i &

(a)

(b)

PEEERESH
EHREAERPEAEESTIT
¥HETHEB QR ZXZ15%H)
BECEMBGHBE  giRRE
FTELBEEB KRS BEIEEN
WK A ERI60%IA | o

FE AR BRBE AR & 057K I B BB B 18
HEMETHEARBELRE
WHREFRAIZE=F2HHAR
ER=FLEMEVRFLHNEE

BREXFMETHBARATEZS
EBEABI  AEBR B KRRE
MEMKEARBREEHRRE
5% WM EMBER(ZT = —
F:25%) °

RETCERESH
HE—_ZT-_—_F+-A=+—H
LtFE ERELCLEEREEREREE
B &K B R B BIR20%H K E R
KM EMBR(ZTEZ—F -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Hong Kong profits tax
The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group did
not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: same).

Indonesia corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Indonesia is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 22% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 22%).

The tax on the Group’s profit/loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profit/loss of the group entities as follows:

B=E

12. Fi 18

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

tT-A=+—HLEE

SHB (&

(c) BERANEH
HE_T-_—_F+=-A=+—H
IEFE -\ %%%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%
#16.5% (ZZFZ—%F :16.5%) °
HRASEREBEZ-_FT ==
+Z A=+ BLEEEIEESR
BEEBRRTES - 0 TR
EEFNEHBEB (T =_—F : 1§
@) o

(d HEL¥MER

HE—_ZT-_—"F+=-A=+—H
IEFE  EHRKEEERER
B 8B A B IR 22 % H) 5K E i
EEMPEMSH(ZTZ—F -
22%) °

AEBERFERTETN HEN
BEANNERERNEEEE
#98 F 5 18 19 hn 4 T 19 B R Fy

EMERSE AEBOT
2022 2021
—Eg=-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Loss before taxation R B AT S 18 (982,359) (1,030,933)
Less: Share of profits of investments B DG A RIE AR
accounted for using the equity method ®E &= T (23,560) (78,517)
(1,005,919) (1,109,450)
Tax credit calculated at tax rates applicable to BREBARENERKN
profits in the respective companies MEFENHIEE R (245,590) (231,774)
Effect of tax losses not recognised as deferred  ABRBEILFAEREEN
income tax assets HMEBETZ 406,107 221,091
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose A F S o & 15,473 35,004
Income tax expense B8R A X 175,990 24,321
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B % R 2R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 12. FRGHBA X (&

(d) Indonesia corporate income tax (Continued) (d ENEL¥EmMESH (&)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry- REENHEEEMmMERZE
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit EFEHEEERN BB NB
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December Mamr BB RRERTRMNE
2022, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of BB R_E-_—_F+=A8
RMB412,057,000 (2021: RMB264,900,000) in respect of tax losses =+—B AEBETERALE
amounting to RMB2,032,648,000 (2021: RMB1,231,498,000) that can HHARRERB WA IEEB
be carried forward against future taxable income, which will expire by B AR #2,032,648,000L(= =
2027. ——F : AR #1,231,498,000

TOERBELEMEREE AR
412,057,000 L(Z T = —F : A
R #264,900,0007T) + B H R
ZE - FRIEADIE -
13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BRE#HE
(a) Basic (a) EX

The basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31
December 2022.

BREABEBIEARNALBRE
EEEBEERUABE-_ZT ==
+ZA=+-—BLEFEEBTH
LTERMETFHETE -

2022 2021
—E-—F —_T——F
Loss B8
Loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders AN EE BARAR R (G B 18
of the Company (RMB’000) (AREFT) (1,060,342) (1,001,876)
Number of shares
RO B
Shares A& 1%
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BBITHE BRI T8
in issue (thousands) (F) 1,193,213 1,193,213
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13.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there
were no potential diluted ordinary shares outstanding as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

DIVIDENDS

At the board of directors meeting held on 31 March 2023, the Directors did
not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022 out of retained earnings of the Company.

At the board of directors meeting held on 31 March 2022, the Directors did
not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2021 out of retained earnings of the Company.

13.

14.

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE TCFEFT A=+ —HLEEE

BREE (&)

(b) #8
MABE-F-—FR-F=—
F+=A=+—RBAEBTEND
MEEREEBR  REREE
FERSREARBIER -

\—E-=F=A=+—BETNESF
Rt ERETEEMBEE—_T_—
ToA=+t—RILEFEBARARE
BB ERREERES -

%
il

i B 3

RZEZZF=ZA=+—HBINES
eeFEL  ESTEREBEE-_ZT=—
F+-—A=+—HLEFEBABALARE
B B ER RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& B B 75 R MY

%\
it

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

15. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022, all

176

of which are private limited liability companies:

ZRA=+—HLFE

i B 2 =

UTAaBE-—E-_—+=-_A=+—H
MNEEWBEBLARILE  ZERRHAKE

FHERRAA :
Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation Ownership by the non-
and operation, Issued and interests held controlling
kind of legal fully paid-up by the Group interests (%)

Name (note a) entity Capital (%) (note ¢) Principal activities

bR FERREREMN
EEBER BETR KEEEMS BEBDL (%)

A (M aa) EEERER BYBERE BHEBDL (%) (Miac) FEEH

Dali Water Industry The PRC, RMB 45 (2021: 45) 55(2021: 55) Wastewater treatment and
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability 165,051,000 water supply
("Dali Water") (note b) company**

ABKBEXFREBRAR HE- AR® 45 55 J57KERE KAtk
(TR®EKH]) BREEAR* 165,051,000 (Z2=—% :45) (Z2=—% :55)

(B #Eb)

Yunnan Yun Shui The PRC, RMB 57 (2021: 57) 43 (2021: 43) Environmental protection
Construction & limited liability 913,405,000 equipment sales and
Engineering Co., Ltd company** construction
("Yun Shui
Construction”)

ZHEKERIBERRA  HE- AR 57 43 BREEHERER
(TEKkER]) BREARF 913,405,0007T (Z2=—%:957) (Z2=—%:43)

Yunnan OriginWater The PRC, RMB 57 (2021: 57) 43 (2020: 43) Environmental protection
Membrane Technology limited liability 55,614,800 equipment sales
Co., Ltd. company**

ERHRBKRER K HE ARE 57 43 RRJEHE
BEREERA BREARF 55,614,8007C (Z2=—%:57) (Z2=—%:43)

Jinghong Water Supply The PRC, RMB 51 (2021: 51) 49 (2021: 49) Wastewater treatment and
and Drainage Co., Ltd limited liability 80,000,000 water supply

company**

BATREKEREERR FE- AR 51 49 FKERE R ALK

BREARF 80,000,0007T (Z2=—%:51) (Z2=—% 1 49)
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HLFE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. B D B (#4&)

Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation Ownership by the non-
and operation, Issued and interests held controlling
kind of legal fully paid-up by the Group interests (%)

Name (note a) entity Capital (%) (note ¢) Principal activities

Bk FEREREMN
EEBER BBTR KEEEMS BEBD(%)

A1 (M ika) EEERER ZHBERE BHEBDL (%) (Miae) FEEH

Yunnan Zhengxiao The PRC, RMB 100 (2021: 100) —(2021: —) Solid waste treatment
Environmental limited liability 30,500,000
Investment Co., Ltd company**

EHERRREEBB AR HE - ARE 100 — EERE

BREMAR 30,500,0007T (ZZ=—% :100) (Z2=—-%:—)

Yunnan Water Hong Kong HKD 100 (2021: 100) —(2021: —) Investment in wastewater
(Hong Kong) Company 1,735,147,000 treatment and water supply
Limited

ErkH (FE) BB 1,735,147,000 100 — RETKEERRAK

RABERAR

Huize Water (Qingzhou)
Company Limited

B2k (FM)
BRRA

PT Sumber Organik

Indonesia

The PRC, limited
liability company*
HE
BREEAF*

Indonesia

ge

B (ZZ=—% :100) (ZZ=—F:—)

RMB 100 (2021: 100) —(2021: —) Water supply
53,152,000
AR 100 — itk

53,152,0007C (ZF=—%:100) (ZZ=—F:—)

IDR 95 (2021: 95) 5(2021:5) Solid waste treatment
10,250,000,000
10,250,000,000 95 5 EEER

MNEE (ZEZ—F:95) (ZE=—%:5)
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& B B 75 R MY

%\
it

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

15.

178

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. B D B (#4&)
Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation Ownership by the non-
and operation, Issued and interests held controlling
kind of legal fully paid-up by the Group interests (%)
Name (note a) entity Capital (%) (note ¢) Principal activities
Bk FEREREMN
EEBER BBTR KEEEMS BEBD(%)
A1 (M ika) EEERER ZHBERE BHEBDL (%) (Miae) FEEH
Shandong Tengyue The PRC, RMB 97 (2021: 97) 3(2021:3) Solid waste treatment
Dangerous Chemical limited liability 108,571,429
Wastes research and company**
treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Tengyue")
WRERBCEEREEN i AR® 97 3 [EREREE
HERBERAR BREADA* 108,571,4297C (Z2=—%:97) (Z2=—%:3)
( [sRme] )
Tai'an Tengyue The PRC, RMB 97 (2021: 97) 3(2021:3) Solid waste treatment
Environmental limited liability 10,000,000
Protection Technology company**
Co., Ltd.
REMBRBRRN HE AR 97 3 BERERE
BRAR BREERAR* 10,000,0007C (Z2=—%:97) (Z2=—%:3)
Jinan Yunshui Tengyue The PRC, RMB 97 (2021: 97) 3(2021: 3) Solid waste treatment
Environmental Industry limited liability 50,000,000
Co., Ltd. ("Jinan company**
Yunshui Tengyue”)
R S U HE - ARE 97 3 ERERE
BRAF BREEAR* 50,000,0007% (Z2=—%:97) (Z2=—%:3)
( [EEZKER] )
Xinjiang Qinggeda The PRC, RMB227,500,000 100 (2021: 100) —(2021: —) Wastewater treatment
Yunshui Environmental limited liability
Industry Investment and company**
Development Co., Ltd.
NESRETKRR HE - AR% 100 — KRE
RERRAR BREFAR** 227,500,0007C (ZT=—% :100) (ZF=—-%F:—)
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

15. B D B (#4&)

Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation Ownership by the non-
and operation, Issued and interests held controlling
kind of legal fully paid-up by the Group interests (%)
Name (note a) entity Capital (%) (note ¢) Principal activities
Bk FEREREMN
EEBER BBTR KEEEMS BEBD(%)
A1 (M ika) EEERER ZHBERE BHEBDL (%) (Miae) FEEH
Langfang Hyflux NewSpring The PRC, limited Us$ 100 (2021: 100) —(2021: —) Wastewater treatment
Co., Ltd liability company* 12,400,000
RSB 3 ROk HE - 12,400,000% 7 100 — KRR
ARAT BREEAF* (Z2=—% :100) (Z2=—-F:—)
Xinjiang Yunshui The PRC, RMB500,000,000 100 (2021: 100) —(2021: —) Wastewater treatment
Environmental Industry limited liability
Investment and company**
Development Co., Ltd
HEZKRRRE HE AR% 100 — KRR
BRAR BREMAR 500,000,0007¢ (ZZ=—% :100) (Z2=—-%:—)
Guizhou Renhuai Yunshui The PRC, RMB522,839,000 90 (2021: 90) 10 (2021: 10) Wastewater treatment
Environmental Industry limited liability
Co., Ltd company**
EMCEEKERE HE AR 90 10 5KEE
BRAR BREFAR* 522,839,0007¢ (ZZ=—%F :90) (Z2=—%F:10)
* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law * BREFEEZEIMAEIIEBEELE
LK Registered as domestic enterprises under the PRC law OO BEPEEEIMAENRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

180

(a)

The English names of these subsidiaries referred to in this note
represent management'’s best effort at translating the Chinese names
of those companies, as no English names have been registered.

According to the capital injection agreement date in 9 April 2014,
the Group and the minority shareholders will hold 45% and 55%
equity interests of Dali Water, respectively. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group has controlled Dali Water through an agreement entered
into with one of minority shareholders of Dali Water, who hold
25% equity interest in Dali Water, pursuant to which the minority
shareholder confirmed to act in accordance with the Group in
decision on relevant activities of Dali Water (2021: same).

The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries as at
31 December 2022 are RMB1,744,560,000 (2021: 1,961,636,000),
and are considered individually immaterial to the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of investment in
subsidiaries pledged as security for borrowings are RMB2,149,487,000
(2021: RMB3,133,640,000).

In December 2021 and January 2022, lenders of certain overdue
borrowings had taken for property preservation by judicatory, which
included frozen of the Group’s 100% equity interests in a subsidiary
with net asset value of RMB177,406,0000 as at 31 December
2021. As at 31 December 2022, the property preservation has been
released.
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(a)

AP EE PR A B0 5% F MY B X A Y
RXERWDEEBRNBEHESP
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EMRXEHE -

BEEHRA-Z—NEMNA A
AR EERinE  A5EED
ARG B35 A REKE45%
ME55%H IRtE - BE_T ==
+=ZA=+—H AEEFEBR—
MEER—FZREBKBELHRKE
(BB KBEKE25%EE) AT
BTS2 8 155 5% i 122 i K B UK 7% 9 R
B DEBREER  EE
B B K IR K 75 B 48 B R BOR 3R
BHEASE -HTH (=T =—
F MR -

R—ZZEZ—F+=-RA=+—H
BEMBRARMEEREZ B
% A N R ®1,744,560,000 7T (=
T = —4F : AR¥1,961,636,000
T) - MAEAR A ¥ AN 5 B (R Bl 3
BR

RZTEZZF+ZA=+—
H X BHEBDEARE
2,149,487,000 7T K FA B /8 A & 19
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T BE-_ZT-_—_4F+=A
=+—8 UERZERK -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests
The table below provides details of a non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Group that has material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting
rights held by non-

controlling interests as
at 31 December

& OF B 1% 5k I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

15. B A 5 (&)
BEEAREEREZNERZE
MEBABFEE
TR ANEBHES ERFEIERESZD

F2EMBA

Profit/(loss) allocated
to non-controlling
interests for the year
ended 31 December

SRELE

Accumulated non-
controlling interests as
at 31 December

BEZ+-RA=+-—8 BE+=-A=+-A8

Place of FERERFEES LEEPBTFHER BE+=-A=+—-8K

incorporation and EaRRERELLA BEARA(BR) Rt FERER

principal place of 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

business —E-C —T-— —E--f ZZT-—fF ZB--F —ZT=-—F
Name of subsidiary SRR RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
MEARERE TEEENY ARBETR ARETT AR¥TR ARETR
Dali Water PRC 55% 55% (165,076) (195,754) (127,409) 37,667
RIBIKTS H
Yun Shui Construction PRC 43% 43% (79,338) (97,012) 488,369 567,707
EREH H
Jinghong Water PRC 49% 49% 19,721 20,883 230,623 210,902
SRR H
Dali Yunshui PRC 30% 30% 14,902 (251) 75,215 60,313
RIBEK FE
Xinjiang Yuntai PRC 49% 49% 3,338 9,428 196,366 197,438
MEES HE
Bazhou Keda PRC 40% 40% 1,155 832 58,954 57,799
ENEEE i

(205,298) (261,874) 922,118 1,131,826
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. M8 2 8 (4&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFEEREZNIESRE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) ol NGIEX A - D)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries that AEEREEAFEREMB AT
have material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised HMEHEERESINOT - L THEBHK
financial information below represents amounts before elimination of intra- BRI AHEEBRANBRZH ZRAINEEE -

group transactions.

2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
Dali Water RMB’000 RMB’000
RIBAFE AR TR AR T
Non-current assets ERBNEE 3,343,123 3,564,730
Current assets mENEE 363,847 348,236
Current liabilities mEBE (2,881,845) (2,572,457)
Non-current liabilities EREE & (1,058,087) (1,273,241)
Equity T
— Equity attributable to owners - NARHEE AELERS
of the Company 105,553 (29,601)
— Non-controlling interests - JEIERR iR 127,409 (37.667)
232,962 (67,268)
Revenue Wz 146,566 199,569
Loss for the year FAEE
— Attributable to owners of the Company - RRARER ARG (135,266) (160,709)
— Attributable to the non-controlling - PR B
interests (165,076) (195,754)
(300,342) (356,463)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBR SR AFRE 25,491 48,458
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEESRES R FHE (9,045) (40,741)
Net cash outflow from financing activities A EESR SR FE (18,470) (47,146)
Net decrease in bank balances and cash RITEER IR R FEE (2,024) (39,429)
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15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

o ——

B O B 1 R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2022
TZR=+—HIFE

15. BB D B (#4&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFEEREZNIESRE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) Mi B A RIFF1E (&)
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
Yun Shui Construction RMB’000 RMB’'000
EKER AR¥T T AR T T
Non-current assets ERBEE 198,152 191,626
Current assets BB E 4,266,879 8,876,443
Current liabilities mEaE (2,091,423) (6,905,374)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,246,602) (852,600)
Equity s
— Equity attributable to owners - RNATHRE AELER
of the Company (638,637) (742,388)
— Non-controlling interests - JEIERR R (488,369) (567,707)
(1,127,006) (1,310,095)
Revenue W as 19,108 180,278
Loss for the year FAERE
— Attributable to owners of the Company - AR ElEE AR (103,750) (126,863)
— Attributable to the non-controlling - R R RS
interests (79,338) (97,012)
(183,088) (223,875)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating RESEBIR S (RHE) R AERE
activities (3.970) 244,462
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing BEEHHEESWA GRd) F5E
activities 33 (12)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing BEEFSHRESRA Cit) B8
activities 2,578 (747,601)
Net decrease in bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS R FEE (1,359) (503,151)
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B B % R 2R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_TZ-_—F#+_-_A=+—RHLEE
15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. M8 2 8 (4&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFEEREZNIESRE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) ol NGIEX A - D)
2022 2021
—E=-= —T-—F
Jinghong Water RMB’000 RMB’000
Sk ARBT R AREFT
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,042,972 1,005,381
Current assets MBNAE 588,991 161,093
Current liabilities mEAE (685,183) (245,589)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (476,120) (490,473)
Equity S
— Equity attributable to owners - RNATHE AELER
of the Company (240,037) (219,510)
— Non-controlling interests - JEfERR R (230,623) (210,902)
(470,660) (430,412)
Revenue W as 118,476 123,698
Profit for the year F A6 A
— Attributable to owners of the Company - AR ElHEE A 20,526 21,736
— Attributable to the non-controlling - AR R RS
interests 19,721 20,883
40,247 42,619
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBIR &M AFEE 53,392 47,177
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEBIR SN F5E (54,310) (236,100)
Net cash (outflow)inflow from financing BmEFESHRE ORd) T RAFE
activities (20,128) 124,452
Net decrease in bank balances and cash RITHEBREIR SR EE (21,046) (64,471)
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15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AN
=]

For

Hz—-—ZT——

Ot B 7% R 2% B 5
the year ended 31 December 2022
TZR=+—HIFE

15. BB D B (#4&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFEEREZNIESRE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) Mi B A RIFF1E (&)
2022 2021
—E-— —T-—F
Dali Yunshui RMB’000 RMB’000
KRIEBEK AR¥T T AR T T
Non-current assets EMENEE 603,782 643,306
Current assets BB E 116,821 56,890
Current liabilities mEAE (80,954) (77,497)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (388,934) (421,655)
Equity i
— Equity attributable to owners - RNATHE AELER
of the Company (175,500) (140,731)
— Non-controlling interests - JEfERR R (75,215) (60,313)
(250,715) (201,044)
Revenue s 40,627 77,804
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmF (BE)
— Attributable to owners of the Company - AR ElHEE A 34,770 (587)
— Attributable to the non-controlling - AR R RS
interests 14,902 (251)
49,672 (838)
Net cash outflow from operating activities LTRSS MR (127) —
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing JEEBERSRA (RiL) F38
activities 2,481 (46,695)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BVEEEIR S R R (17,123) (57,439)
Net decrease in bank balances and cash RITEMREIR SR EE (14,769) (104,134)
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B B % R 2R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE_Z-_—_Ft+-_A=+t—HILFE
15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. MY B A 5 (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFEEREZNIESRE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) ol NGIEX A - D)
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
Xinjiang Yuntai RMB’000 RMB’000
FEER AR¥T T AR T T
Non-current assets ERBVEE 348,406 367,782
Current assets MEAE 76,921 61,772
Current liabilities mEaE (24,576) (26,616)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE = —
Equity Lr g
— Equity attributable to owners - NATHRE AELER
of the Company (204,385) (205,500)
— Non-controlling interests - JEPERR R (196,366) (197,438)
(400,751) (402,938)
Revenue W as 37,384 48,188
Profit for the year A5 )
— Attributable to owners of the Company - AR ElHEE A 3,475 9,813
— Attributable to the non-controlling - PR R RS
interests 3,338 9,428
6,813 19,241
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating RESEBIIH WA (GRd) (%58
activities 20,860 (1,698)
Net cash outflow from investing activities BB ESHRE ML FE (2,035) (1,149)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing MEEBRS (L) I RAFE
activities (17,674) 24
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances RITHEBRINEHEM ORD) FHE
and cash 1,151 (2,823)
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B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. ff B A 7 (4&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFEEREZNIESRE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) ol NGIEX A - D)
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
Bazhou Keda RMB’000 RMB’'000
BN RLE AR¥T T ARBTF T
Non-current assets FEMEBEE 105,395 106,701
Current assets MEEE 71,885 71,651
Current liabilities mEBAE (22,989) (26,845)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (6,905) (7,009)
Equity s
— Equity attributable to owners — RRAHE AEGER
of the Company (88,432) (86,699)
— Non-controlling interests — EERER (58,954) (57,799)
(147,386) (144,498)
Revenue W= 17,984 17,824
Profit for the year F N F
— Attributable to owners of the Company — ADEHEE ARG 1,733 1,247
— Attributable to the non-controlling — FEPEAR M S RS
interests 1,155 832
2,888 2,079
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating RESEBMIM S ORE) /R AESE
activities (209) 1,970
Net cash outflow from financing activities RMEEHREES AL FE (586) (1,380)
Net (decrease)/ increase in bank balances and RITEHRBRECRD) I INFEE
cash (795) 590
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& OF B 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

16.

LESRZEARNKRE

NEHEERBRRERNSREDOT

2022 2021
B - —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARBET T
A joint venture (note a) —REEAR (KiFa) 27,076 39,200
Associates (note b) grg e (Kisb) 1,063,693 1,045,551
1,090,769 1,084,751
The amounts recognised in the profit or loss accounts are as follows: REHREERANESBWNOT
2022 2021
B T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Joint ventures /NG|
— Share of (loss)/profit for the year - HMEER (EBE) &5F (12,124) 75,004
Associates i N
— Share of profit for the year - DMEFRRF 35,684 3,513
23,560 78,517
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a)

Investments in joint ventures

16.

B fF B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+

—A=+—HLEFE

DR EARNKRE (AF)

(a) REELANRE

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AR T T

Balance at 1 January R—A— B 39,200 728,050
Share of (loss)/profit for the year PMEFR (BEB) #F (12,124) 75,004
Disposal (note b-2) HE (FEEb-2) — (763,854)
Balance at 31 December Rt-—A=+—Hi&EE 27,076 39,200
(a-1) The Group has interests in a joint venture that is accounted for (a-1) KEER —FRAEZREAR

using the equity method. MEERRRHEAER -

Place of business/

Percentage of ownership interest
as at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H8®K

country of FEEERBES
Name of entity incorporation 2022 2021
—E 3.1
BREH RE AL B R =B F —T=—F
Beijing Bailigerui Resources Technology PRC 40.00% 40.00%
Company Limited (“Beijing Bailigerui”)
EREFRIHE R RBRAF HE

(MHeRrERNKE] )
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. URERZEZFARNKRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investments in associates (b) REEERNTINKRE
2022 2021
—E_- —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® T ARBTTT

Balance at 1 January N—B— B 1,045,551 124,734
Addition (note b-2) NE (MFEb-2) — 947,304
Share of profit for the year DG F R A 35,684 3,513
Disposal (note b-3) & (MiaEb-3) — (30,000)
Dividend received BEUWAR B (17.542) —
Balance at 31 December R+t=-—A=+-—HN&EEH 1,063,693 1,045,551
(b-1) The Group has interests in associates that is accounted for (b-1) 25 B ARE RS A A BR A B
using the equity method. BRBPRERER -

Percentage of ownership interest
as at 31 December

Place of business/ R+=-ZA=+—-8BH
country of FEEEZRESHL
Name of entity incorporation 2022 2021
e
BEREE EiipAAEER —E_= T —F
Qianjiang Biochemical (note b-2) PRC 20.24% 20.24%
BITAE (FifaEb-2) HE
Langfang Yunxin Environmental Protection PRC 49.00% 49.00%

Company Limited
(“Langfang Yunxin”)
B mEMRFAEERAR ( [BIEH] ) hE

Beijing Kunlun Coastal Sensing Technology PRC 20.29% 20.29%
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Kunlun”)
EREmERERRMARAR P
( [HEmBEml)
Henan Liwei Biological Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd PRC 40.00% 40.00%
Yellow River New Energy Branch
AENEEDEERHBERAF HE

FORFTREIR ) X A
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Ot B 7% R 2% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—_ZT_-_— ZA=t+—HLEFE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investments in associates (Continued)

16. AR A ARNKRE (&)

(b) RBEQXTNWRE(H)

(b-2) On 6 June 2021, the Company entered into an Equity

Acquisition and Share Issuance Agreement with Qianjiang
Biochemical, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to dispose of its 49% equity interests in Zhejiang
Haiyun Environmental Protection Company Limited (“Haiyun
Environmental Protection”) to Qianjiang Biochemical at a
consideration of RMB777,140,000 to be settled by issuance of
new shares of Qianjiang Biochemical to the Company which
represented approximately 20.24% equity interest in Qianjiang
Biochemical. On the same date, the Company entered into
a profit guarantee agreement with Qianjiang Biochemical,
pursuant to which the Company undertook to indemnify
Qianjiang Biochemical in the event that Haiyun Environmental
Protection fails to achieve any of the accumulated minimum net
profit as agreed for each of year ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023, the Company shall compensate Qianjiang
Biochemical of certain number of Qianjiang Biochemical's shares
held by the Company calculated according to the proportion
of actual shortfall in net profit out of the agreed minimum
net profit, the shares will be transferred at their par value
of RMB1 each and will be cancelled after they are return to
Qianjiang Biochemical. In the event that the actual shortfall
of net profit exceeds the agreed minimum net profit, the
compensation of exceeding shortfall should be made up by
cash. On 23 December 2021, the aforesaid equity transaction
has been completed and the Group recognised the investment
in Qianjiang Biochemical of RMB947,304,000 according to
the fair value of the 20.24% equity interest of Qianjiang
Biochemical as of 23 December 2021 and a fair value gain of
RMB170,164,000. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
Haiyun Environmental Protection has achieved the accumulated
minimum net profit and there was no compensation paid to

Qianjiang Biochemical by the Group.

(b-

2) RZZE=-—FNAXH K

N AT L AT IR
ERRDETHE - B
RARBEERBUREA
R #777,140,000 7T #5 H #
BRI IEERRER QA
(g ERR])A9%H) I 1
HEFETEL  REBH
BIIALBEBRAR A E
THRNEE (BITERD
2024%R %) - AH AR
A1 ET AL RT 2 & R T8 A
MERZE B AR
FEHEERRRERBEEZ
TZ—F - ZTZZFRk=
TZ-_=F+-_A=+—81t
BEEEKRFTHEFF
B AR B EARERE R G
H) 78 B ARF F B L B B PR
EHEMETECHERQR
BAEOHETEENSE T4
& - ZERDEAZRE
BARBITHEREBE
S AEEE O T (LB 5T o
W FFENEREZEBRY
EREFFE - BlERA=E
MEERENRSERE - R
T-_—F+=-ZA=+=H"
FRERSE TN - RIE
—E-—H%+_-_A=-+=H
BT A1620.24% HEH D
Wﬁ&/\ﬁﬁzwonm,ooo
WAFERE  NEBRE
:Z%%Tﬁ;‘ziftﬁﬁ&i%ﬁ%/\ﬁ
¥ 947,304,000 7T - R E =
T +ZA=+—H
ILFE  SERECERZR
FTEAKVR RS - AR BN &
mET AL HHE -
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HE-_ZT_-_—F+

16.

192

Ff B 75 i % 9 AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

ZRA=+—HLFE

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

Investments in associates (Continued)

(b

-2) (Continued)

In December 2021 and January 2022, lenders of certain
overdue borrowings had taken for property preservation by
judicatory, which frozen of the Group’s 18.42% equity interests
in Qianjiang Biochemical with carrying value of investment
in associates of RMB862,121,000 as at 31 December 2021.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
reached a settlement with the lenders in respect of the
overdue borrowings, party of the equity interests in Qianjiang
Biochemical was released from the property preservation by
judicatory upon the withdrawal of the property preservation
action by the lenders. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
7.27% equity interests in Qianjiang Biochemical with carrying
value of investment in associates of RMB348,856,000 has not
yet been released from the property preservation. As at the
date of the consolidated financial statements were authorised
for issue, the Group’s 2.52% equity interests in Qianjiang
Biochemical with carrying value of investment in associates of
RMB120,838,000 has not yet been released from the property

preservation.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed 15% equity interest of Qingdao Yuanchuang Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection Venture Investment
Fund Partnership (Limited partnership) to an independent
third party at a consideration of RMB32,413,000. The gain on

disposal of the associate amounted to RMB2,413,000.

B& 5B MRAF Annual Report 2022 4 & # &

16. AR A ARNKRE (&)

(b) REt&ERARINKRE (&)
2) (%)

(b-3)

RZEZ—F+=ZAK=
T-—F—fF  BETOHE
FHERACBBRIER
FERVERZER  ®
2 —F+ZR=+-—
HREASEERE T AL
B 18.42% 0% # & M Bt &
AAMBEERDBEARE
862,121,0007C - RE & =
T F+=-A=+—H1t
FE  AEEEERAGSE
HAIERGER TR - EERA
ﬁ@%é%iﬁ“F 8T
EEB o ARED BB DA
BFrm@huERE #E=
T+ =—A=+—8 "
RNREBRETEILNT.27%
PR (B2 ARIIREREE
A R #348,856,0007T ) 14 A
T ERZHRR - BES
U BHRRERERMA
B AEBRETELER
2.52%M% (Bt & R R IR B
BR ™ B A R % 120,838,000

TR ARRBERE PR
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZT-_—_F#+_A=+—HLFE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UESRZEZARNRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investments in associates (Continued) (b) REEERNTINIRE (&)
(b-4) The table below provide summarised financial information for (b-4) TR EAREEIW TEKX
associates that are individually immaterial to the Group. ML ARNBERLEE
we
2022 2021
—EC-C—f T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARKETTT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually RIS B KHE = A Bl

immaterial associates WHERTEE 1,063,693 1,045,551
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share REBOELATZIEN
of: 1A%
— Profit from continuing operations - RERFEKE
and total comprehensive income ERH A 2
ire Mg 35,684 3,513
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 17. 9% BERZEURMA
LEASEHOLD LAND g+
Electronic
Plants and Motor  equipment  Construction
buildings Machinery vehicles  and others in progress Total
EFRER
BERkET i HE Hit ERIR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETHL ARETT ARETR ARETE ARETR

At 1 January 2021 R-B=—-fF

—A—H
Cost AR 1,347,153 2,100,133 82,544 163,203 1,590,882 5,283,915
Accumulated depreciation iHE (292,618) (738,905) (70,188) (100,355) —  (1,202,066)
Net book amount REFE 1,054,535 1,361,228 12,356 62,848 1,590,882 4,081,849
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ-Z--F

+=A=+-H

LFE
Opening net book amount BERE A 1,054,535 1,361,228 12,356 62,848 1,590,882 4,081,849
Additions RE 3,897 20,808 2,146 5,975 363,627 396,453
Transfer from construction in progress — EREERTE 241,065 160,714 — 64,137 (465,916) —
Disposals diE (15,787) (517) (27) (332) — (16,663)
Depreciation charge (note 9) mERX (M39) (47,417) (126,876) (11,630) (24,752) — (210,675)
Closing net book amount BARBEFE 1,236,293 1,415,357 2,845 107,876 1,488,593 4,250,964
At 31 December 2021 RZIB--f

+=A=t+-8
Cost A 1576329 2,274,843 84,250 232376 1488593 5,656,391
Accumulated depreciation BHE (340,036) (859,486) (81,405) (124,500) —  (1,405,427)
Net book amount EETFE 1,236,293 1,415,357 2,845 107,876 1,488,593 4,250,964
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B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 17. 9% BERZEURMA
LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued) B4 (4F)
Electronic
Plants and Motor  equipment Construction
buildings  Machinery vehicles  and others in progress Total
ETRER
BERET e AE Hitr ERIR #st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARMTR AR®Tn ARETIR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-CF
+=A=t-H
LEE
Opening net book amount BEmTE 1,236,293 1,415,357 2,845 107,876 1,488,593 4,250,964
Additions B 9,086 23,130 4,253 33,854 171,250 241,573
Transfer ELE 71,163 91,385 — 218 (162,766) -
Disposals HE (21) (145) (383) (17) — (566)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HENBAR
(Bf£38) = (205) (127) (274) (229) (835)
Deprediation charge (note 9) ez (FiF9) (54,476) (148,088) (5,872) (30,379) — (238,815)
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 26) ~ EREZFHEHELE
(Mi5£26) (23,644) (19,408) (35) (438) (209) (43,734)
Closing net book amount BRAEAFE 1,238,401 1,362,026 681 110,840 1,496,639 4,208,587
At 31 December 2022 R-BZZF
+=ZA=t-H
Cost A 1,611,894 2,301,841 86,490 259,919 1,496,639 5,756,783
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (373,493) (939,815) (85,809) (149,079) —  (1,548,196)
Net book amount BEFE 1,238,401 1,362,026 681 110,840 1,496,639 4,208,587
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& OF B 1% s 2k M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-_—_F#+-_A=+—HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 17. 9% BERZEURMA
LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued) B4 (4F)
Depreciation was charged to profit or loss accounts under the following WEDKRUTHERBZEREANG :
caption:
2022 2021
—E-CfF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Cost of sales SHERAR 209,891 175,227
Administrative expenses TBFAX 28,217 34,433
Selling expenses SHER 707 1,015
238,815 210,675
(@)  As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of property, plant and (@) RZEBE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8"
equipment pledged as security for borrowings are RMB981,879,000 ERHEREEAR%981,879,000
(2021: RMB1,578,864,000). TR - BB RRBEEMR (=
T ——4%F: ARK®1,578,864,000
TT) °
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW%
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Balance at 1 January N—B— B 23,115 23,960
Depreciation charge WERX (845) (845)
Balance at 31 December Rt-A=+—BW&EE 22,270 23,115
(@) The Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs and (@ MZZTEZ=—F+=-A=+—8"
maintenance as at 31 December 2022 (2021: same). REBIEHEEBREESD

BEE(ZZE=——F: AR) -
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

AN

A G B 15 SRR BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—

Fd — —
=
= ——

+=-A=+—HLFE

18. REME (&)

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties were (b)

performed by independent third party valuers to determine the

fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2022.

The fair value of these investment properties as at 31 December

2022 as assessed by the valuers by direct comparison method were
approximately RMB48,341,000 (2021: RMB38,531,000).

19. LEASES

AEBBEMERBLE=F1H
ERMETBYGE UEETKRE
MER-_ZF-_—_F+=_RA=+—
BOAFE ZEREMERZ
E__F+-_A=+—HBHHAF
EREGEMUEE L EETEL
B AR48,341,000C (=B = —
F : AR%38,531,0007T) °

19. HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. AWFREEBAEB AEHRANEE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) REHEEEBRERZN
sheet |
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating EHEEAGBERITUTEMER
to right-of-use assets: BEEEAHANSRE
Land use Offices and
rights® warehouses Total
b {55 F O WRAEREBE HBEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARKEFT
At 1 January 2021 R=B=—-%—-F—8
Cost (B 333,839 80,763 414,602
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE (43,960) (34,125) (78,085)
Net book amount R FHE 289,879 46,638 336,517
Year ended 31 December 2021 #HE=-Z=—F
+=—A=+—H
HEE
Opening net book amount ERFAREFE 289,879 46,638 336,517
Additions NE 7,842 11,934 19,776
Currency translation differences R = (215) — (215)
Depreciation charge (note 9) WeER (KiF9) (9,696) (12,992) (22,688)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 287,810 45,580 333,390
At 31 December 2021 R-EBE—-—F
+=—A=+—H
Cost (B 341,466 92,697 434,163
Accumulated depreciation ZitineE (53,656) (47,117) (100,773)
Net book amount BREFE 287,810 45,580 333,390
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B B % R 2R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

19. LEASES (Continued)

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

19. A& (&
(a) REHEERBERERN

sheet (Continued) SR (E)
Land use Offices and
rights® warehouses Total
=+ b 55 A REO WAERRE wmet
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR TR AR TR
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZE_-_—fF
+=—A=+—H
LEE
Opening net book amount HRWIRREDFE 287,810 45,580 333,390
Additions NE — 6,799 6,799
Currency translation differences BEmEER 15 — 15
Depreciation charge (note 9) EM (M5E9) (9,411) (15,227) (24,638)
Transfer to assets held for sale ERERELERE
(note 26) (Bf=E26) (22,084) — (22,084)
Disposal BE (2,257) (873) (3,130)
Closing net book amount HRAREFE 254,073 36,279 290,352
At 31 December 2022 N-E—-—F
+=A=+—H
Cost AR 310,706 75,668 386,374
Accumulated depreciation REE (56,633) (39.389) (96,022)
Net book amount R [ FHE 254,073 36,279 290,352

()  The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China ) ANER [ EE KR R EDfE
el TR ERH - BE

HRR B20E504F

—~

and Indonesia government for fixed periods of 20 to 50 years.
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It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year end

ed 31 December 2022

HZE Tt A=t —HIEEE
19. LEASES (Continued) 19. HE (&
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (b) REHEZRHMESW
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income HmREANEEHE
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive EHBERREME S KRRERIT
income shows the following amounts relating to leases: NTHESEFANSE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETF T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ERAEEEREMX
assets
Offices and warehouses WAEREBE 15,227 12,992
Land use rights T b 9,411 9,696
24,638 22,688
The Group leases land use rights and various offices and warehouses. AEBHEEL HMFERENANRZME
Rental contracts of offices and warehouses are typically made for MAERARE - WMAEREEN
fixed periods of 1 to 10 years. HESHNRERIZI10FMNETH
PRETZ o
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of land use rights (0) RZ—ZT-—=—F+=-—A=+—8"

(c)

pledged as security for borrowings are RMB74,786,000 (2021:
RMB60,404,000).

& R BR (B A R # 74,786,000
TR L AR (2T —
F : AR%60,404,0007T) °
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B B % R 2R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS

The following is the summarised information of the financial asset
component (receivables under service concession arrangements) with respect
to the Group's service concession arrangements:

20. RBHHAEERHETHNE

W K IE

HEARERGEAECELRHBRANTR
BEMAKD (RBFHFFLCELIETH
FEYRIR) KB BB o T

2022 2021
—EBEC-Cf —EF - —%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARETFT

Receivables under service concession AR R ST AC & 2 B N B0 FE MR IR
arrangements 7,588,356 6,509,663
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (46,274) (16,543)
7,542,082 6,493,120
Portion classified as current assets DIEEREEENZTD (211,255) (86,731)
Non-current portion FETMENEL 5 7,330,827 6,406,389
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20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

In respect of the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements, credit risks varied amongst the Group's projects
operated in different locations of Mainland China. The collection
of receivables under services concession arrangements is closely

monitored in order to minimise any credit risk associated with the

receivables.

B=E

20. RBIGFREE

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

TCFEFT A=+ —HLEEE

ZHTHE

W$Nﬁ(&)

(a)

REAEERBRBIETFLCELEHET

MEWFREmMS  EERBREX

%E’:‘qﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬂm%ﬁ'@gﬁ’ﬂ

BEME - RBREEEWRRIES

B EREERE  REFTL

& BT K FE W SR IE &) U Bl 15 R
REmY T o

2022 2021

—E_-— —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREFT

Yunnan Province EmEAE 1,878,934 1,915,588
Shandong Province IR E 1,143,973 1,144,019
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region Eib =P 669,135 897,945
Jiangsu Province LERE 588,426 714,456
Hebei Province AdtE 452,592 459,636
Henan Province A 376,575 363,240
Anhui Province A 1,098,267 359,363
Tianjin City R 148,698 152,907
Fujian Province A 146,547 141,240
Guangdong Province BR4 322,010 125,511
Chongging City BEM 103,298 102,340
Zhejiang Province VEipA=t — 81,044
Liaoning Province BEEE 43,163 52,374
Guizhou Province EIMNE 616,738 =
7,588,356 6,509,663
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B B % R 2R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. RBEHTAKEZHEINE
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) WRIE (&)
(b) The expected collection schedule of receivables under service (b) MRBBHFLCELTHETHEKRKE
concession arrangements is as follows: B TE BRI R NS
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTTT

Within one year —FE LA 211,972 86,731
One to two years —EF 309,919 93,784
Two to five years “HhHF 1,005,718 348,382
Over five years iBidhF 6,060,747 5,980,766

7,588,356 6,509,663
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Ot B 7% R 2% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-_A=+—RHILFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1. B EE

Unfulfilled Technical
Goodwill Development  Operating contract know-how
(note b)  expenditure  concessions rights Licenses and software Total
L KET EHEWR
(K &) BREY KOLER EHER MR L st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥Tn ARETR AR%Tn ARETn ARETn AR%T:n
At 1 January 2021 R=2=-%-f-H
Cost AR 425,592 9,573 13,060,135 52,301 658,186 108,709 14,314,496
Accumulated amortisation g i — —  (1,286,687) (39,674) (78,992) (20593)  (1,425,946)
Net book amount REFE 425,592 9573 11,773,448 12,627 579,194 88,116 12,888,550
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%
+ZA=1+-H
Opening net book amount BNEEEE 425,592 9573 11,773,448 12,627 579,194 88,116 12,888,550
Additions RE — 3416 341,631 - - 23,675 368,722
Currency translation differences ARAEESE (4,961) - (35,874) - — (37) (40,872)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBAR — = (179,829) = = = (179,829)
Amortisation charge (note 9) ZpR% (MF9) - - 405 238) (703) (19,073) (4,106) (429,120)
Impairment charge (note 9) RER (i) (77,854) = (120,301) = = = (198,155)
Closing net book amount BHRERFE 342,771 12,989 11,373,837 11,924 560,121 107,648 12,409,296
At 1 January 2022 R=B==5-A-A
Cost KR 420,631 12,989 13,186,063 52,301 658,186 132,347 14,462,517
Accumulated amortisation and 2 RELRE
impairment (77,854) — (1,812,226) (40,377) (98,065) (24,699) (2,053,221)
Net book amount REFE 342,171 12,989 11,373,837 11,924 560,121 107,648 12,409,296
At 31 December 2022 k- demint:3
+=B=1-8
Opening net book amount HREE 342,777 12,989 11,373,837 11,924 560,121 107,648 12,409,296
Additions E - 1,501 572,864 - - 11,014 585,379
Currency translation differences EHREEE 1,963 - 26,072 — - 4 28,076
Disposals HE - - - - (699) - (699)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HERBAR (H38) (10,975) - (432,281) - - — (443,256)
Amortisation charge (note 9) % (o) - - (539,199) (703) (19,073) (4,365) (563,340)
Impairment charge (note 9) BERR (M) (133,186) - (200,000) (1,763) (126,273) (64,333) (525,555)
Transfer to assets held for sale BETHELELE
(note 26) (FizE26) — = (19,045) (9,458) - - (28,503)
Closing net book amount HAEEFE 200,579 14,490 10,782,248 - 414,076 50,005 11,461,398
At 31 December 2022 R-B-—&
+ZB=+-H
Cost KA 371,567 14490 13,115,229 42,140 657,487 143,402 14,344,315
Accumulated amortisation and LB RAE
impairment (170,988) — (2,332,981) (42,140) (243,411) (93,397) (2,882,917)
Net book amount BEZE 200,579 14,490 10,782,248 — 414,076 50,005 11,461,398
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& F B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

204

(a)

(b)

Amortisation was charged to the profit or loss
accounts under the following caption:

21.

BVEE(H)
(a) MECRBHRBEPHT

5|18 B kR :

2022 2021

—E_-— —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Cost of sales SHER A 547,336 420,663
Administrative expenses THAX 15,962 8,457
Selling expenses HER X 42 -
563,340 429,120

Impairment test for goodwill

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has recognised goodwill with
total amounts of RMB200,579,000, which arose from acquisition of
subsidiaries in prior years. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the goodwill was allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU").
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by a value-in-
use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determined the projection period based on their
past experience and expectation for the market development and is
consistent with their business plan. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates.

(i) A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is

(b) AEREERNR

RZBE-_—_F+=_A=+—8"
TEBEHABBREAARE
200,579,0007C * T ZRA LA FE
W BE T /B8 22 B 1 BE A - Rk (A
HmME BEIRERSEAE
([BEeELEMN]) - BeELE
BRIl iR El & BRI F A E
BETE #FEFRFARSEE
TEA  REEEERZOAFH
MHREE BEEERAMNEES
REEREBAENBAELRK
HEMBEROES  BHEKS
WA ST 8 — 5 - BiR A FHM
MIREREDERA TR HTER
REH o

(i) UNUTEIEESBE 25 E

|

=

presented below: EHE
2022 2021
—E_-= —E-_—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREEF T
Solid waste treatment [E EEpR 32 16,578 149,764
Water supply oK 103,288 103,288
Wastewater treatment KRR 67,500 76,512
Construction and sales of equipment BERREHE 13,213 13,213
200,579 342,777
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B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

BEEE (&)

(b) EERERR (&)
BEReEEEMAER
& EHEERKXAEBE N
™

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21.

(b) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)
(i) Key assumptions used for recoverable amount of each CGU (i)

were in the range as follows:

As at 31 December 2022
R-ZB--F#+=-H=+—H

Construction

Solid waste Water Wastewater and sales of
treatment supply treatment  equipment
BER
[E] % 12 2 fit 7k 5 KEE REHE

Average annual growth W 2 S 19 FF 1 R 2R (i)
rate of revenue (iii) 2.25%-18.46% 0%-12% 0%-12% 10%
Long-term growth rate (iv) KHIE K K (iv) 0%-3% 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate (v) BH IR (v) 8.71%-8.84% 11%-14% 11%-14% 12%

As at 31 December 2021
WZEZ_—F+ZA=+—H

Construction

Solid waste Water  Wastewater  and sales of
treatment supply treatment equipment
BER
[ B 5T 12 oKk 75 K R 18 RiEBIHE
Average annual growth U 25 15 5 38 K 2K (i)
rate of revenue (iii) 3%-10% 0%-10% 0%-10% 10%
Long-term growth rate (iv) KEFHER R (v) 3% 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate (v) 8H 3R & (v) 10%—-14% 11%—-14% 11%-14% 12%
(i)  Management determined average annual growth rate of iy BEEABDREBEBARBER

revenue based on past performance and its expectations for
each market development.

(iv)  The long-term growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts
included in each industry report.

(v)  The discount rate used is discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections which reflects specific risks relating to each business.
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& F B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

206

(c)

(d)

Impairment charge

As at 31 December 2022, management has performed an assessment
of the CGU. The carrying value of the CGU is compared against the
recoverable amount. Based on the assessment, recoverable amounts
of the CGUs are determined by value-in-use calculation based on cash
flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets and
estimated future cash flows approved by management covering a five-
year period.

In performing the impairment assessment, key assumptions and input
data adopted by the management include forecast prices, forecast
production volumes, forecast operating costs and capital expenditures
and discount rates. Management determined (1) the forecast water
price based on the management expectations and also local policies;
(2) the forecast production volumes based on management’s
production plan and forecast production volume for the remaining
concession periods as set out in the reserve reports; (3) the forecast
operating costs and capital expenditures based on its financial budget
and business plan; and (4) the pre-tax discount rate reflected specific

risks relating to the relevant business.

Based on the assessment, the Group recognised net impairment
charges on goodwill and other intangible assets of RMB133,186,000
and RMB392,369,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: RMB77,854,000 and RMB120,301,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of operating
concessions pledged as security for borrowings are RMB246,546,000
(2021: nil).
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21.

BVEE(H)

(c)

(d)

RN

RZBEZZF+=ZA=+—8"
EREBH YA SELEMETT
Ao HHESELENNETE
BRI Bl & R ITHE R - BT
e ReELENMITIKESE
BIRBEEAEEET  EABE
AHEEREHUBEEGSLEMNE
ShREEIREEEBH# AN AE
HPREE -

FEETRENGE  EREMK
RAHERRRLRBERIEERE
B FBRES BRAEEKREAR
B X HARBARX ERER
BATEATR  (WVEREEE
Ta B Ko B b SR DA TEDORIK(E ¢ (2)
BRAEEBDHERNBERSTET
HE R R & R B & I8 £ E T &
LREBAESE  QREEMBEAE
Ko 75 5t 81 ) 5T FEOR B = B o
BeXi 0 R@BATI R KA R
BREL XIS AR E R R

ERELMBESGHE #2=2F%
5+ -A=+—HILEE"
AEBEHEHEEREMEREE
2RI ER T AR % 133,186,000
7T M A R # 392,369,000 7T K
BMERI(ZZE=Z—F: A
R # 77,854,000 T & A B %
120,301,0007¢) °

RZZE_—_&F+-_A=+—8"
ERBREROBETEEEBR
A A R 246,546,000 T (=
E-—F:F)o

=
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22. INVENTORIES

B fF B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8BItFE
22. 8
2022 2021
—E-= —EZ—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETTT

Raw materials R 70,377 58,945
Work in progress R 27,153 22,968
Finished goods T 32,390 34,130

129,920 116,043

Provisions for inventories amounting to RMB6,800,000 have been made for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

B -2 _-_—_#+-_A=+—HI#F
B A RTFERE ARY6,800,0007T

(ZB=-—F:F) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

23.

208

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

23. ES R EMEBERRERRA

PREPAYMENTS T RIE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIA
— Related parties (note 39(g)) - B (M93E39(g)) 2,184,168 2,052,478
— Local governments - BT 1,471,665 1,130,648
~ Third parties _E=5 2,557,934 2,684,947
Less: provision for impairment B RE RS (911,312) (395,341)
5,302,455 5,472,732
Other receivables H h FE IR
— Related parties (note 39(n)) - B85 (MFE39(n)) 38,376 40,567
— Third parties -%=F 1,684,329 1,942,621
Less: provision for impairment B R ERE (171,388) (113,747)
1,551,317 1,869,441
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R EHAERGRIBLRTE 6,853,772 7,342,173
Less: non-current portion of trade and B B 5 REAMEBGRIEIERBH S
other receivables (258,059) (914,561)
Current portion of trade and other B 5 REA BRI R EN B D
receivables 6,595,713 6,427,612
Prepayments TR EIE
— Related parties (note 39(g)) - B85 (MFE39(g)) 163,802 267,842
— Third parties -F=kh 1,338,063 1,380,298
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (41,961) (39,267)
1,459,904 1,608,873
Less: non-current portion of prepayments B TR RIEIEREN IS (1,207,570) (1,463,032)
Current portion of prepayments TBRRIEREE D 252,334 145,841
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables
Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables (including amounts due
from related parties of trading in nature) at the respective balance
sheet dates, based on the invoice dates or contractual terms, is as

23.

& OF B 1% 5k I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ T —"F+_A=+—HIFE

BESRHAMBBURERE

A (&)

(a) EZEWRE
REEERREERMRA NG
B A E B KR (R EBE
S e fE B Y OB M B IR

follows: BofmamT
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Within one year N 1,020,693 1,020,168
One to two years —E=F 463,061 1,981,864
Two to three years —E=F 1,979,246 870,572
Over three years =FHE 2,750,767 1,995,469
6,213,767 5,868,073

The Group have different credit policies for various products and

services, depending on the requirements of different business

segments and the contractual agreements with different customers.

Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade

AEBESEERERBHE TR
ZIEEBE  BETREBAM
MEREENRETPHE L@

i€ °

REEE 5 BT RN BERE

receivables are as follows: 2T -
2022 2021
—E-= — T —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R AREFT
Opening balance at 1 January A—B— BN 395,341 145,570
Impairment provision B 519,265 305,892

Write off impairment losses on financial ish & mE ERERE

assets = (56,121)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) LENBAR (E38) (3,040) —
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 26) EREREHEEE (MIFE26) (254) =
Closing balance at 31 December R+=A=+—BHHRESR 911,312 395,341
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

210

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other receivables
Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

23. ESRHEMEBBUWRERE
TR (&)
(b) H fth & W R IR
74 S5 I8 A KO 0 L

gghmT
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—HA— BRI &R 113,747 32,854
Impairment provision BB E 57,662 82,927
Reversal due to collection A Y [B] i 48 (2] = (2,034)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) LENBAR (M38) (14) —
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 26) EREREEEEE (MiFE26) (7) =
Closing balance at 31 December R+tZA=+—HBWEIRERR 171,388 113,747

(c) Prepayments
The Group's prepayments are mainly for purchase of goods and
services, acquisition of land use rights, and acquisition of equity
interests.

Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of prepayments
are as follows:

(0 BMREA
AEBNENRATEABER
R IRAS - 58 R A O R
e B 0 TS ROR

7R 5 [ 1O TR SRORR(E B 2

NN
2022 2021
B8 —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETT

Opening balance at 1 January R—B— B &R 39,267 —
Impairment provision BB 2,694 39,267
Closing balance at 31 December R+tZA=+—BWEIRERR 41,961 39,267

(d) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted cash mainly comprised of guarantee
deposits for construction of projects and deposits under frozen by the
judiciary (2021: same).

B fF B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. SRFEBE S

R-ZZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8 " ZRH
REFEZRREZBEENRES K
AERMRENTER(ZE=_—F :
) o

2022 2021
—E2_-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Guarantee deposits for construction of BERBEENRES
projects 56,042 237,441
Deposits under frozen by the judiciary W EDEEBFTR A B E 26,747 35,092
82,789 272,533

As at 31 December 2022, lenders of certain overdue borrowings had taken
for property preservation by judicatory, which included frozen of the Group
cash in banks of RMB26,747,000 (2021: RMB35,092,000).

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RZZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H HTF@&
HERNERADENADEIPIEL S
MERDER  BRRENEEBEET
HIR & A R¥26,747,000t (=& = —
£ AR#35,092,0007T) °

25. RERBEEEY

2022 2021
—E2_-— T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Cash at bank and in hand (note a) RITEREFERS (KitFa)

600,642 428,427
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(@) As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents of the Group are

denominated in:

25.

ReERkReEEYWE)

(a)

RZTEZ=—F+=-A=+—8"
AEBHNRELREEEBOUT
HEHEETE -

2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

RMB AR 571,614 392,735
IDR & 4,663 11,710
HKD BIT 4,521 10,416
usD ET 16,714 9,456
SGD N T 902 2,113
THB S 2,228 1,997

600,642 428,427

The conversion of the RMB denominated balances maintained in the
PRC into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE

(a)

Disposal of entire equity interest in Honghe Water Industry Investment
Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company A") (the “Disposal Group A")

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the board of directors
passed a resolution to dispose of certain subsidiaries of the Group by
way of public tender through Yunnan Equity Exchange Co., Ltd. (the
“YNEX"), an institution authorised by the Yunnan Provincial State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission to transact
assets and equity of state-owned enterprises under the Yunnan
Provincial Government. In November 2022, the process of the public
tender in relation to the Disposal Group A has been completed and
purchaser of the Disposal Group A was located.

On 27 February 2023, the Company and Beijing Enterprises Water
Group (China) Investment Limited (”Purchaser A”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited, a state-
owned enterprise, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to sell, and Purchaser A
has agreed to acquire, the 100% interest in the Target Company A
at a consideration of RMB155,400,000. The consideration has been
settled by the deposit received in 2021.

B=E

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

TCFEFT A=+ —HLEEE

THEAFFLEZEER

(a)

BE

BEAAMKBEEERERR
RE([BH A AL 8 & 3 A% 4
(THEHEBIAD
REBEE_T-_—_F+=ZA=+—
BLEFE ZEF2RBT —HER
% OBRAEEREXIMBERA
A([EmMRSHM])  KEEMEH
EEREEEERZESRBERE
EHEBNEELEEERR
EREE  AARELELASER
METHEBRAR -R=ZT==
+—A BHREAFNABEN AR
BERFERK  HEARANE
FEWHE °

m:—:—¢ AZ++H =«
7ﬂlﬁ¢¥ﬁ¢$$%lﬁ
NAIMEEEZEAMB AR
ZMM*M&QE@ A([ER
ADNFIZ—0EBE W - Hut -
ARARELEREFREWRE
ZH A FAR100% M #E - KRB A
AR #155,400,0007T ° fR{B AR
T —FERZREHEH -
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26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE (Continued)

Disposal of entire equity interest in Honghe Water Industry Investment (a)
0., Ltd. (the “Target Company A") (the “Disposal Group A")

214

(Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the Disposal

Group A classified as held for sale are as follows:

26 7HEABFELHEZEER

RE(HE)

HEANMKBEXRERR
NCIIQRES: DN

AA]) K 2 A A% 4

(THEERAD (&)

BROHEENANIZDBARE

HEZEERBEHINOT :

RMB’000
AR®B T
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment W - BWE &R 43,724
Receivables under service concession arrangements RR AR RT 48 & T BE T B0 FE R IE 85,259
Contract assets BREE 56,429
Intangible assets EAE 28,503
Right-of-use assets EREEE 22,084
Inventories 7E 329
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E b FEUGRIE 125,259
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEEEEYD 1,287
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale SDERFIERECHEERNEE 362,874
Liabilities afE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIIEE & 6,191
Borrowings (R 89,567
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H A FERTRIE 103,804
Provisions for other liabilities and charges HEthaERMAT#E 1,608
Current income tax liabilities EHFSEHAE 6,304
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as AEAFEHECEENEEEFAR
held for sale 207,474
Net assets directly associated with disposal group after A FEFHEE AN EHAR EZEMREN
fair value adjustment AEFE 155,400

As the consideration of the disposal was less than the net carrying
amounts of the relevant assets and liabilities attributable to the
Disposal Group A, impairment loss amounting to RMB12,219,000 has i

been recognised.
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26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of entire equity interest in Shuifu Water Industry Investment
Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company B") (the “Disposal Group B")

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the board of directors
passed a resolution to dispose certain subsidiaries of the Group by
way of public tender through the YNEX. In November 2022, the
process of the public tender in relation to the Disposal Group B has
been completed and purchaser of the Disposal Group B was located.

On 27 February 2023, the Company and Purchaser A, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which, the Company
has agreed to sell, and Purchaser A has agreed to acquire, the
100% interest in the Target Company B at a consideration of
RMB28,300,000. The consideration has been settled by the deposit
received in 2021.

B fF B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Hz—-—ZT——

+=-A=+—HLFE

260 PERBELHEZEER
RE(HE)

(b)

HEKEHERKBEXREER
AR([EH 2 FB]) &2 3% #
(THE4758))
REBEZE-_ZE-__F+=-R=+—
BLEFE ZEF2RBT —ER
#OBRBEMRSMARBEL
EXEEMNETHBRAR - K=
T-—F+—R - EHEMRBE
EHARBEEFE K HE
HRBMWE FEREE -

RZEBE-_=F_A=-++H =K
ARHEEHATY —HEEWE o
Bl ARBERABEHERENR
BB IZ A A AIBHY 100% A% 4% -
KB A A R #28,300,0007T °
BUR—ZZ_—FERIESHEE -
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26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD 26. 7 HARKIEHEZEER

216

FOR SALE (Continued)

RE(HE)

Disposal of entire equity interest in Shuifu Water Industry Investment by HEKEZKBEXREAR
Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company B”) (the “Disposal Group B") NGRS VNG EIDE: k- 83 -
(Continued) (T EHEBIBI) (&)

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the Disposal BREEARBN T ENIE AiFE

Group B classified as held for sale are as follows:

HEZEERBEHINOT :

RMB’000
AR®B T
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment W - BWE &R 10
Receivables under service concession arrangements RR AR RT 48 & T BE T B0 FE K IR 25,462
Inventories 78 6
Trade and other receivables B 5 kA A FEWRIE 15,154
Restricted cash ZPRHRE 10
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBeEED 221
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale SERFELEZHEENNEE 40,863
Liabilities a&
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIEAE 1,686
Trade and other payables B 5 KA R RIE 9,935
Current income tax liabilities EHMERAE 942
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as DEARELEZEENERIEBARE
held for sale 12,563
Net assets directly associated with disposal group after A {EFAEELEH SRR EEAB
fair value adjustment BEFE 28,300
As the consideration of the disposal was less than the net carrying HREERBENL E4RIBE
amounts of the relevant assets and liabilities attributable to the HHBEELABENEREE -
Disposal Group B, impairment loss amounting to RMB2,283,000 has O RE SRR E B 18 A R #2,283,000

been recognised.

JT °©
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HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B&
Number of
shares Share capital
RHHE g 2=
(thousand) RMB’000
(T &) AR® T
As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZZE-_—%—A—H"
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —E-_—F+_-_A=+—8"
—E-F—F—HRK
—E-—_F+=-fA=+—H 1,193,213 1,193,213
28. OTHER RESERVES 28. H o £ 48
Capital Statutory Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total
R 2= 5 45 EERME RERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TxR
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-B——F
—A—BI&ER 2,189,358 625,780 (14,411) 2,800,727
Currency translation differences HEnE = — — (22,147) (22,147)
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) HE L TERE
(MtzTa) = 39,693 = 39,693
Transactions with non-controlling IR 5
interests (note b) (F45EDb) (66,198) — (66,198)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B=-—F
+=—A=+—8W
EER 2,123,160 665,473 (36,558) 2,752,075
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-B-_—F
—A—HW&ER 2,123,160 665,473 (36,558) 2,752,075
Currency translation differences HEHmEEE — — (210,104) (210,104)
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) EERFERHE
(Hftzta) — 19,000 — 19,000
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-E-—F
+=—B=+—8BW
R 2,123,160 684,473 (246,662) 2,560,971
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HE-_ZT-_—F

+-—A=+—HL&FE

28. OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

218

(a)

(b)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

Statutory reserve

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, except
for sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, all PRC companies
are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated
under PRC accounting rules and regulations to the statutory reserve
fund, until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses carried forward
from previous years or to increase capital of the respective companies.

In July 2021,
Ltd. (“"YNDAMC") and Yun Shui Construction entered into the
supplementary agreement, pursuant to which, YNDAMC subscribed

the Company, Yunnan Asset Management Co.,

for 23.958% of the registered capital of Yun Shui Construction at
a consideration of RMB500,000,000. Upon the completion of the
capital injection, the equity interest of Yun Shui Construction held
by the Group and YNDAMC are 57% and 43% respectively. The
capital reserve amounting to RMB66,198,000 was transferred to non-
controlling interest.

B& 5B MRAF Annual Report 2022 4 & # &

H ftb 1t ()

(a)

(b)

EERE

BAR AP EAERE AR A ROEA - A
INEEBEREN FEFBEAFY
ARG IR IR B & AR B ROE AR A
HHBRB R REFNA10%E 8 E= %
EREe BHEERTESHHE
EHEAMEARMNSO% AL - A E
HEECHEBRKELE 1A
AERBEBEFELAENEIER
EMBBARNENRN -

R=ZFE-_—FtAH Apa =
HMEAEETEARAR(IZEE
EETE|)EIKBRITIIHEE
i BEAxERE  EmaE
EEE A AR500,000,0007T 2
REREZKEFKR23.958%H 7
MEXR - FTEEKE  AKEKR
ETHEAEEEERANEKER
BE#E D B B57% K% 43% ° B 2N f&
& A R #66,198,000 T 8 = 3E 4%
BRAE RS o
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29. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENT

The perpetual capital instruments have no maturity, and the payments

30.

of distribution can be deferred at the discretion of the Company. When

the Company elects to declare dividends to their ordinary shareholders,

the Company shall make distribution to the holders of perpetual capital

instruments at the distribution rates as defined in the subscription

agreements.

The average annual distribution rate is about 10% of principal for the year

ended 31 December 2022 (2021: about 9%).

Ot B 7% R 2% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-_A=+—RHILFE

29. KAEAXTHR
AARATALHIBE - BRART
mARAWBERE - A2 FRBAR
HERERTRRE - AARAERR
BiHHERT 2 HEERNKAERLAR

BAELSE

BE_ZT_—_F+_A=t+—HL#HF

BT E SRR
F: HARI%) -

HWRI0% (T - —

2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARKETT
Balance at 1 January R—HB—BM&e 1,622,300 500,000
Issuance BT — 1,622,300
Redemption fE& el (1,622,300) (500,000)
Profit attributable to holders of perpetual KAERTEFEE AL ST
capital instruments 107,555 113,587
Distributions to holders of perpetual capital MKABARTARFEAELHDIR
instruments (107,555) (113,587)
Balance at 31 December Rt-—A=+—BW&EE — 1,622,300
=%
BORROWINGS 30. &
2022 2021
—E-= —ET-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Non-current FERE
Long-term bank borrowings Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂéﬁx 15,419,734 2,778,605
Corporate bonds and other borrowings NElEHREME K 11,328,091 5,191,834
26,747,825 7,970,439
Current TED
Short-term bank borrowings G BRI TIE R 455,778 4,439,748
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings — RHIRITE RN RENZ D 870,331 10,508,225
Current portion of corporate bonds and other R &EEH M HEMERATRE LS
borrowings 2,058,701 5,737,134
3,384,810 20,685,107
30,132,635 28,655,546
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

220

(a)

The Group’s borrowings carried weighted average interest rates of
4.42% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
5.73%).

As at 31 December 2022, other borrowings from related parties is
depicted in note 39(h)&()&)&(K)&()&m).

As at 31 December 2022, borrowings of RMB13,164,081,000
(2021: RMB13,946,858,000) were secured by pledge of the Group’s
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets,
right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets and the Company’s investments in subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2021, the overdue borrowings were secured by
the aforesaid assets with total carrying value of RMB2,952,281,000.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as
follows:

30. & (&

(a)

BHE-_T_—_F+=-A=+—
BIEFE - A% E &R nEFH
FER R BANNK(ZF = —F :
5.73%) °

RZFE-—=—F+=-A=+—8"
REBBHINEMBEREREER
B 5% 39(h) &) &) &(K)&(1)&(m)

RZTEZZF+ZA=+—
B 3% AR 13,164,081,000
T(Z T = — #F AR ¥
13,946,858,0007T ) A 7~ & B iR 7%
BHCETHERBRERE 608
E FAREE WX BER
R R B A E R AR B A M
BRAMRE LR EE R o

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8"
mEE R Bl B EEEAE
#WERHEE A A R12,952,281,000

JT °©

R—_FE-_—_F#+=-A=+—8"
AEEBRNEEBAOT

2022 2021
—E_- - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
Within one year or on demand —FARKIES 3,384,810 20,685,107
One to two years = 3,557,041 5,020,600
Two to five years —ERF 15,295,604 590,743
Over five years BB RF 7,895,180 2,359,096
30,132,635 28,655,546

The Group’s borrowings were denominated in: () ANEEEZUTIEEE
2022 2021
—ZE2-— —_E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
RMB AR 29,141,375 27,607,592
usD ETT 975,203 999,181
THB BN — 30,783
EUR BT 16,057 17,990
30,132,635 28,655,546
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(9)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group failed to
repay RMB1,157,710,000 of certain borrowings according to
their scheduled repayment dates. Although the Group managed
to settle some of these borrowings during the year after the due
dates, RMB1,118,793,000 remained unsettled as at 31 December
2021.

interests payable and those portions of such loans that had original

The total amounts of these overdue borrowings, including

contractual repayment dates beyond 31 December 2021 amounted
to RMB3,920,203,000 (the “Overdue Borrowings”). Furthermore, the
Group was not able to comply with certain financial covenants of its
other borrowings (the “Covenant Borrowings”) with a total amount
of RMB1,695,958,000 as at 31 December 2021.
aforementioned borrowings totalling RMB5,616,161,000 as at 31
December 2021 would be immediately repayable if requested by the
lenders. Out of such amount, borrowings of RMB2,983,632,000 that

have original contractual repayment dates fall beyond 31 December

Consequently, the

2022 were classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

These matters triggered cross-defaults and resulted in certain other
borrowings of the Group (other than the Overdue Borrowings and the
Covenant Borrowings) with a total amount of RMB10,781,143,000 as
at 31 December 2021 becoming immediately repayable if requested
by the lenders, of which RMB6,628,398,000 represented non-current
borrowings with original contractual repayment dates fall beyond 31
December 2022 that were classified as current liabilities.

B=E

30. f&

(9)

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

T+ -_A=+—HULtEFEE
(II‘E
REBEE—TE=-—F+=—A=+—

BIEFE  AEBEREZRBE
EXRAHEEETERARE
1,157,710,0007C ° & E AN & B &
EEFEBE -FRNEFBD %
EZER - EBAR_ZFE=_—F+=A
=+—H8 " AK¥1,118,793,000
TANAREE - ZE@ABRNE
HREEMFEBERRAEHEER
B A= -_—F+=_A=+—
HENEHEERTS) RARE
3,920,203,000 7T ([ % 8 f& 5 ) o
Bt oh - AR K E R ESEHE M E R
(R=ZF=Z—F+=ZA=+—8H
H 48 % A A R % 1,695,958,000
) E THBRE (D@ F
K1) M ERAZK
:—¢+—ﬂ:+_EE@LM
#wEE A AR S5,616,161,000 7T H
BREKBEBNEE - Hh -
REHNERBPA-_T ==
+ZA=+—"HBEHERAR
#2,983,632,000/L A =T = —F
+-_A=+—B®EosEARHE

& o

ZEEHBEBEIXEN
TEHAEER_-_T = —F
+ZA=+—"BHHBBEAARK
m7m1@0%ﬁ%ﬁ?¥ﬁm%
(18 B 18 30 R 32 56 18 BRBR M) K
%%inEW$ﬁAEﬁ%
Ho o AR#6,628,398,0007T 4
WHOEARRBEENREHNERSR
HEAR-ZE_—_F+=-A=+—
HERMIERBER -

Annual Report 2022 4F & 4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k B8 &5 B R A & 221



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ff B 75 i % 9 AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

222

(9)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

(Continued)

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
further failed to repay scheduled instalments and interests of
RMB362,615,000 relating to borrowings with a total amount of
RMB4,619,134,000, of which total amounts of RMB3,164,749,000
were related to borrowings that were either overdue or otherwise in

default as at 31 December 2021.

From December 2021 to January 2022, lenders of certain Overdue
Borrowings amounting to RMB764,360,000 had applied to the courts
in the People’s Republic of China for property preservation measures,
and the courts ordered to freeze the Group’s certain cash in banks,
and equity interests in an associate and a subsidiary. In January 2022,
the Group reached a settlement with one of the above lenders for
Overdue Borrowings of RMB381,866,000 as at 31 December 2021,
but failed to repay the agreed rescheduled instalments in February
and March 2022. On 23 March 2022, due to further legal actions
taken by the relevant lender, the Company was listed as a person
subject to enforcement by Urumgi Intermediate People’s Court, for
the settlement of the outstanding amount of RMB371,503,000. The
Group believes that the property preservation and enforcement caused
by relevant Overdue Borrowings will not constitute major contingent
liabilities of the Group and has not recognised any provision in the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Overdue Borrowings were
renewed and cross-defaults has been ratified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(9)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered
into legally binding loan agreements with the banks to revise and
extend the repayment schedules for bank borrowings with aggregate
amounts of RMB16,435,118,000. The maturity dates of the bank
borrowings were renewed from range of 1 year to 24 years to range
of less than 1 year to 24 years, and the interest rates of the bank
borrowings were renewed from range of 3% to 9% per annum to
range of 1.8% to 4% per annum.

The management of the Group considers that the terms of the
revised loan agreements with aggregate principal amounts of
RMB5,774,164,000 are not substantially different from the original
loan agreements as the discounted present values of the cash flows
under the revised terms discounted using the original effective
interest rates are different from the discounted present values of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liabilities by less than
10 per cent. Accordingly, such modifications of terms were accounted
for as non-substantial modifications, and the aggregate adjustments
of approximately RMB297,449,000 to the carrying amounts of the
financial liabilities were recognised as other income as set out in note

6 at the respective dates of modifications.

The management of the Group considers that the terms of the
revised loan agreements with aggregate principal amounts of
RMB10,660,954,000 are substantially different as the discounted
present values of the cash flows under the new terms discounted
using the original effective interest rates are different from the
discounted present values of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liabilities by more than 10 per cent. Accordingly, such
modifications of terms were accounted for as extinguishment of
the original financial liabilities and the recognition of new financial
liabilities. Therefore, the Group derecognised the original borrowings
of RMB10,660,954,000 outstanding, and recognised new borrowings
measured at fair values amounting to RMB9,654,080,000 in aggregate
as at the respective dates of extinguishment. The differences between
the aforesaid carrying amounts of the borrowings derecognised and
the aforesaid fair values of the new borrowings recognised amounting
to approximately RMB1,006,874,000 in aggregate are recognised
as other income as set out in note 6 at the respective dates of
modifications.

B fF B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. ESGREMERNRIE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Trade payables (note a): B 5 e FE (i a)
~ Related parties (note 39(g)) - BAE: 5 (M EE39(g) 1,144,174 1,498,780
— Third parties -F%=5 6,018,684 5,210,270
7,162,858 6,709,050
Notes payables & R IE — 318,010
Other payables: H b fE AT RROE
~ Related parties (note 39(g)) - BAE: 5 (M 3E39(g) 210,222 246,061
— Third parties -F=5 1,287,399 1,200,576
Staff welfare benefit payable ERETREA 125,699 59,957
Other taxes payable E i B 18 113,551 200,531
Dividend payables RS 70,357 73,655
8,970,086 8,807,840
Less: non-current portion B IEmEEB S (49,900) (2,833,401)
Current portion piE Ik pa) 8,920,186 5,974,439
(@)  Trade payables are settled in accordance with agreed terms with () EFENMZREREBHEEEEGT
suppliers. IR AEE -
(b) At 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis of the trade payables by RZBE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8"
based on invoice dates or contractual terms, is as follows: BIEEERABRAENERIELD
BORNFENRRTAT :
2022 2021
—E-—F —ETE-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARKEFT
Within one year —FLR 914,272 1,635,012
One to two years —E=F 1,553,742 2,701,724
Two to three years —E=F 2,623,526 1,250,758
Over three years =F AL 2,071,318 1,121,556

7,162,858 6,709,050
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_ T —"F+_A=+—HIFE
32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. i fE W i
Deferred income represented government grants received from governmental BIEW S EIER A EEEETRKEER
authorities with respect to Group’s constructions of wastewater treatment o HEKER M - (B BE RE ) BRI R LA B iR
facilities, water supply facilities, solid waste treatment plants as well as the (oK PR 75 JE R T M RS B PR BUAT f
provision of water supply service. The movement of deferred income is as By c MIEWZEHEZHT -
below:
Government
grants
KT 8 B
RMB’000
AR TR
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 R-ZB-—F—F—BWHBD&R 709,768
Additions NE 167,130
Credit to profit or loss accounts FFABEER (33,238)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRBAR (26,500)
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 REB-—S+-A=+—HNBEKER 817,160
Opening balance at 1 January 2022 REB=-=F—A—BNHN&ELR 817,160
Additions NE 52,225
Credit to profit or loss accounts FTAERR (46,410)
Transferred to construction in progress (note 17) wATETE (MEE17) (7,626)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HEMBAR (MFE38) (919)
Closing balance at 31 December 2022 R-BZZF+ZA=+—HBWHLEER 814,430
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& OF B 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—&F+-_A=+—HILEE

33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(a) Deferred income tax assets

33.

i fIE i 5 31

() EEFEHEAE

2022 2021
B8 T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR T T
The balance comprises temporary REREIEERER
differences attributable to:
Deferred income BEEW E 118,672 158,028
Tax losses HIE &8 357,812 662,857
Accrued expenses and impairment provision  fExtFI ST KR EEE 108,490 341,992
Total deferred income tax assets BEFTSTHEELRE 584,974 1,162,877
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities WIHBEEF SR AaE (255,039) (290,750)
Net deferred income tax assets FIREFTS BB E 329,935 872,127
Accrued
expenses and
Deferred impairment
income Tax losses provision Total
EstBE XK
Movements 25 EEW R HEBE AERE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARET R
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 RZB=-%F
—A-BWBN&ER 140,228 467,596 278,293 886,117
Credited to profit or loss TAEE 17,800 195,261 63,699 276,760
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 ~ R=F=—Ff
+ZA=+—-AMNHRLER 158,028 662,857 341,992 1,162,877
Opening balance at 1 January 2022 R-BZZf
—B— BRI 158,028 662,857 341,992 1,162,877
Charged to profit or loss SABE (39,356) (305,045) (233,502) (577,903)
Closing balance at 31 December 2022 R=EB=Z%
TZA=t-BRHRER 118,672 357,812 108,490 584,974
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

o ——

33. IRIEFRIGH (A&

+=-A=+—HLFE

(b) EEFBHRER

2022 2021
B8 T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T T
The balance comprises temporary REREIEERER
differences attributable to:
Fair value gains ASEEIE (496,216) (838,856)
Service concession receivables PR 7555 7 FE U R IE (511,275) (699,408)
Others Efth (52,838) (78,921)
Total deferred income tax liabilities BIEFSHAERE (1,060,329) (1,617,185)
Set-off of deferred income tax assets HEHBREFRSHEE 255,039 290,750
Net deferred income tax liabilities FIREFTSBAE (805,290) (1,326,435)
Service
Fair value concession
gains receivables Others Total
PR 7 4 5
Movements 4] AFEKR FE W 3 Httr st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARET T ARET T ARET T
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 RZB=-%F
—B—-BMENER (877,940) (526,964) (57,246) (1,462,150)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss REZTREA/ (F08) 39,084 (172,444) (21,675) (155,035)
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 R=-E=—%
+ZA=+-AMNBRES (838,856) (699,408) (78,921) (1,617,185)
Opening balance at 1 January 2022 RZIBZZF
—-B-BMBNES (838,856) (699,408) (78,921) (1,617,185)
Credited to profit or loss HABR 301,385 188,133 26,083 515,601
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HEMBAR (Mi38) 33,378 - - 33,378
Transferred to liabilities associated with BREHSBAKELE
assets classified as held for sale BERBENAR
(note 26) (FizE26) 7.877 — — 7,877
Closing balance at 31 December 2022 RZZ-Zf
+ZA=+—-AMERLER (496,216) (511,275) (52,838) (1,060,329)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

34. PROVISIONS

34, BB

Maintenance

costs Others Total
RERAE Ht st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARB TR AR® T
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 R-B-——%
—B—BRBIE 494,314 2,922 497,236
Provision capitalised in intangible assets REREER BEE
BHEER 17,287 — 17,287
Amortised to profit or loss accounts B ERR
(note 11) (M5E11) 9,529 2,195 11,724
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 R=B=—F
+=ZA=+—HW
MRS 521,130 5,117 526,247
Opening balance at 1 January 2022 R F
—A— BN 521,130 5,117 526,247
Amortised to profit or loss accounts BT AR
(note 11) (PE&E11) 19,015 3,837 22,852
Utilisation o — (3.276) (3.276)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) ST A R
(Ff7E38) (17,094) = (17,094)
Transferred to liabilities associated ERERSEARFELE
with assets classified as held for sale BEMRBENAR
(note 26) (Ff5E26) (1,608) — (1,608)
Closing balance at 31 December 2022 R-B-—F
+=ZA=+—H#®
LS ] 521,443 5,678 527,121

(@)  Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by the
Group, the Group has the contractual obligations to maintain the
facilities it operates to specified level of serviceability and/or to restore
the plants to a specified condition before they are handed over to
the Grantors at the end of the service concession period. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the facilities, except
for any upgrade elements, are recognised and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

35. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash used in operation

35. B RERMERME

(a) BEFMARE

2022 2021
—E-— —ET-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®T R AR T T
Loss before income tax Fris Bl & 18 (982,359) (1,030,933)
Adjustments for: HATSEELHE :
— Impairment losses on financial assets -EMEEREBERERE 619,678 419,125
— Impairment losses on intangible assets -ERAEREES 525,555 198,155
— Impairment losses on inventories -FEREBR 6,800 —
— Impairment losses on prepayments -ENREREEE 2,694 39,267
— Impairment of assets classified as -DBEARIELECEERE
held for sale 14,502 =
— Depreciation of investment properties - EWMENE 845 845
— Amortisation of intangible assets -EREEEH 563,340 429,120
— Depreciation of property, plant and -M¥E BERREBINE
equipment 238,815 210,675
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets -ERREERE 24,638 22,688
— Share of profit of investments - AERE AR FEIS
accounted for using the equity 2 & i A
method (23,560) (78,517)
— Other gains — net - E = T 95,273 (164,333)
— Finance costs — net - BB TR 1,332,178 1,530,806
— Gains on modification of borrowings - fERAR RS (1,304,323) —
Change in working capital: EERESE :
— Inventories -FE (14,569) (7,705)
— Contract assets -EHEE 986,485 (1,933,239)
— Trade and other receivables -8B 5 [ H e YR TE A K&
and receivables under concession B EgEETH
arrangements FE WK IE (1,327,427) (1,133,369)
- Prepayments - Bt FIE 146,275 6,552
- Trade and other payables -B 5 REMERNKIE (52,037) (246,490)
— Contract liabilities -aRAaE 13,818 (807)
- Deferred income — B FE W s 5,815 133,892
Cash generated from/(used in)
operations BEFRES(FFA)RE 872,436 (1,604,268)
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HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

35. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Significant non-cash transactions

(9]

230

During the year ended 31 December 2021, capital contribution from
non-controlling interests included amounts of RMB183,308,000 by
contribution of certain concession projects to a subsidiary.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as disclosed in note 16(b-2)
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group disposed of its
49% equity interests in Haiyun Environmental Protection to Qianjiang
Biochemical at a consideration of RMB777,140,000 were settled by
issuance of new shares of Qianjiang Biochemical to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, payments for (1) certain
construction projects and other transactions and (2) redemption
and distributions of perpetual capital instruments amounting to
RMB550,520,000 and RMB1,687,551,000 respectively, were paid by
the Group’s related companies on behalf of the Group and credited
to other payables of the Group.

35. GO R EREBRME(H)

(b) EXFREMETEH

REBEE-_ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—
BILEE  JEEBRERNIER
BB ARMWE THIFLEE
B & 2% AR 183,308,000

JT °©

REBEE_ZE-_—F+_A=+—
BIEFE - & G0 15 R&R M
16(0-2FTR » AEEUREAR
¥ 777,140,000 T # E B &
ERRAO%BHBRELE TEITE
bt REHEEEIELLEBAAR
NAEBITHRDEE -

REBEE_T-__F+=ZA=+—
BLEFE AEE/HEBAENR
RAEELINTNETERER
REAMR BB FHRQR)KAEAR
TEAEMEBR RS  ©EIHAE
A R # 550,520,000 T & A R #
1,687,551,0007C * W&t A A
B EL fth & < ZRE e

Net debt reconciliation (c) EHRFHER
2022 2021
—E_-= - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETF T
Cash and cash equivalents REMBEEED 600,642 428,427
Borrowings (B (30,132,635) (28,655,546)
Lease liabilities HEAE (39,008) (45,271)
Net debt B F5E (29,571,001) (28,272,390)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 600,642 428,427
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BERBEE — EENE (18,203,397) (16,844,726)
Gross debt — floating interest rates B4R — FE)FX (11,968,246) (11,856,091)
Net debt (Etecl (29,571,001) (28,272,390)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—_ZT_-_— ZA=t+—HLEFE

35. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

35. A REREBERM T (F)

() BEXFEYUKRMA)

Liabilities from financing activities

REMETHNERS
Cash
and cash Lease
equivalents Borrowing liabilities Total
HeER
REeZEY (R HEA®E &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AR¥Tr AR¥TRx AR¥TxR
Net debt as at R=-Z-_—%—HA—H
1 January 2021 KR ER 1,697,688  (27,541,815) (49,034) (25,893,161)
Financing cash flows Eﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ% (1,269,964) (680,594) 19,326 (1,931,232)
Other changes (i) o = (457,943) (15,563) (473,506)
Foreign exchange adjustments 9\\[?)??@%?% 703 24,806 — 25,509
Net debt as at R-B=-—F
31 December 2021 +ZA=+—HH
FER 428,427 (28,655,546) (45,271) (28,272,390)
Net debt as at R-B=-—%—H—H
1 January 2022 KR ER 428,427 (28,655,546) (45,271) (28,272,390)
Financing cash flows BMERERE 187,840 (454,478) 13,062 (253,576)
Gains on modification of GRS
borrowings — 1,304,323 — 1,304,323
Transferred to disposal group B AH &R (1,508) 89,567 = 88,059
Other changes (i) E b FEN(i) — (2,301,822) (6,799) (2,308,621)
Foreign exchange adjustments  SNEHT & A (14,117) (114,679) — (128,796)
Net debt as at R=-8=-=
31 December 2022 +=ZA=+—8HK
FER 600,642 (30,132,635) (39,008) (29,571,001)

(i) Other movements mainly comprise finance expenses recognised for
borrowings, lease liabilities, non-cash transactions and other operating cash

flows.

HoZHFEaERER -

HE

BE FREXFRAMEER
ﬁm;ﬁ& ISR X
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAEIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred as of 31 December Bz -+ -_A=+—HB:%
2022 is as follows BHAEENEARAILNT
2022 2021
—E=-= —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Property, plant and equipment, concession W - BB KRR FTEEEAR
projects and construction projects EFRIEE 9,347,286 11,723,410
Equity investments A 240,298 240,298
9,587,584 11,963,708

37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 37. Bt IS B2

2022 2021
—E-= —ET-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBTTT

Provided for the borrowings of a joint venture  FLA & QA A LS N FIEFIRMEH

and an associate (note 39(0)) R (MI7E39(0)) 220,745 287,140

Guarantee provided for the borrowings of B = H EFIREAER
third parties — 2,101
220,745 289,241
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Disposal of entire equity interest in Yunshui Technology Co., Ltd. (the
“Target Company C")

On 3 November 2022, Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(“Vender A"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Global Environment Investment Company Limited (“Purchaser
B”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of SIIC Environment Holdings
Ltd., a state-owned enterprise, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which, Vender A has agreed to sell, and
Purchaser B has agreed to acquire, the 100% interest in the Target
Company C at a consideration of RMB296,259,700. The consideration
was fully settled during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The transfer of control over the Target Company C has been
completed on 2 November 2022. The effect of the sales and purchase
agreement is subject to the approval of Independent Shareholders.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 3
November 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 24 February
2023.

B=E

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

TCFEFT A=+ —HLEEE

38. HEKE A F

(a)

HEZKBEARQA(NED
A AIC]) B & 2P AR &
RZTZ_ZF+—H=H &2
AAEZ2EWNBRARIZEm KK
(BB)BRMHERQR(EHAD
Elﬁﬁ%iﬁf%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
NAMEEEZENBQRIRE
(?@ﬁ@ A ([ B #Bl) Tz
—mMEEHRE B BEHARE
HEBEFBRAENREBARE
296,259,700 7T i B2 M) A BICH)
100%&HE HE—T-_—_F+=
A=+—RHILFE REE2H

o+
w®E o

BORACHZEHEERE R —-F
T ZF+—RAZHEK -EEW
R H RN AT R A -

ERAHB  #2HARRBHA
T HF+—-—RAZ=ZHNRER
AANBIBHA-_ZT-_=4_A
Z+ ™ H® K
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HE_Z_—_F#+_-_A=+—8L=FE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

234

(a)

Disposal of entire equity interest in Yunshui Technology Co., Ltd. (the (@)

“Target Company C") (Continued)

38. HEME AR (&)

HESKBMEAERAA(TENA
ACHH 2 HAE(E)

RMB’000
AR T
Consideration RE
Cash B 296,260
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEERBESN
Non-current assets HRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE KEE 118
Receivables under service concession arrangements BR A4 ST A & 2 BE T Y FE MR 192,324
Intangible assets B AE 376,240
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAEWGIE 19
568,701
Current assets TEEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements BRI H FT A & 2 BE T Y FE MR 8,295
Inventories FE 443
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EWRIE 109,151
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEED 16,620
134,509
Non-current liabilities FnBEME
Borrowings E 68,650
Deferred income IEE U 25 919
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEAE 20,323
Provision B 14,283
104,175
Current liabilities HEEE
Contract liabilities BHBE 6
Borrowings B 26,000
Trade and other payables Z 5 R E A FERTRIE 269,695
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAE 1,618
297,319
Net assets disposed of HEBREEFE 301,716
Loss on disposal HEEBE (5.456)
Total consideration wIRE 296,260
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZBHEFR
Cash consideration received BURRESRE 296,260
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HERSRASEEER (16,620)
279,640
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of entire equity interest in Hyflux NewSpring Waste Water
Treatment (Mingguang) Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company D")

On 20 December 2022, Hyflux Utility WWT (MG) Limited (“Vender
B”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
CGN Environmental Protection Industry Co. Ltd. (“Purchaser C”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN Power Co., Ltd., a state-
owned enterprise, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which, Vender B has agreed to sell, and Purchaser C has
agreed to acquire, the 100% interest in the Target Company D at
a consideration of RMB96,523,000. The consideration approximately
to RMB57,738,000 was settled during the year ended 31 December
2022. The disposal was completed on 30 December 2022.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 20
December 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 24 February
2023.

B=E

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

TCFEFT A=+ —HLEEE

38. HEME AR (&)

(b)

HEIESKEBEAX)BR
AR ([ZHRAID]) K 2 2B A% #E
RZTEZ_ZF+=-HA=+H &K
ARIMHEE2EWNB QAT
RAREXEFKEAX)ERLA
(FrE7B)) ME A P B EZ
BEORMERAANEESZEN
BARREZEBEREXBRAA
TEACDIIY—0EEWHS

B, EABEE X E R E AC
[ & AR B A K %96,523,0007T
B EIZA R AIDA 100%M& & -
HE-_T-_—_F+=-A=+—
BIEFEE BHEEREHARE
57,738,0007C ° HE FIH N =%
T+ -_A=t+tHZEK-

BT F2BAQRBHA
—EZF+ZAZ+HNMASE
EARARAYPA=-ZZT=-_=%=-A
Zt+ I BAREK -
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& OF B 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—BLEE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. HEME AR (&)

(b) Disposal of entire equity interest in Hyflux NewSpring Waste by HENBRSKEEMBEX) R
Water Treatment (Mingguang) Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company D“) AR([TER A FED]) 8 & &A% 4
(Continued) (%)

RMB’000
AR® T
Consideration RE
Cash e 96,523
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEEREEDN
Non-current assets HRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - WEREE 363
Receivables under service concession arrangements BR A4 AT A & 2 BE T RO FE WA 51,148
Intangible assets BREEE 56,041
107,552
Current assets REEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements BRTSFFET 40 & 2 BE T A FE IR R IE 1,921
Inventories FE8 249
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A FRIA 44,586
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREFEY 2,055
48,811
Non-current liabilities FnBEME
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEAE 6,974
Provision = 2,811
9,785
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HE b e RIE 33,229
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHARG 239
33,468
Net assets disposed of HEBHEESFE 113,110
Goodwill [EES 10,975
Loss on disposal HEEE (27,562)
Total consideration BRAE 96,523
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZRESFRA
Cash consideration received BUERSNRE 96,523
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B RERSRBESEEEE (2,055)
94,468
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(o)

Disposal of entire equity interest in Lu’an Yeji Yunshui Water
Investment Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company E")

On 28 December 2022, the Company and Purchaser C, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which, the Company
has agreed to sell, and Purchaser C has agreed to acquire, the
100% interest in the Target Company E at a consideration of
RMB87,295,900. The consideration approximately to RMB51,377,000
was settled during the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
remaining of the consideration was settled on 13 February 2023. The
disposal was completed on 29 December 2022.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 28
December 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 24 February
2023.

B fF B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZ

— & — —
=
=z ——

+=-A=+—HLFE

38. HEME AR (&)

(0

HEALMESEREKRKKEIRE
BRAR(MEMRARED B 2E
A% 4
RZEZZF+=ZA=+N\RH"
RARHBE FCGIY—HEEH
F OB ARRRELHERE
FCRE R E ARYS7,295,900
7T A EE B A FERN 100%
BE-Hz-_FT=-_=-+=-A
=+—HIEEE BHEBREYD
A R #51,377,0007C © Fl g (B
RZBE-_=F_A+=B%&3F-
HERZZT-_—_F+=A=+AN
A5 °

EWAFE #2B4ARAIBHA
ZEZZF+ZAZ+NBHA
ERARABBA-T ==
AZ+tMBEMEK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEK B AT (4#&)

238

(c) Disposal of entire equity interest in Lu’an Yeji Yunshui Water (c) HERNRZMEEREKKBIIESE
Investment Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company E”)(Continued) BRAR(MEMRARED B 2E
BEHE (&)
RMB’000
AR TR
Consideration RE
Cash b 87,296
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEEREBEDH
Non-current assets HRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB K& 354
Receivables under service concession arrangements RRASFFET AL & L HE T O FE GRIE 142,233
142,587
Current assets HEEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements BRTFSFFET AL & 2 HE T M FE U 5K IE 2,742
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EWRIE 9,767
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 1,815
14,324
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEXERIBEE 6,081
Current liabilities HEEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 RE M FERTRIE 62,667
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHRARS 5,476
68,143
Net assets disposed of HEBEREESFE 82,687
Gain on disposal & W 4,609
Total consideration BIRE 87,296
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZHESFRA
Cash consideration received BYHRSNRE 87,296
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B NERS RESEEER (1,815)
85,481
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(9]

Major shareholders
The following entities are the major shareholders of the Company

& OF B 1% 5k I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8BItFE

30. TE@MB IR Z

(@) TERK
UTEBREADNRMETERRK

Name Place of incorporation Ownership interests (%)
£18 AR FRERERZ (%)
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—4F
Yunnan Green EmREFEIRRK PRC 30.07 30.07
Environmental EXEEERAA A Y
Protection Industry ( EME&HERIR
Group Co., Ltd. =] )
(“YEPI")
Beijing OriginWater JEREIKIREHL PRC 24.02 24.02
Technology R BR AR ]

Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
OriginWater")

( MEmBKRIR] )

Subsidiaries
Interests in principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15.

Name and relationship with other major related

(b) KA
EEMBE A AMAERRI S -

() ABATNEBRERME

parties EREKSNER
Name Relationship

=1 ke

YHTH Controlling shareholder of YEPI
EREIREE EEEEIRIRE B TR R

Caiyun International Investment Limited (“Caiyun Investment”)

FEBBRRERRAR ( [RERE])

Yunnan Investment Group
ER&EE

Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“YCIH")
EHERERREERERERAR ( [EPERER] )

YNDAMC
EHEEEER

Fellow subsidiary

EES =P

State-owned enterprise

IR SETE 3

State-owned enterprise

BAERE

State-owned enterprise

BELE
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Ff B 75 i % 9 AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Key management personnel compensation

240

(e)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

Key management includes executive directors. The compensation paid

or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

30. X EMB AR5 (&)

(d)

EEEBEAEHFH
EEZERARREATES
ETRBENRENEEERA
BOHMMT

2022 2021

—E=-= T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARETT

Short-term employee benefits EEIE T e 6,619 8,605

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has following transactions and balances with

related parties:
Transactions with other state-owned enterprises
In accordance with HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, state-owned

enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by

the PRC Government are regarded as related parties of the Group.

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by
state-owned enterprises. During the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021,

including, but not limited to, operating services, construction services

the Group had transactions with state-owned enterprises

and equipment sales.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business on terms comparable to those with other entities
that are not state-owned. The Group has established its pricing
strategy and approval process for purchase and sales of products
and services. Such pricing strategy approval processes are consistently
applied regardless of the counterparties are state-owned entities or
not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
Directors are of the opinion that none of these transactions are
material significant related party transactions that require separate

disclosure except for the transactions with YCIH.

B& 5B MRAF Annual Report 2022 4 & # &

(e)

BAAGT B RERE MBS RE
BRSO - AR R B R T R
5 R EREEWT

HEMBEARRETHR

2
RIBEE ST ERFE 2457 B85
®E| - ATBEBFEZSREE

BB A DR REKB D RER
RAEEHRRB T -

AEBEHRELEFTENE
EIRBALEER - RNEBEZ
T _FRZT=-—F+=A
=+ HBIEFE AEEHERSF
TEETHRZIBEETRER)
BERY ERBRERBMEHE -

WERSGDHAEREENBEER
ﬂ&¢&7ﬁﬁm#lﬁ§ﬁ
I E LB RREST - AEE
Egﬁﬁgém&%%miﬁﬁ
B KRB /ERAR - B B B R AL
&m&ﬁ@%%‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ
TERBEEER KEZTEESR
BMEEANEER ARAEER
R ERX SR TE LR

MNEATEZEBEB IS HHE
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(f)

Significant transactions with related parties

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related entities which are
carried out on terms agreed with the counter parties in the ordinary
course of business:

It B 75 5 % B AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

TCFEFT A=+ —HLEEE

30. X EMB AR5 (&)

(f) ERBAINEERS

RBE-_Z-_—Fh_T_—%F
TZA=t-RILEE KA&£EH
HEMERRUTFOINERER
BREPHENGFRETTATE
KRG

2022 2021
B8 —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Sales and purchases of goods and services HE KB E 8 m &R
— Sales of goods and services to YCIH - HEERERBET
TR ER
— Sales of goods and services to other - HEEMERBT
related parties E fth BEESE 77
— Purchase of construction services from - REMEREERES
YCIH EEARTE
— Purchase of construction services from - WWEERRE B ZERE
Haiyun Environmental Protection
— Purchase of goods from Beijing - HIAEREBKEBEER
OriginWater
— Purchase of equipment from Beijing - RRItREmEERE
Kunlun
Finance costs of borrowings EE G #N
— Caiyun Investment - RERE
— YHTH - THRIREE
— Yunnan Green Environmental Protection - EHEHERREXER
Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“YEPI") BRAT]
( EmZeRRE"E] )
- Yunnan Dianzi Herong Investment - EFAEMAREAER
Development Co., Ltd. (“YDHI") BRAA]
( [EFEEMA] )
— A joint venture and an associate - —ReBEna Rk —RKEE QA

6,754 38,848
— 3,556
1,202,107 1,159,585
1,968 58,858
256 1,397
11,150 —
45,046 71,798
285,641 160,400
48,831 —
42,696 —
— 2,788
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Ff B 75 i % 9 AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. FE@ABARZF (&)

(Continued)
(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ () HEE BEERRER®
purchases of goods and services EENERENNEIES
B4
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting UTNEBEERE T RINEHD
period in relation to transactions with related parties: MEHRMKREN -
2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Trade receivables for sales of goods and HEE M RIREHE 5 UK
services
- YCIH - ZHEREE 2,168,661 2,024,084
— Haiyun Environmental Protection - BERR 2,876 9,204
— Other related parties — H b EFEE 12,631 19,190
2,184,168 2,052,478
The balances of trade receivables from sales of goods and services are HEEMERBOHE F EWHKIE
mainly denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and settled in NEHRTEUAARBE - ?ﬁ?ﬁ
accordance with agreed terms with related parties. W8 NIBEEBEERIAOTE
WIEREE -
2022 2021
—E=-= —ETE-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Prepayments for purchase of goods and BEEMRRS 2 BN HKIE
services
- YCIH - ZHEREE 158,846 262,691
— Beijing OriginWater - EREKR 4,956 5,148
— Other related parties — Efth A = g

163,802 267,842
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. FEBEB AR S (&)
(Continued)

(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ () HEE BEERRER®
purchases of goods and services (Continued) EENERENNEIES
&R (4&)
2022 2021
—EBEC-Cf —EF - —%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETFT
Trade and other payables for purchase of BEEMEREZES R
goods and services H b BT FRIE
- YCH - EHEREE 1,265,831 1,628,721
— Beijing OriginWater - EREKR = 14,400
— Other related parties - HthEgu 88,565 101,720
1,354,396 1,744,841
Less: non-current portion of trade and W B REAERFRIER
other payables FEENERER S = (98,199)
Current portion of trade and other payables 2 5 Kk H#f fEft 88
BIEREE 1,354,396 1,646,642
The trade and other payables for purchase of sales of goods and BEEMERB2E I REME
services are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and are NRBEBUAAREE - EEAF -
settled in accordance with agreed terms with related parties. BB RIBEEBE SO TN

*h 4+ =5
NEEE o
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& F B 1% R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_-_—F+

ZRA=+—HLFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(h) Borrowings from a related party — Caiyun

()

30. X EMB AR5 (&)

(h) BEBLTER — RER

Investment =
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTFT
Opening balance at 1 January R—BA— B eR 860,524 1,566,002
Repayments B = (685,341)
Currency translation differences BRE = 114,679 (20,137)
Closing balance at 31 December RT+=—BA=+—HBMEREH 975,203 860,524

The borrowings granted from Caiyun Investment are denominated

in USD, unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with

agreed terms with Caiyun investment.

FEREBERTHMERAETH
TE CEER R R XAREH
HERENENRHIEE -

Borrowings from a related party — YHTH (i) DEBAIER — EFE
Hie &=
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Opening balance at 1 January A—A— B4R 4,366,330 813,572
Receipts Wz 3,798,463 8,504,086
Repayments EBR (6,846,892) (4,951,328)
Debt restructuring (EUGERE (90,680)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWEREER 1,227,221 4,366,330

The borrowings granted from YHTH are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed

terms with YHTH. As at 31 December 2022,

interest and other

financial charges payable to YHTH amounted to RMB13,095,000

(2021: RMB212,137,000).
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& OF B 1% 5k I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8BItFE

30. X EMB AR5 (&)

(Continued)
() Borrowings from a related party — YEPI () MEABAEER — EEiZ
BRRE

2022 2021

—E-_—F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AREFTTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—H— BHHB&ER = —

Receipts Wiz 987,500 —

Repayments B (3,500) —

Debt restructuring BEBEA (46,656) —

Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWEREER 937,344 —

(k)

The borrowings granted from YEPI are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed

terms with YEPI.

Borrowings from a related party — YDHI

EEKERAREER T OME RN
ARBHE SBEAF 8%
ARBREZEKERFAEENTE

B R KB E -

(k) MEABLSER — EREE

BENA
2022 2021
—E-C—f —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHEN &R = —
Receipts Wk 10,810,200 =
Repayments BN (1,919,174) =
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWERER 8,891,026 =

The borrowings granted from YDHI are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed

terms with YDHI.

EEEEMAR THERAAR
BatE \ER FE - ALAR
BREREEMBTL TN HEKE

B o

Annual Report 2022 4F & 4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k B8 &5 B R A & 245



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& OF B 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-_—&F+-_A=+—HILEE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. FE@ABARZF (&)

(Continued)
() Borrowings from a related party — Yunnan () MEABFER — ERE
Investment Group =]
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTFT
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHEN&EER 500,000 —
Addition N0 — 500,000
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—BWEREE 500,000 500,000
The borrowings granted from Yunnan Investment Group are EREERFHERAARES
denominated in RMB, unsecured, bear interest and repayable in B - EEKF 58 WERKHRE
accordance with agreed terms with Yunnan Investment Group. As EREEBNTHEREE - RN
at 31 December 2022, interest and other financial charges payable E-_—_F+-_A=+—8 " FEfR
to Yunnan Investment Group amounted to RMB63,122,000 (2021: EREBWNFBEREMEEE B
RMB12,639,000). B ARKE3,122,000 (= = —
F : AR12,639,0007T) °
(m) Borrowings from a joint venture and an associate (m) AEEQATARBE QTG
E A
2022 2021
—E-—&F T4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARETT
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWE&Es 64,838 30,000
Receipts Weak — 39,838
Repayments B (13,168) (5,000)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BHWER&EE 51,670 64,838
As at 31 December 2021, the borrowings granted from a joint R-ZEBE-_—F+_-_A=+—8 "
venture and an associate are denominated in RMB, unsecured, bear AR NT RN TR T E R
interest and repayable in 2022. IARBEE  EEKF 518 -
WERZZTE__FEE-
As at 31 December 2022, the borrowings granted from a joint NR-ZEBE-_—_FE+=-_A=+—H -
venture and an associate are denominated in RMB, unsecured, bear AENTIRBENTIETHER
interest and repayable on demand. AAR®E E&R - FER

ERBRERE -
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39.

(Continued)

(n) Funds due from/to related parties
(i) Funds due from Beijing OriginWater

(ii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

TEBRB LIRS (&)

(n) ERBAIHNESEXR
(i) BRIEREKFHE
&

2022 2021

—EB-Cf —EF - —%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T ARETFT

Opening balance at 1 January R—HA— BHHR &R 25,063 25,063
Payment (DB 170 —
Closing balance at 31 December RT=—A=+—HAMERER 25,233 25,063

Cash advances with other related parties

(i) BEMEHT R E

B
2022 2021
—E-C—f —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWEN&eR 15,504 14,798
Payment (BN 13,143 1,325
Repayments B (15,504) (619)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—BA=+—BMEREH 13,143 15,504

The funds grant to related parties are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

R IRENESHUAA
R¥E EER 28K
FEREBREE -
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(n) Funds due from/to related parties (Continued)
(iii) Funds due to other related parties

30. X EMB AR5 (&)

(n) BEBLINESERE)
(iii) FEfTE BB 5 i &
&

2022 2021

—E-_F —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T ARETTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—HA— BHHR &R = 5278
Repayments B — (5,279)

Closing balance at 31 December

Rt=-A=+—HOHRER = —

The funds grant from related parties are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

BB TR ESHUAR
BitE  EER  2ERE
REREER -

(0) Guarantee (o) &
2022 2021
—EC-—F —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Guarantee provided by YHTH in respect of TR IR S B RN B S TR
the borrowings of the Group R 2,399,322 1,567,780
Guarantee provided by YEPI in respect of EMFERREERAEEERIR
the borrowings of the Group HEER 1,813,122 —
Guarantee provided by Yunnan RongZhi TERERERRAR ( [&
Capital Management Co., Ltd. 2| ) mAEEER
("Rongzhi”) in respect of the borrowings REAOER
of the Group 200,122 =
Guarantee provided to related parties in MEERB REERRINER
respect of the borrowing of a joint ) A 7 R AR RO HE (R
venture and an associate 220,745 287,140
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

40.

(Continued)
(p) Credit enhancement

In order to facilitate the Group to issue perpetual bonds during

the year ended 31 December 2021,

YHTH has undertaken to

the bondholders to acquire the Group’'s perpetual bonds of

RMB1,622,300,000 under certain circumstance and also provided

certain properties of YHTH as security (note 29).

B=E -—=

tT-A=+—HLEE

39- igsﬁﬂ%ﬁ?&%(ﬂ'ﬁ)

(p) B

RERAREEBRNE

BT —F

+ZA=+—BLFEBITKE
B EZEEKEEERNESFIFH
ARFEREBERTEBEASE
E A R #1,622,300,0007T & 5k 48

& WHRH

EERKREEETY

EERERME29) -

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 4. X AREERER
2022 2021
—_E2_-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE =N e 159,511 167,763
Receivables under service concession RIS FFET A = R HE T HY
arrangements FEUS 718 61,173 71,620
Investments in subsidiaries R B R EIMEE 9,337,396 9,945,412
Contract assets BRIEE 25,465 5,827
Intangible assets BmVAE 34,587 14,880
Investments accounted for using the equity AR R A BRI E
method 1,028,271 1,021,930
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At FEUFRIA 1,166 1,140
Prepayments Tﬁﬁé” 404,359 404,359
Financial asset at fair value through other NEEFEBEZETA
comprehensive income E{ﬁziﬁ/\uﬁl TS REE 76 76
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSFHEAE 152,022 151,897
11,204,026 11,784,904
Current assets EﬁEbEE
Receivables under service concession ARFS AT AC & L HE T Y
arrangements EEH&T 815 —
Inventories & 36 6
Contract assets BREE 128 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b FEUGRIE 1,592,859 1,370,594
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A R 5RIE 11,087,434 12,141,401
Prepayments A OB 1,155 1,087
Restricted cash TR HIRE 59,754 68,994
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEEED 2,954 17,569
12,745,135 13,599,651
Total assets HEE 23,949,161 25,384,555
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BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

40. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 40. X AR EEEBER(E)
(Continued)
2022 2021
B8 —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREEF T
Equity fE=
Equity attributable to ordinary EATEBRRREGERS
shareholders of the Company
Share capital &N 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves (note a) HibfEE (Miska) 2,365,076 2,365,076
Accumulated losses (note a) 25518 (Fista) (814,534) (30,767)
2,743,755 3,527,522
Perpetual capital instruments KABATEA — 1,622,300
Total equity R 2,743,755 5,149,822
Liabilities i=F
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings (EEN 15,482,263 4,784,769
Current liabilities REBaE
Borrowings & 1,897,666 8,319,260
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENKIE 3,825,381 7,130,704
Current income tax liabilities EHMGRAE 96 —
5,723,143 15,449,964
Total liabilities e B 21,205,406 20,234,733
Total equity and liabilities EnRkAEAE 23,949,161 25,384,555
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors AARBEBBEREARNESTEN -
of the Company on 31 March 2023 and was signed on its behalf. TE_=F=R=+—HH#LETAHTIA
TRAEEE -
Director Director
2 EEa
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HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

40. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Movement of other reserves and accumulated

0. A AEREERER(A

() EftEBERFREBREEH

losses

Retained
earnings/
Capital Statutory (accumulated
reserve reserve losses) Total
RBER
R ARG E EERE (RFER) Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R AR®T T AR® T
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-B=-—%
—A—BK&s 2,195,657 169,419 235,524 2,600,600
Loss for the year FRERE — = (195,353) (195,353)
Dividends for the year ended HE-Z-TF
31 December 2020 +=-A=+—HI1t
FREERE — — (70,938) (70,938)
Balance at 31 December R-B=Z—F
2021 +=-A=1+—HK
b 2,195,657 169,419 (30,767) 2,334,309
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-B-—F
—A— B 2,195,657 169,419 (30,767) 2,334,309
Loss for the year FAEE — — (783,767) (783,767)
Balance at 31 December R-ZB-—F
2022 +ZA=+—HHK
ek 2,195,657 169,419 (814,534) 1,550,542
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
 E-_T-_—F+-_fA=+—HILFE

41. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS M. EZEIRER
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EEREENME
The emoluments of individual director and supervisor of the Company REFBEN /AR TEAZE
paid/payable by the Group are presented as below: EREEHMEE2NHT
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2022 () BE=—FE=-——F++=
A=1+—HLFE
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary and other to pension
Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
EER EEEAE
Name of directors/supervisors EE/BEHS He i HERA H R A SRR @

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETn ARETR ARET#R

Executive Directors: HIES:
Mr. Yu Long (Vice-chairman, TEEL(BESER

General manager) R ) — 2,038 - 81 58 2177
Mr. Zhou Zhimi BAERLE - 273 - 63 38 374
Non-executive Directors: FUTES:
Mr. Mei Wei (Chairman) BELE(ESR) = = — - — _
Mr. Dai Richeng HAMELLE = — - — _ _
Mr. Chen Yong BELE — - — _ _ _
Mr. Liu Hui /L4 — - - - - —
Supervisors: -
Mr. Long Limin EFREAE _ _ _ _ _ _
Mr. Zhu Zhen SREHE = = — - — _
Mr. Huang Vi S - a1 - 63 38 522
Ms. Tang Shuang BTt - 210 - 50 37 297
Mr. Tan Hairui EEHELE 36 - - - - 36
Ms. Zhang Ling KRIL 36 - - - - 36
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:

Directors:
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BEWIEAE 1m — — — - 1m
Mr. Zhong Wei BREE 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Zhou Beihai AR E 100 - - - - 100

443 2,942 - 257 17 3,813
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHFE

41. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS M. EEEANRER(F)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEREENME (E)
(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (il B =—FE=-—F++—
A=1+—HIFE
Employer's

Allowances contribution

Discretionary and other to pension
Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
2ER EERAKE
Name of directors/supervisors EZ /2N #s %2 miEta HEi 7 BEE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTTL  ARETT  ARETR ARETn AREBTT  ARETR

Executive Directors: BTES:
Ms. Li Bo (Appointed on 24 June 2021 ZiF&+
and resigned on 30 September (RZZ--%
2021) AAZTEA
BZALR
—E--F
NAZTHEE) = = = - - -
Mr. Yu Long (Chief executive officer) FErE
(i) 10 2,028 - 130 — 2,168
Mr. Yang Fang (Resigned on BhEE
11 June 2021 (RZZF=-%
~AT-HEE) 100 218 - 4 - 360
Ms. Ling Hui (Appointed on REXT
11 June 2021 and resigned on (R=Z=-%
10 November 2021) ~RT—H
BEZALR
—E--F
T-ATHBE) - 181 — 2 - 202
Mr. Zhou Zhimi (Appointed on BAEELE
10 November 2021) (R=Z=-%
+-A+8
zf) - 13 — 2 - 15
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BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

41. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)
(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2021

M EESEANRER(F)

(@) ESRESHWME (&)
(i) BE-F=—£+=

254

(Continued) B=+—HIEFE
(#&)
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary and other to pension
Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
2ER  EERKSE
Name of directors/supervisors EZ/ERHY e ¥¢ [l HiER sHElf R @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AREFTR AREBTT ARETRT ARETR
Non-executive Directors: Fa1TES:
Mr. Li Jialong (Resigned on FRELE
11 June 2021) (R=Z2=—-F
NAT—HEE) = = = = = =
Mr. Dai Richeng BEREE — — — — — —
Mr. Chen Yong RELE — — — — — —
Mr. Liu Hui (Appointed on 2BEE
11 June 2021) (R=ZB=-%
~AT—B
EZf) = = = = = =
Ms. Li Bo (Resigned on 24 June 2021)  ZR&+t
(R=FB=_—-%
~AZtWmA
BfT) = = = = = =
Supervisors: Ex:
Mr. Long Limin EHRLE _ _ _ _ _ _
Mr. Zhu Zhen SEEE - 476 - % - 571
Mr. Huang Vi BR L — 219 — 85 — 304
Ms. Tang Shuang ER& T 3 — — — — 33
Mr. Tan Hairui BEHEE 3 — — — — 3
Ms. Zhang Ling KRET - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BRIEE 190 - - — - 190
Mr. Zhong Wei EREL 13 - - - - 13
Mr. Zhou Beihai [EBIR Pk 13 — — — — 13
392 3,135 — 375 — 3,902
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41. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:

none).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2021: nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
As at 31 December 2022, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2021: nil).

(e) The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as directors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were RMB371,000 (2021: RMB326,000).
The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022
were RMB2,551,000 (2021: RMB2,635,000).

AN

A G B 15 SRR BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4. EEEFNRER(E)

EENENENREBRE
F
HE-_T-_—_F+=-RA=+—H
IEFE  #BEFEE0 IR
B RRBEANSBEBEN(=F
Z—F fE) o

MRENESEREM@E=
FRHENKE
HE-_T-_—_F+=-RA=+—H
LtFE AEETERERES
RIEAMEAME=AZAFRE(ZZ
——F |

EBUEE -ESEHNTE
HEtERBAEEBRAS R
ANER -EERKHA
REMER
RZEZZF+=ZA=+—8"
BMELNES EENIEHEE
FEEERATEANER £
BREEMRGTZH(ZT=—
F )

EERBEERBE-_ZTS=-__F
+-ZA=+—HALEFEELA
NAEEED RSk E KN H
B 4258 A AR 371,000 (=%
——%F : AR#326,0000T) - =
ERHERBE_SE-_—F1+=
A=+ BLFEEHEEALAR
AIEBRENEMREREE R X
N EROFHaERARKE
2,551,000 (ZF=—F : AR
#2,635,0007T) °
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BE_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—RALEE

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. FEPREE
On 27 February 2023, the Company (as vendor) and Purchaser A entered R-_ZE-_=F—-"A=-++tH8 ' AAA
into (a) the Honghe Equity Transaction Agreement, pursuant to which, (MEBEH)BE HART M4 EER
the Company has agreed to sell, and Purchaser A has agreed to acquire, SR Bk ARAFTRELHERE
100% equity interest in the Target Company A at the consideration FAR B WIE AR R AR B ZHN QA AARN
of RMB155,400,000; and (b) the Shuifu Equity Transaction Agreement, 100% 3% # - KB A AR % 155,400,000
pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to sell, and Beijing Enterprise 7T ROKEEERZAER  EHIL - K
Water has agreed to acquire, 100% equity interest in the Target Company AaEEEE RILEKEEE WE AR
B at the consideration of RMB28,300,000. The considerations have been ARIFBEZEH R EBRI100%HE - KB
settled by the deposit received in 2021. B AR#28,300,0007C c KEBEUR -F

——FERReEE -

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 27 February BEAHE H2HAQFBHA-T
2023. “=EFZA-TEHENRE -
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

Five-year Financial Summary

AFETEHE

F%ﬁﬂﬂéﬁiééﬁﬁflﬂ%éﬂﬁé

INCOME
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
TECF —E-—F ZTFTF ZFT-NF ZE-)N\F
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTRT ARET T ARETIT ARBT T ARETT
Revenue e zs 3,789,322 5,280,743 8,396,630 6,538,024 6,255,628
Gross profit EF 753,848 1,316,564 2,096,132 1,832,313 1,498,009
Profit before income tax FriSE A= (982,359) (1,030,933) 502,624 677,549 644,226
Profit for the year F R Al (1,158,349) (1,055,254) 341,311 553,808 496,715
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEMEET) -
Ordinary shareholders of the Company RN EEBARAR R (1,060,342) (1,001,876) 223,095 398,153 397,753
Total comprehensive income for the year  FR4RA WaE4AFE (1,390,172) (1,077,401) 353,320 572,023 323,974
Total comprehensive income AT AT EESRE
attributable to: Was4a%E -
Ordinary shareholders of the Company AAREBRALR (1,270,446) (1,024,023) 235,104 416,368 225,012
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HHEHEEAEER
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B _F _T-_—F _FT-FTF _T—NF ZET-—N\F
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR TR ARET T ARETT ARBT T ARETT
Assets EE
Total non-current assets SEMBIEERE 38,158,878 40,462,391 36,676,593 29,164,775 23,363,751
Total current assets MEVEEMREE 8,509,626 7,963,229 10,576,221 10,704,357 9,310,095
Total assets BEBE 46,668,504 48,425,620 47,252,814 39,869,132 32,673,846
Equity and liabilities ERREE
Equity attributable to: AT R A
Ordinary shareholders of the Company RNEEBARAR R 2,743,756 4,014,202 5,175,361 4,749,316 4,556,822
Perpetual capital instruments KABERTA — 1,622,300 500,000 2,610,000 1,200,000
Non-controlling interests IR 1,744,560 1,961,636 1,932,201 1,186,669 1,177,450
Total equity RS 4a%E 4,488,316 7,598,138 7,607,562 8,545,985 6,934,272
Non-current liabilities ERBBE 28,971,386 13,504,638 26,292,531 20,760,860 16,527,163
Current liabilities mEALE 13,208,802 27,322,844 13,352,721 10,562,287 9,212,411
Total liabilities BERTE 42,180,188 40,827,482 39,645,252 31,323,147 25,739,574
Total equity and liabilities R B EEE 46,668,504 48,425,620 47,252,814 39,869,132 32,673,846
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report
IR i/% Zi &kk B #& =

INTRODUCTION

Yunnan Water is one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in China. The Group keeps a mode of “massive
water” of raw water supply, tap water supply, sewage treatment, reclaimed water,
black and odorous water treatment, river comprehensive treatment which covers
all categories in water sector while carries out the solid waste recycling business,
such as the industrial waste treatment, medical waste treatment, kitchen waste
disposal, waste incineration and power generation, carbonisation and resource
utilisation of sludge and pyrolysis carbonisation of organic waste, and provides
services including design, investment, construction, operation and maintenance,
comprehensive solutions and core technology system integration. The Group
will leverage its own advantages, closely combine with the actual situation of
Yunnan Province, around the green economy promising province strategy, ethnic
culture promising province strategy and a bridgehead strategic objective of the
PRC open to the southwest, firmly grasp the opportunity of the implementation
of the state’s “One Belt, One Road"” strategy, adhere to its enterprise culture
of the fear of heart, grateful heart, self-confidence, keep careful, professional,
rigorous working attitude, and build an “Internet of things + Internet” digital
intelligent environmental protection enterprise. It is committed to becoming an
urban environmental integrated services provider with core technologies, strong
investment and financing capabilities, core competitiveness and social influence
which is based in Yunnan Province, serves the whole country and moves towards
South Asia and Southeast Asia.

In order to enable stakeholders to understand our policies, measures and
performance of environmental, social and governance (the "ESG"), the Group has
prepared and published the ESG report (the “Report”).
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group incorporates environmental and social responsibility into its business
operations and decision-making process to ensure that sustainable development
governance is consistent with our business strategy. The Board provides
comprehensive supervision and guidance, and assumes overall responsibility
for decision-making and reporting on environmental and social responsibility
work. The Board selects qualified members with appropriate skills, experience,
knowledge, and perspectives in response to ESG related matters. The functions
and powers of the Board include determining the ESG management policy and
strategy of the Group, holding a meeting at least annually with the assistance
of the relevant designated personnel (“Designated Personnel”) to discuss
and review the performance of the Group’'s major ESG issues and ESG related
objectives, as well as evaluating the Group’s risks related to ESG, so as to ensure
the establishment of an appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Board regularly inspects and evaluates the implementation
of the Group’s environmental and social responsibility system and the progress
of ESG related goals, so as to supervise the Group’s fulfilment of its corporate
social responsibility, ensure the long-term growth potential of the enterprise, and
approve the information disclosed in the Report.

The Designated Personnel include core members from different departments who
have relevant professional knowledge in various aspects of ESG to assist the
Board in overseeing ESG related matters. Designated Personnel are required to
arrange meetings at least annually to assist in evaluating the effectiveness of the
ESG system, identifying and evaluating the ESG risks of the Group, and ensuring
compliance with ESG related laws and regulations. The Designated Personnel will
engage an independent third party to conduct an annual importance assessment
to evaluate, prioritise, and manage major ESG related issues, as well as prepare
ESG reports. By collecting and analysing ESG related data, Designated Personnel
assist in regularly reviewing the progress of ESG related goals. Designated
Personnel are required to report their investigation results, decisions, and
recommendations to the Board at least once a year.

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report covers the ESG activities, challenges and measures taken of the Group
during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (“2022").

REPORTING SCOPE

The scope of the Report is determined by the management of the Group after
considering the importance of the impact of different projects on the Group’s
policies and financial performance, and whether the Group has direct control over
the project.

RIECHENRERRE

ESGRIZEZE

AEEBRBEMSRETIIENARLEK S
BERMRFAREY UHRUBERESHA
HEMAESEBRRE N -ZEFE2EE
BEMEE  THREHELSET TIEMNRE
MEREAEREEM  -BEECHEMARBESGE
EmMPERAMENEE HE - 8% - M
RBEMWAERKE ESTSNBRERER
EALBMESGE IR F T KK - WEMREE
EAEB(EBEAEBNNBH TELBF AR
BHE R E R AL B &= KESGH @ FIESGAE
BHEEHNRE  UAREAEEFBESGHRAR
ETHE BRIUSGEEAHREAKREER R
NERF EETerHRENTEAEH
WIRE R & B 5 ENRITIE R RESGHEE
BEMEE NEBASERITHEMELS
B HERCENRHEARE N TEMA
RENHEEER -

EEANBBEETRIIFIZLKE - HEESGH
BESEHBHEBIENG  URHESSE
BESGHEZEE - BT ABRTELBFLHE
FER BT HESGE R A MM - HFH AR
£ B WESGRE K - #E (R B <PESGAE B A 2 &
BT AEBECEZBYE - ETFEE
BTG - AFEHE - BRI KRB IR E KESG
HEEEARFERESGHRE - BBKREMDT
ESGHHEAEE - 8 & A B 1% 8) F Bl sESGHH
HEREE - EEABRELEF—AME
FEeEREASLER RERESE -

&

AREREANEBE T -__F—A—HE=-Z
T+ - A=+—BHBE(Z8B==%))
IS RIESGT EAEE) - PRE AR EX A #E 6 ©

& E
AHEREEAEENEREEERT FRE
BHAREHRERYERAYENESIE
MRAEENZIERRT A E R
B
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report
R g NER®RS

The information of environment disclosed in the Report covers 188 water supply,
wastewater and solid waste treatment project in operation of the Group in the
PRC in 2022. The social related information covers operations in the PRC, Hong
Kong and overseas regions in 2022. After the Group’s data collection system
becomes more mature and the work of sustainable development deepens, the
Group will continue to expand the scope of disclosure in the future.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG Guide and based on the
reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance, and consistency.

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to diagnose material issues
in 2022, thereby adopting the confirmed material issues as the focus for the
preparation of the this Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and
confirmed by the Board and senior management. Please refer to the sections
headed “"STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT" and “MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT" for
further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the calculation key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) in the Report and the applicable assumptions have
been noted and supplemented. All the figures have been rounded up to 2 decimal
places.

Balance: The Report was prepared based on an objective and impartial manner
to ensure that the information disclosed faithfully reflects the overall ESG
performance of the Group.

Consistency: The statistical methodologies applied to the Report were substantially
consistent with the year ended 31 December 2021 (“2021") for comparison
purposes, and explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the
scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

The corporate governance practices of the Group have been published in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of the Annual Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group attaches importance to stakeholders (including investors and
shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and subcontractors, regulatory
authorities, government authorities and communities, as well as non-governmental
organisations (“NGOs"”) and the media) and their opinions on the Group's
business and ESG matters. In order to understand and respond to the concerns of
stakeholders, the Group maintains close communication with major stakeholders.
In formulating the operation strategy and ESG measures, the Group will take into
account the expectations of the stakeholders, and through mutual cooperation,
the Group will continuously improve its performance and create greater value for

the society.

Through different stakeholders’ participation and communication channels, the
Group will bring stakeholders’ expectations into the Group’s operation and ESG
strategy. The communication channels and expectations of stakeholders are as
follows:

Stakeholders Communication Channels

ﬁ%t% It“"ZQ %Aﬁic
BFHhESH
AEBERFNHE(BEREEIRE - ¥

F-BT #EBNOER  EEREBNBUT
W R FRTEB(RRERED R

HR)MHEHAEERBERESGEENEER -
RTEEOERNDEBITEER  KAEBET
ERNERFTEDER - CEHFTEERBR
ESGREHER » AEBEEEEHNENRE - &
BRI AFEASE B NEELRER /it
EMEEKNEE -

BBTRANBEHEL2HERBERREE  A5E
CRIFTHENHES ARNEE ML IERESGH

cHMAENBREE R EME XN
T

Expectations and Concerns

FHE BERE HMEME T
Investors and shareholders 3 Annual general meeting and other o Compliance operation
shareholder meetings o Information transparency
o Financial reports o Protection of rights and interests and
3 Company website and e-mail the fair treatment of shareholders
o News reports, announcements and o Return on investment
circulars o Risk management
o Conference and teleconference o Corporate governance
3 Site inspection
KEERKR J BRRBAFREREMERRAS o BREE
. MEHE . ERBRAE
. ANEIBERER o RIEER KRR ATEB
. HEE - AERE . R & [ #H
U TEREFEE o 2 B B 1
J BIHER o *tEER
Customers o Customer support hotline and e-mail o Products and services quality
3 Customer satisfaction survey o Customer privacy protection
o Visit and meetings o Business integrity and morality
BF . BEPEFAGRESR . E%ﬁ%ﬁ%%
. EEWMEERADT . RIEZ P BT

. Faig s

. ﬁ%ﬂEA =
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Stakeholders

Communication Channels

Expectations and Concerns

B 5 & BREERE HE M B E
Employees 3 Training, seminars and briefing ° Career development opportunities
3 Employee performance appraisal and e Health and safety
performance evaluation meetings o Remuneration and benefits
3 Culture, public welfare and sports o Working environment
activities o Protection of employees’ rights and
3 Working meeting and special meeting interests
o Face to face talks, e-mail contact and e Staff care
teleconference o Staff communication
3 Career development communication
mechanism
8T . Bl - kENT g . EXRERKE

Suppliers and partners

HEBNOERE

Regulatory authorities and

government

BB AR A DT
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. BTEMERRRAN S
. X RERBEEY

. THEEREETH

. EHEX EHMBEREFSH
. BB 26 3 R OB B

3 Business meetings, e-mail and
telephone

. Review and assessment

3 Procurement and tender meetings

. Opinion survey

. HEEE EBREF

. I E

. REHEe

. ERAE

o On site investigation, supervision and
inspection and visit reception

3 Financial reports

. Progress report

3 Telephone and e-mail

3 Information disclosure

o Daily communication report

. EMER  EBRBERGERS
. B HE

. EERE

. BN EHHE

. EEHEE

A %% JIE &)
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. BEEZE
. Fr B 245 A
. THRE

. BTHRARE

o BTEE

o BETER

o Long-term cooperation
o Business ethics and reputation
o Fair tendering

. REIA ERR

. FREmERE

. ATRE

° Compliance operation
o Policy implementation
o Pay taxes

. aREE

. HUR BT
. AR
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RIECHENRERRE

Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations and Concerns
BH&E BRERE B E M E
The community, non-governmental 3 ESG reports o Giving back to society
organisations and media . Project visit and site assessment o Environmental protection
3 Public hearing o Social welfare
3 Public welfare activities o Health and safety
3 News reports and announcements
o Management interview
I - FEBUTHRE N KR . ESGH & . Bl g
. EE2BRRGEZ . RIBRE
. NEZ . HEEA
. NEESEED) . BEEZR

. HEERAL
. ERERD

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEHETMG

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of the stakeholders

on the ESG performance of the Group, the Group adopts a systematic method to

conduct the annual materiality assessment. The specific work steps are as follows: EEZHBEFTEIIE BRI ESEOAT
Identify Related o With the assistance of consultants, the Group has identified and determined the ESG issues list of the
Issues Group in 2022 based on the business development of the Group;
o The list includes 13 topics with significant impact on economy, environment and society, and
high impact on stakeholder assessment, covering four major areas: “environmental protection”,
“employment and labour practices”, “business practices” and “community investment”.
B AERE o AEEBEERBH TRBERAEENERRR  SPAUEET TASE T - _FHNESGEE B E

Collect Feedback .
from
Stakeholders

RN EER .

BERSHUERE BRENLENFERBEZRYBNEATENTERERSWI3ERE KA
[RERE] [ERESTER]  [EEEM M LREEINAEHRE -

Taking the issues in the list as the core content of the assessment, the questionnaire was designed and
distributed to stakeholders to rate on the importance of various ESG issues to themselves and their

impact on the Group's sustainable development, and respond to any open-ended questions;

The major stakeholders covered in this assessment include but are not limited to employees and

management.

NBERNBBIERERRBHGAROATRIHES  LEBRRHAEHE  BRFOERASEITF
BRRABHEINZEREE  REAKEAUFERRAZEREF O MO ERAMKARE

ARFERBZEZIERNE  BRETRNETIREEE -
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Identify important

Through the analysis of the questionnaire results, the materiality of 13 topics was evaluated and the

Reviewed stakeholders’ opinions and the results of importance assessment, discussed with the Board
and determined the key disclosure of the Report and the key points to enhance ESG performance in the

EHFNESRREENNGER  HEEZ S HILHETE RS WEEH N LR RIRESGHE M &

issues materiality matrix in 2022 was compiled;
future.
BAEERE BREBSERON FHRBEEENEENURYE T _—_FE5Z2MHHBRE
B -
Validation ° The materiality matrix was examined by the Board
B o EZMERTHESFSER

High Materiality Matrix

El

o | RIRECRRER

= BB EEEE
-
wv Service Quality and Standard
"Iﬂ PRISE & RiZ%E
A
< Anti-corruption ¢
n REF
e iy
2 ‘ Energy Consumpion | | EME5 FEne
- 1259
(@) ?ilm Waste Management ° Py
I DR BENER
= ¢ ¢ -
X Employee Development and Training Corporat/e\ Social Riesponswblhty |
<& | ER BRI RN
w1 iz Employees’ Health and Safety
= iz REREALZE e -
OR Water Consumption
- e e KEFHE
9%
E Emp")géf)r;gfmces | Prevention of Child or Forced Labour
3 Supply Chain Management ale e PrIEE T oksa|H T
z i sEET .
: Climate Change Risk Management
o
-
L
2
= Low LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP High
& HEAEEUHERRNTVERE =

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective
management policies and internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed
that the disclosed contents comply with the requirements of the ESG Guide.
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CONTACT THE GROUP

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from stakeholders. You
can provide valuable advice on the Report or its performance in sustainable

Environmental, Social & Governance Report
RIE g NER®RS

B 7K 5% [ Bt A%
ARBEROBHERREARRE - BT
TRARERRETREARE S EORBRIR

development, and contact the Group through the following ways: HEEER  WiEBEN T HE AR E E B4

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716

E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

BWAESR IS - +86 871 6720-9716
BECHL AL ¢ ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

A. RIE

Environmental Targets

The Group believes that it is crucial to comply with applicable environmental
laws, regulations and policies for the long-term development and success
of the Group. Therefore, the Group continues to keep abreast with the
policy guidance of the industry, analyse the latest applicable environmental
protection laws, regulations, policies as well as the best domestic and
foreign industry practices, and timely update our policies and procedures
in relation to environmental protection to ensure that our environmental

management is in line with the latest standards.

To ensure that the Group can effectively promote a sustainable business
development model, the Group has established multiple environmental
targets based on its development direction and strategic policy, closely
monitoring and regularly reviewing the progress of the objectives. Relevant
data, year-on-year comparisons, and various environmental protection
measures have been listed in subsequent chapters. The targets listed in the
table below will continue to be used for the year ended 31 December 2023
("2023").

REBR

AEBEMREETHBERRRNERER
HASEEBNEHREREKNINER
EE AU AEESHETRITED
BEGR - AT RAEERRRERE
BoOBRMBERIMIEREEERE XK
HEHASEERREBNELHE -
VAREOR AN 55 (B 1 3R 352 5 2 BB (AL o

RERAEEEHADHETARFEMN
WEEXERER  AEEEREBEEERE
FEMBETHITLZERREER =
DEZREHNEEARMNER H HEH
B AL BRESERARERE NEE
EHNE BHEZT_=FF+=-A=+
BUEFE(=Z2-=F)BEELAT
KATHIBAM BT -
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IRIE -

Levels

Em|

Zi &kk \AfFE =

Targets
BEE

Progress

ER

Greenhouse gas ("“GHG")

emissions

mERE ( (BERBR] ) X

Solid waste treatment business

[ 2 R IR 2 7

Energy consumption

BEIRHRE

Water consumption

7}<7\/ \5% %%
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In response to the national vision of “carbon emission peak by
2030, carbon neutrality by 2060", the Group has set a goal of
actively promoting its independent research and development
of organic solid waste anaerobic pyrolysis and carbonisation
technology, expecting to achieve “returning carbon to soil” and
“closed circuit carbon cycle for human life”.

BEEFR[2030f E & 206OEU\EF5FDJEI’JF?E CAREERTE
THGBEEEBTMENEHREEBSR mwm&mza
= IEWEMWiHMAﬁ$EM%$ﬁaJ

Continuously increasing solid waste treatment projects and
actively promoting the technology of organic solid waste
anaerobic pyrolysis and carbonisation to help urban waste
achieve resource utilisation, reduction, and harmless treatment.

FEEMEEREER BHERAFEKEEBAARBRILR
i ABY A E R ERERL  BEAEMNEE(L -

Environmental protection activities are held every year to
improve employees’ awareness of energy conservation.
BFRMBRRETE  URABSIHEES -

Maintain the percentage of recycled water consumption to
enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation.

Carry out activities and post water conservation signs to remind
all employees to save water.

BFBBEKEREEE L URABIHORKERE -

FMEGE  RESHORKERE T RE2BE THOMAK -

Bk 5 AR AT Annual Report 2022 4 & # &

The Group has successfully
constructed a demonstration
project of low-temperature
anaerobic  pyrolysis  and
carbonization process with
a daily treatment capacity
of 200 tonnes of household
waste in Yiliang County,
Yunnan Province, and has
entered the trial operation
stage.

AEEEKNDEZEEEER
2R T B R TR 88 1120008 &
JE B 3R (KR 4B A EER Bk b
Iﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ{tﬁﬁ% 3
AR EBEREE -

The Group did not add any
solid waste treatment projects
in 2022, but has already
put into trial operation a
demonstration project for the
low-temperature  anaerobic
pyrolysis and carbonisation
process.

AEER-ZZ-=—F KGH
MI%EEEE BERE
BRBBAAFIIE TER
gL TIREAR -

Completed

EE24

In Progress

Completed
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Emissions

The Group is actively participating in environmental protection
and has obtained I1SO14001 environmental management system
certification. All the Group’s subsidiaries are required to strictly
comply with the Group’s internal management system in relation
to environmental protection in order to meet the relevant legal
requirements, including but not limited to the “Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC”, the “Law of the PRC on Environmental
Impact Assessment”, the “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and the applicable pollutant
emission standards formulated by local governments. In 2022, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations in relation to air and GHG emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes that would have a significant impact on the Group.

EXHAUST GAS EMISSIONS

The Group continues to renovate treatment technologies and to
optimise its production management system, aiming to effectively
achieve the annual emission reduction targets for the operation
project, and therefore has received government recognition and
praise. For odour generated from wastewater treatment, the Group
has planted greenbelts around the gas sources and collected the gas
for biotreatment in order to meet national emission standards. For
hazardous gas generated from solid waste treatment, the Group has
introduced international advanced technologies and continued to
enhance the flue gas treatment equipment to ensure that harmful
components contained in the flue gas have been effectively removed
and the emission standards are met. The Group has also formulated
a completed job post system and detailed operating procedures to
strengthen the management and monitoring of the exhaust gas
treatment process, pay close attention to the working conditions,
strictly control the exhaust gas collection and treatment process,
and identify and solve problems in time, so as to ensure the stable,
efficient and normal operation of each exhaust gas treatment
equipment.

IR g -

A1l.

Zi& k\AiFE:l

BErk ¥
AEBRBGER %ﬁiw'ia
HEBISO14001 MR EHBRR
B -AEBEREMBRABNEE
BRIE BT ASEE NI A BIRRD
EEHERABEOEELRG
HABEETRA(REARHE
MBIRBEREE) (PEARHK
ﬂI% FEIAEE) (PEA
HMB KRS L85 ki
ﬂﬁ%m%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬂ&%
FE-RZZEZZ—ZF - AKEEITF
MEEMNBREEREGBEER LS
EREEN - MK KR T HER
NREEAEREEEZNNE
BIRSER  MEAEBEXEK
HE o

R

REBTHEHRBERMN &
EEBTESE  EtminBhE=ZR
B BT 1E b 82 30 47 30 58 B 5 6 B0 OR
PER AMER T SRBTH
B EMATRY o SHEISKEIRBIE
FEEANRR  AKEERNAER
RELRBERERCRERES K
BRABERETEDRRES
TEX  BEHEIBERFFAN
BERURE - HEEEREBET
EEMEETRE AKESER
BRAEERM  THHZEREER
BETEN BREXEHESR
RREERD  REZEHER -
7R 5 [ T 1 5E 72 2= RO fee (2 1 2 A

FFARRERIE - NRERERE
BEMNEEMER BYIFET

S B R i) B R Wi 5 A B 2R

B REBRWHEABBE A
BREEBEIAEERENETE =
B EEETT -
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Due to the increase in the treatment scope and treatment volume of
the solid waste treatment projects, the Group’s overall exhaust gas
emissions in 2022 has increased. The overview of the Group’s exhaust
gas emissions is as follows:

F A (B RE iz 12 IR B A e 3R 85 [ M
BREEBEM AEEE-_FT_—
FHERBERFNEBLEML
e AKBEMBEREREM MM
™~

Exhaust gas emissions Unit 2022 2021
BERBERR B —ZT—-= T —F
Particulate matter (“"PM") tonnes 20.67 8.79
fary ([PM]) it

Sulfur oxide (S0, ") tonnes 78.81 31.36
HELM([50 ) I

Nitrogen oxide (“NO_") tonnes 396.89 226.30
Al (TNO, ) A

GHG EMISSIONS BEREHM

The Group's GHG emissions arise mainly from the purchased
consumption of electricity. The Group has implemented various energy
conservation measures to minimise GHG emissions. Please refer to the

section headed “Energy Consumption” below for details.

In addition to setting emission targets, the Group and several entities
jointly signed the “carbon emission peak, carbon neutrality” strategic
cooperation agreement in 2021. Taking this as an opportunity, the
Group will strengthen technology research and development, resource
integration business expansion, and actively assist in serving the goal
of “carbon emission peak by 2030, carbon neutrality by 2060".
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Environmental,

In 2022, the total Group’'s GHG emission intensity remained at a

consistent level as compared to 2021. The Group’s GHG emissions are

summarised as follows:

Social & Governance Report
IR ij% ?i &k’v B #& =

ARE-T--FMAZRBY
&@gzr@fz:—ﬁmm%
—HOKF - AREHBE AR

mmgﬁumr:

GHG categories’ Unit 2022 2021
mERBEA B —E=-= —_T-—F
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)? tonnes of carbon dioxide

equivalent ("tCO,e") — —
ERAREREHM(EET)? WA g g

(S tmEE])
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 268,925.65 278,778.97
EREEREREBHMN(EE2) M*%M e e
Total GHG emissions tCO,e 268,925.65 278,778.97
BERBEREE WM_S{thEE
Total GHG emissions in‘[ensity3 tCO ,e/sg.m. 0.05 0.05
mMERBHEREERE —EtIEE S FHK
Notes: =%
1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent with 1. /miﬁ‘%“ﬁ?ﬁﬁl%(ﬁfﬂf 1k fix

reference to, but not limited to, the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate E827  U2REFEATRRL

Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Research
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
“How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX, “Notice on Implementing the
Management of GHG Emission Reports for Power Generation Industry
Enterprises from 2023 to 2025" published by Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, and the global warming
potential of the “Fifth Assessment Report” released by the Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change.

The Group only owned a small number of motor vehicles and consumed
limited fuel. Therefore, the Group did not collect relevant fuel consumption
data.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's gross floor area is approximately
5,463,305.07 sq.m. (As of 31 December 2021: approximately 5,679,289.44
sg.m.). This data will also be used to calculate other intensity data.

SOLID WASTE TREATMENT BUSINESS

The Group has always insisted on providing customers with high

quality solid waste treatment services, actively focusing on solid waste

treatment issues and continuously developing solid waste technologies

as well as promoting the recycling of resources. The Group is

committed to promoting industry standards and improving systems,

and forming a positive interaction between technology, standards, and

systems to protect the ecological environment.

R G RI IR P Rt AT 4 A
BRIARFESHENCRERE
BEFZTE - A%ﬁ%”riﬁh&iﬁ
£) - AR H T K0 ] £
BRE HgRkEBERARE —
8= RIEWBENEZRERE
5l) - REARKEME ERERRI
45 /) (B PR i 47 2023-20254F %%
BIIECERERBERREE
BEHEBIENBN) RBFBRE
BHEMEZEEFRHRCERRET
HREIW R RBES -

2. FEBERAEOERBE - FH

FERY AR AR - B LA K E I &
Uit 5 A8 78 & R ek O FE B BUR ©

——F+
@ A (et 8 H\ HEEE -

S
S 25 48 3 |

2] % 55 B 3

AEE-BEERFAEPRESE
EMEERERY REHEIRE
FE f B &Y ) RE 3 B 5 (B R AR
BRMNARREERNETERN
B AEERNRETERTE
ﬁﬂ*iﬁﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
£ HIENRMES RELRE

IRIE o
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The Group installs and uses monitoring equipment in accordance with
relevant national regulations to monitor the discharge of pollutants
in real-time and disclose the data of pollution discharge. The Group
has special personnel to supervise the implementation of solid waste
treatment and disposal measures, and timely collect, transport and
treat solid waste according to the regulatory requirements and the
disposal measures formulated to eliminate the pollution impact. In
addition, the Group monitors the content of solid waste such as
heavy metal from time to time, track information of comprehensive
utilisation of solid waste and expand the way of comprehensive
utilisation. The Group strictly follows the hazardous waste treatment
and disposal plan to regulate and dispose the hazardous waste, so as
to effectively prevent the occurrence of secondary pollution on the
site.

In the face of the COVID-19 pandemic (“Pandemic”), the Group
immediately supported the Pandemic prevention and control work,
timely found out and managed the capacity and operation of medical
waste disposal facilities in the Pandemic area, and fully guided,
supported and urged the Pandemic area to ensure the safe disposal
of medical waste. The Group collects, transports and disposes of
medical waste in time, and takes effective measures to prevent the
loss, leakage or diffusion of medical waste. In the event of major
infectious disease outbreaks and other emergencies, the Group will
take effective measures to dispose of pandemic medical waste in a
timely, orderly, efficient and harmless manner to prevent the second
transmission or spread of pandemic disease and to ensure the proper
handling of medical waste. At the same time, the Group’s medical
waste treatment process only produces a small amount of non-
toxic and sterile residue and no wastewater, which can truly achieve
harmless and minimised disposal.
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Case Study: Retrograde on Pandemic road and brave to take on responsibilities — Yunnan Water Zhengxiao

Environmental Protection bravely builds a strong defence line against the Pandemic

BARME  ERIFTEREE ESEABERBERESERHEEBERR

As the centralised disposal centre for medical waste in Kunming, Yunnan Zhengxiao Environmental Protection Investment
0., Ltd. (EMIEERRILESFRAR]) ("Zhengxiao Environmental Protection”), a subsidiary of the Group, has

always been responsible for 100% of the medical waste and pandemic related waste clearance and disposal work of

over 3,700 medical institutions within the jurisdiction of Kunming. Since 2022, the Pandemic in Kunming has been
fluctuating, and the Pandemic prevention situation has become even more severe, resulting in the production of a
large amount of Pandemic-related waste. Faced with various complex and urgent cleaning and transportation tasks,
Zhengxiao Environmental Protection is constantly responding to changes and strictly following the “four designated”
management mode: targeting at designated hospitals, arranging designated personnel, and using fixed sealed and
leak proof medical waste cleaning and transportation vehicles that meet national technical specifications for timely
cleaning and transportation according to designated routes. According to the requirements of Kunming City, Zhengxiao
Environmental Protection’s medical waste clearance workers are on standby 24 hours a day in multiple isolation hotels,
multiple polymerase chain reaction testing sites of all sizes, and various newly added static management areas, and
strictly complete the clearance tasks according to time limits.
AEETBLXEFMEBRERRIREERARF ( [ERRR] ) FARATHNEEEVMETREST D —BEAREAEEZRHR
ERHEN3, 7005 REERIBI100%NBREMMPEEZYBERETF - —S-_FUK  ERTERBHEARE &
TREEMERIE - EHREN PR é;ﬁff% R IREFEMTNGR ZAMNEERR  ERRRATNEESE - BURIER [
KEJ EREN  SHHEHBREA ERGLERBETEOHTAERRMREEZLNOEEAN 2REE S EZRIETR LN
58 - TERRRNE @/EEIT‘E/\EWJF EAMENR - RERBEEOAE - ZEAK/NNOZBONFAB - AR S EFE 85
% EIR MR 24/ N R RARAF R - WBRAR IR AR I PR I ST BB I AR -

Through years of technical research and development and engineering BBZERMABMIRER

application, Yunnan Water has successfully and independently ANEBKHE THETEEBE

developed low temperature pyrolysis carbonisation technology. The AR RAL F - s BRI E A RS

technology is applied to the disposal of various types of organic solid e EENIREBNERNERSE

wastes, such as sludge, domestic waste, kitchen waste and excrement. ZEAEREHERERYEIE

The technology has the following features: ZEMEBN TR

1. Flexible treatment scale: it is especially suitable for the 1. EBREAREE: BilEF
reduction, harmless and resource utilisation treatment of BRIk B A 88 55 g 410 8 45 B
organic solid waste in counties, towns and villages which BRATRBEERENER
cannot be covered by waste incineration power plants, filling BEREfREl  EELLRE
the gap in the organic solid waste treatment market in this BRICEE - HBTE—&E
region; B EREEEIETSZE

H

2. Wide range of application: the requirements on the heat value, 2. HREEE: HBEKERE
classification and particle size of the organic solid waste is not 2E - DHENMNEZENRT
strict; A&
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3. Solving dioxin disposal problems at source: the low temperature
and anaerobic environment in the pyrolysis machine can
eliminate the necessary conditions of metal oxide catalysts for
synthesis of dioxin, making the dioxin content in flue gas can
be discharged up to standard without the need of activated
carbon injection system in flue gas purification system;

4. Solid biochar products are stable in nature, its heavy metal
leaching toxicity, chlorine and other pollutants concentration
comply with the national class Il of soil use specifications, and
can be applied in flowers and trees and other carbon-based
fertiliser; and

5. Recycling products, such as iron, copper, aluminium, glass,
sand and gravels, are availably recovered, achieving resource
utilisation, reduction and harmless of the domestic waste.

The solid waste treatment volume of the Group's solid waste
treatment business in 2022 is summarised as follows:

WRBEMR A — I KR IE
B A ANER 8
SREMB_RBEAKMY
FEneBACDELCEM G
- EEERERFLER
hEFEEEERES RS
B BERERFP —REZE
HER PR

EgLEMREDNMEERE
T BEEERESUERES
BARYEREEENE BRI
BMEIEERRR  JEAR
EEBAREHRERLE &

AAEREYE - i K
EVOREERLLED &
WY ERLRIFWEIRIE - R
EleMmEL -

AEBE T - —FHEREEEE
BHEEREBEEHMMT

Type of solid wastes Unit 2022 2021
Bl B —E=-= —ET_—F
Domestic wastes tonnes 965,922.81 635,008.09
HE B IR Mg

Medical wastes tonnes 35,996.50 32,899.94
B3 7]

Hazardous wastes (excluding medical waste) tonnes 12,644.19 10,243.24
EmEY (REREY) Mg

HAZARDOUS WASTES EEmEEY

The medical wastes and other hazardous wastes treated by the
Group have been listed in the section of “SOLID WASTE TREATMENT
BUSINESS”, and the operation of the Group does not produce a
significant amount of hazardous waste.
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NON-HAZARDOUS WASTES

The Group generates non-hazardous wastes in its daily operation
of business, which are mainly dewatering sludge generated in the
process of its sewage treatment and water supply and slag and fly
ash generated in the process of the Group’s solid waste treatment.
The Group has comprehensive management system in place for all
kinds of solid wastes generated in the process of its production and
operation, strictly complies with national discharge standards and
adopts effective measures to reduce and properly dispose of solid
wastes.

For solid wastes such as sludge generated in the process of sewage
treatment and water supply, the Group strictly follows relevant
national policies, regulations, industry standards and the requirements
of environmental impact assessment report approval to establish
comprehensive production management system and process control
system in order to manage the measurement, transportation and
disposal of solid wastes to prevent secondary pollution. Besides, the
Group possesses advanced membrane technology in the industry
and has actively carried out research and development in order
to effectively reduce solid wastes generated during the operation
process, and to transform the produced sludge into resources with
sludge carbonisation technology.

For slag and fly ash generated in the process of solid waste
treatment, the Group adopts a number of comprehensive treatment
measures including classification or sealed storage in strict compliance
with national policies and industry standards to achieve the purpose
of harmless and recycling treatment, and sets up safety warning
signs according to regulatory requirements. All disposals of such solid
wastes are carried out in strict compliance with national policies and
regulations and requirements of government-approved environmental
impact assessment report.
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HEEEY
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EMHET ZENERHE &
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HESKEEREBKBERES
RS REEEBERY  ~AEEEK
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For the daily office operation, the Group puts great efforts to
promote paperless office and use office automation (“OA") system
and video meeting system by connecting OA platform with various
departments of the Company to reduce waste arising from document
circulation. The Group exercises control over the purchase of
stationeries such as paper, implement strict registration system in
respect of the collection of office supplies and encourage employees
to print on both sides of paper to reduce waste of paper. The Group
also advocates the reuse of office stationeries including envelopes,
folders, etc. Besides, the Group encourages not to use disposable
tableware such as paper cups in the office and encourages the
purchase of rechargeable office equipment in order to reduce the
usage of disposable batteries.

In 2022, the Group's total non-hazardous wastes disposal intensity
remained at a consistent level as compared to 2021. In 2022, the
Group only uses a small amount of paper, so the Group does not
collect any information about paper. The non-hazardous waste
disposals of the Group are summarised as follows:

HERAZABTEE AEEX
NERERKLERD FRBEAE
FE(OAD ZZ R RFEHER

S OBBEOARREE AEE KIS
T RS T XM RERREREE
BRE -AEEHKREAD
BEEETEN  HRAARN
ERERBRENELEESE -
FEEITEmITE  BHAHERR

B KREENMBEEECRRA
XE - mEH XHRERSR -
N REEEBFAZTER
EHE—REEER  RARIIER
BEARBEHRIRE R —
RUEELER -

AEB-_TS__FHNEEEEY
MERMEE T - —FiELERE

—HBKF -RZTE_—F A&

EEFEHALENMSE  AEAE
B s A AR BB
B -AEENEEZEZVERE
B

Type of non-hazardous wastes Unit 2022 2021
BEBRYER B =2== —_T_—F
Slag tonnes 187,880.40 113,719.91
i 145
Fly ash tonnes 22,082.61 14,376.23
IR A
Sludge tonnes 356,164.48 450,649.11
5k I}
Total disposal of non-hazardous wastes tonnes 566,127.49 578,745.25
BEBVMERAE L]
Total non-hazardous wastes disposal intensity tonnes/sq.m 0.10 0.10

BEEERVFREETE Wa 75 oK
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WASTEWATER DISCHARGE AND TREATMENT

Wastewater generated from the sewage treatment and the operation
of water supply facilities mainly contains small amount of domestic
sewage and equipment flushing water and was discharged after being
processed by the sewage treatment facilities in the plant of the Group
and meeting the required standards. Wastewater generated from
the operation of solid waste treatment facilities was recycled or be
discharged into the municipal pipe network after being processed and
meeting the required standard, striving to achieve “Zero Discharge”.
In 2022, after being processed by the Group's sewage treatment
facilities, the Group’s emissions of chemical oxygen demand (“COD")
and ammonia nitrogen (“NH,-N") were reduced by approximately
116,165 tonnes and 14,925 tonnes respectively (2021: reduced by
approximately 137,375 tonnes and 16,819 tonnes, respectively). The
Group's wastewater pollutants emissions are summarised as follows:

RE L8 hEAWMSE

JFKHHM R EE

VEKEEMHEKEREEPEE
MEKEERLEEEFTKMEZ
BEHRERK  EAREBEBRAIGK
BEREEREEZEENR A&
EEEREREELPELENE
K- RIEAMANERGTKEERER
MERE - WHESERBRERASL
mkﬁﬁﬁ@’ﬂﬁgﬁ@m
Wl -RZZBEZZ=F  AEEHS
mﬁﬁﬁamﬁﬂé~M%%%
E(fcopl) & & & (INH,-NJ) &
PEE D RIEIR T 49116,165M &
14,9258 (=T = —4F : HRIEIR
T #9137,375W8 5 16,819 W) o A&
EERSKEEMBEREKR L

M

Wastewater indicators Unit 2022 2021

35 KB B —E=-= —T-—F

CcOoD tonnes 12,313 15,074
U

NH,-N tonnes 804 944
U7}

Use of Resources

As one of leading integrated service providers in the municipal
wastewater treatment and water supply industries in China, the
Group always takes the environmental, social and governmental
impact into consideration in its core operating practices and strictly
controls the resource consumption of each project according to the
principle of economic operation as well as strives to increase the
resource utilisation rate and improve the operation skills of staff to
maximise the resource utilisation.

A2. ERERA

573 7 B3 T 05 K R ﬁ&h
KATE B IRE IR 1 &
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The Group conducts daily monitoring and statistical analysis for
each operating project to understand the consumption of energy,
water resource and raw materials, so as to determine indicators
of the energy consumption, water consumption and raw materials
consumption and supervise and evaluate each project. In addition
to complying with relevant national laws and regulations, the Group
has a series of internal monitoring, management and assessment
systems in place, sets the control targets for total energy consumption
and gives early warning and fine-tuning to production projects of
which the energy consumption increases rapidly, in order to ensure
that the Group can utilise the resource in an effective way while
maintaining high-standard operation. The Group has been striving to
achieve maximum benefit for customers and the environment with the
minimal resource consumption, and to promote clean and sustainable
resources and energies.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

In 2022, the energy consumption of the Group was mainly purchased
electricity. The Group encourages all staff to save electrical energy
during the production process and office work. The Group arranges
cleaners to conduct inspections during the non-office hours to ensure
that the electric devices such as lighting equipment have been
switched-off.

In response to the energy consumption in solid waste treatment,
the Group enhances the measures on stacking fermentation of
waste to increase the heat utilisation ratio and also adopts variable
frequency control for large-power motors in order to reduce self-
consumed electricity and increase the on-grid energy. Waste-to-energy
incineration is a way to achieve “reduction, resource utilisation and
harmlessness” through incineration, converting thermal energy from
incineration to electricity to avoid wastage of resources. The Group
adopts advanced operating technology during the incineration process,
enhance the thermal insulation effect of the equipment and recycle
thermal energy for secondary use to increase the re-utilisation rate
of energy. Moreover, metering devices for electricity, water and heat,
etc. are installed at the energy supply accesses to measure the energy
used, in order to control consumption and reduce costs.
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In order to increase the energy utilisation rate in the process
of wastewater treatment, the Group focuses on technological
transformation of key equipment with high energy consumption
and low efficiency, including improving the energy utilisation rate
of the lifting pump, air blower and sludge dewatering systems,
etc. In addition, the Group will continuously develop and promote
new green technologies to reduce energy consumption. In order to
increase the energy utilisation rate in the process of water supply, the
Group continues to innovate production technology and improve the
production management system to increase water production rate.

In 2022, the Group’s total energy consumption intensity decreased
by approximately 1% as compared to 2021. However, due to the
decrease in gross floor area, the total energy consumption intensity
of the Group in 2022 increased by approximately 3% as compared to
2021. The Group’s energy consumption performance is summarised as

R ij% ?i &k’v A #& =

HESKEEPOERERL B
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follows: 3% o AN E K RS FERIB R
W
Type of energy Unit 2022 2021
BERER B —ZT-= —T=—F
Direct energy consumption kWh — —
HERRERE T BB
Indirect energy consumption
a2 R B 7
— Electricity kWh 471,551,193.06 476,027,301.43
— 87 F B
Total energy consumption volume kWh 471,551,193.06 476,027,301.43
RREREEE T F B
Total energy consumption intensity kWh/sg.m 86.31 83.82

REREREERE FTRE FHK
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WATER CONSUMPTION

The Group helps people in different regions to resolve water supply
problems and provides them with healthy and sufficient tap water.
In 2022, the volume of water sold by the Group amounted to
approximately 239,632,500.00 m? and the volume of wastewater
treated by the Group amounted to approximately 662,170,634.00 m?
(2021: the volume of water sold by the Group amounted to
approximately 252,504,290.00 m? and the volume of wastewater
treated by the Group amounted to approximately 755,529,870.00 m?).
The Group requires all its operating projects to use reclaimed water
for flushing and cooling of equipment if permitted and to use
reclaimed water for all greenery in factories and office areas, so
as to reduce water resource consumption during the production
process. To further reduce water consumption, water in all the solid
waste treatment facilities is fully recycled and reclaimed water is
also used as flushing water in some toilets. The Group also sets a
target to maintain the percentage of reclaimed water consumption to
enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation. Moreover, the
Group invests resources to carry out activities such as posting water
conservation signs to remind staff to save water.

Due to the increase in the quantity and treatment scope of the
wastewater treatment projects, the total water consumption intensity
of the Group in 2022 increased by approximately 11% as compared
to 2021. In 2022, the water consumption performance of the Group

is summarised as follows:
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Type of water Unit 2022 2021
AkgER B —=E-= —EZ—F
Reclaimed water m3 12,184,802.54 11,747,970.66
BARK ST K
Tap water m?3 22,069,735.07 20,386,310.55
B 2k 7K RIS
Total water consumption m? 34,254,537.61 32,134,282.21
FRBEE MK
Total water consumption intensity m3/sq.m. 6.27 5.66

HKEERE SRS T TR

For the Group’s water supply business, the Group draws water from
local sources with proper government approval. Therefore, the Group
does not have any water sourcing issues.
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USE OF PACKAGING MATERIALS

As an environmental-friendly water service enterprise, the Group
does not use any packaging materials during the daily course of its
business operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT MANAGEMENT

The construction of environmental protection projects will have
certain impact on the environment and natural resources. The
Group considers such impact as one of the key factors when
making investment decisions. The Group performs evaluation of the
abovementioned impact according to relevant laws and regulations.
The Group applies “simultaneous design, construction and operation”
acceptance check after the project has been put into operation to
meet the requirements of the relevant and laws, regulations and
policies. Besides, the Group has also developed relevant systems
and procedures to monitor and manage environmental impact of
all projects in order to avoid excessive use and waste of natural
resources, minimise the negative impact of the Group’s business
operation on the environment, thus achieving sustainable development
and creating long-term value for the Group’s stakeholders and
communities.

As treated wastewater in the wastewater treatment business will be
ultimately discharged to the environment, the Group strictly adheres
to the processing requirements to guarantee the stable quality of
treated water and reduce its impact on the environment. In addition,
the Group has strengthened the maintenance and repair of drainage
pipelines and sewage treatment equipment to ensure the integrity
and normal operation of pipelines and equipment and to eliminate
accidental discharge. When abnormal problems are found, the Group
will contact and report to the environmental protection department in

time.
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The Group attaches great importance to the treatment of pollutants
including exhaust gas, liquid waste, odour and equipment noise
generated in the solid waste treatment process, and takes various
control measures for various pollutants to eliminate the environmental
pollution caused by solid wastes and plays a positive role in protecting

water and soil. The treatments are as follows:

. In addition to fly ash, exhaust gas also contain harmful
substances including NO,, Sulphur dioxide (“S0,"), hydrogen
chloride (“HCI"), heavy metals and dioxins. The major harmful
substances are organic substances including dioxins, which are
controlled with the more economical and effective “3T+E”

technology;

o After treatment of liquid waste with the professional
wastewater treatment system set up in the plant, the effluent

will be reused or used for greening and road cleaning; and

o Odour is used as combustion gas, or effective measures
including adsorption and filtration with adsorption device using

activated carbon are adopted to ensure air quality.

For the thermal pollution during production process, the Group has
adopted advanced thermal insulation material within the reporting
scope to provide the heat generation equipment with thermal
insulation treatment in order to ensure that the heat source point

reaches the operation standard.

For the noise pollution during production process, the Group has
installed blimps for the noise-generating equipment and utilised green
plants to absorb noise according to function zoning, so that the
noise emission can meet the standard. The Group has also formulated
a completed job post system and detailed operating procedures,
strengthened the maintenance and management of noisy equipment,
paid close attention to the effectiveness of equipment operation
conditions and noise reduction measures, found and solved problems
in time, and ensured the stable and normal function of noise control

measures.
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A4. Climate Change

Climate change posed escalating risks and challenges on the global
economy, which may also negatively affect the operations and
services of the Group. Therefore, the Group deeply understands the
importance of identifying and mitigating any significant impacts of
climate change. In accordance with the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD") established
by the Financial Stability Board, the management of the Group
has assessed and is fully aware of climate-related risks affecting
the Group’s operations, and has taken corresponding management
measures. Based on the assessment results, the Group has
incorporated climate risks into internal control processes to manage
and review climate-related risks and seize related opportunities.

PHYSICAL RISKS

Extreme weather conditions, such as extremely cold or hot, storm,
heavy rain and typhoon, appear more frequently and its severity
increased gradually, which may result in risk of reduction in
productivity, interruption of the supply chain, and damage to the
assets of the Group, and even interrupt the operation of the sewage
treatment plant of the Group. And this may result in decrease in the
Group’s revenue, and increase in the cost of repairing or restoring
damaged location. Extreme weather events may also hinder the work
of employees and even cause casualties. In response, the Group has
developed a business continuity plan, which is designed to reduce
or avoid losses when extreme weather affects the Group’s place of
operation. The Group will also identify such risks and give priority
to those with serious impact so that preventive measures can be
taken in the first place. At the same time, the Group will study the
possibility of changing its business model to reduce or avoid these
serious impacts on its business operations.
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TRANSITION RISKS

In order to achieve sustainable development and move towards
the vision of “carbon emission peak by 2030, carbon neutrality
by 2060", each of local governments has enacted climate-related
legislation or tightened relevant regulations to support the global
decarbonisation target. For example, Chinese government’s competent
regulatory authorities commence to set limits on GHG emissions and
implement mandatory carbon trading policy, which could increase
relevant operating costs. The Group will strengthen communication
with regulatory authorities and make proactive business adjustments
according to changes in regulations and policies in a timely manner.
In addition, the Group will conduct additional investigations as
necessary to identify carbon emission hotspots in its operations and

explore ways to improve them.

In addition, the Stock Exchange requires public companies to
strengthen climate-related disclosure in their ESG reports, which
may increase operating costs. Failure to meet climate change-
related compliance requirements may expose the Group to the risk
of claims and litigation, which may result in a decline in corporate
reputation. Therefore, the Group will regularly monitor existing and
emerging trends, policies and regulations related to climate change
to avoid reputational risks arising from a slow response. In addition,
in order to reduce the Group’s environmental impact and meet the
requirements of the Stock Exchange, the Group has set targets to
reduce energy consumption and GHG emissions. The Group will
continue to evaluate the effectiveness of its actions on climate change

and enhance its capacity to address climate-related issues.
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OPPORTUNITIES

With the formation of a global consensus on the goal of “dual
carbon”, Yunnan Water, as a leading integrated urban environmental
service provider, has ushered in unprecedented development
opportunities. Yunnan Water has seized the market opportunities
and new pattern, constantly explored and innovated, independently
developed more than 200 patents, realised the great leap forward
development from Yunnan to the whole country and the whole
industrial chain layout and project reserve in the fields of water
supply, sewage, membrane materials, solid waste, medical waste and
hazardous waste, and has its own competitive advantages such as
policy support, market-oriented management team and professional
core technology. The Group is committed to be integrated
environmental services provider at the municipal level based in
Yunnan, covering the nation and moving towards to South Asia and
Southeast Asia, with core technology, strong investment and financing
capacity, core competitiveness and social influence.

Since the China Environment Chamber of Commerce released the
annual “Top 50 Environmental Enterprises in China”, the Group has
also been included in the list every year. In recent years, the world’s
major economies have also successively launched relevant policy
measures and policy guidelines, and green and sustainable financial
markets are becoming more and more vigorous. Since 2021, the
Group has implemented the “CITIC Trust e Yunnan Water Carbon
Neutral Green Renewable Creditor’'s Right Collective Investment Trust
Fund”, used the funds to increase the construction of environmental
protection projects, successfully promoted the Group to further
expand its market and accelerate its transformation to urban

environmental integrated service provider.
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B1.

Employment

Employees are the largest and most valuable asset of the Group and
the core of our competitive advantage. Therefore, the success of
the Group depends heavily on the ability to attract, train and retain
employees. The Group adheres to the people-oriented principle,
respects and protects the legitimate rights and interests of every
employee, strictly regulates labour and employment management, and
guarantees employees’ occupational health and safety. The Group has
also formulated a series of relevant personnel management policies
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations to protect the vital
interests of employees, fully respect and value the enthusiasm and
creativity of employees, aiming to build a harmonious employment
relationship, provide employees with healthy, sunny and positive
working atmosphere, and to guide employees to actively integrate
their personal pursuits into the long-term development of the Group.

The Group has complied with all laws and regulations related to
salary compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
antidiscrimination and other treatment package and benefits, including
but not limited to the “Company Law of the PRC”, the “Contract
Law of the PRC”, the “Labour Contract Law of the PRC” and the
“Labour Security Supervision Regulations in the PRC”. In 2022, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with labour
laws and regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of 6,516 (as at 31 @i —E-_F+-_A=+—
December 2021: 6,998) employees within the reporting scope of the CAKEERAREHEANE K
Report, all of whom are full-time employees. Employees by gender, ﬁ6,516%1§§(§i:§:—¢
age group, employment category and region are as follows: +=A=+—8 :6,998%) ' ¥
REBREE - EERER - Fie
AR kRO EDWT
As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Bz-T-Z— HE_T_—F
Number of employees EEAE +=—A=+—H +—A=+—H
By gender Lt Bl &l o
Male EEREs 4,376 4,695
Female Z 2,140 2,303
By age group L EiRA7R &85
30 years old or under 30 B A T 1,319 1,561
31-40 years old 3124053 2,412 2,511
41-50 years old 41%E505% 1,803 1,939
51 years old or above 515 A 982 987
By region B it & & o
Mainland of PRC o 3 6,127 6,606
Hong Kong BB 9 10
Others HA 380 382

RECRUITMENT, PROMOTION, REWARD AND DISMISSAL

The Group carries out open social recruitment in the market and
around the world following the principles of fairness, equality and
competition, and makes overall assessment and recruitment on a
selective basis. The Group also recruits excellent college students
through campus recruitment, and enables college students move
forward courageously toward their career goals under the professional
and all-round talent development mechanism. After employees are
hired, the Group enters into labour contracts with employees in
accordance with labour laws and regulations to effectively protect

rights and interests of employees.
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Guided by target results, the Group has established an employee
performance appraisal system that covers employee performance,
competencies, attitudes, etc., and appropriately applies the appraisal
results to employee performance pay, promotion and salary
adjustments. In order to create a healthy, diversified and inclusive
working environment, all promotion, salary review and position
transfer decisions are based on the individual performance of
employees and the business conditions of the Group for objective

FEBUABRERREMR - B
TEIEW%&E%'%ﬁél
XE e RESHE XK
BB EREREANEIAN
IE BBEANIERAE -B
BEEE  ZRRABOIE
RS —7E FHCOERS
BAEHAETEARREA A

consideration.

In 2022, the Group's overall turnover rate* was approximately 17.37%

(2021: approximately 16.59%). The employee turnover rates* by

REEXBEB

2

NERBER -

RZEZZF  AEBENERERE
BRMAREBI1T3T% (2T = —

gender, age group and geographical region are as follows: i © #916.59%) © IRl - FE
BRI K i [ &l 5 B8 B K =4
—F :
2022 2021
The employee turnover rates* & B 7 %k £ —EZ=F —T_—F
By gender LAt Bl &l o
Male St 18.62% 17.89%
Female it 14.81% 13.94%
By age group PR3- N
30 years old or under 305R AT 23.96% 22.29%
31-40 years old 31-407% 14.18% 14.70%
41-50 years old 41-505% 13.98% 13.41%
51 years old or above ST A | 22.61% 18.64%
By region D it & 8 2
Mainland of PRC FE PN 17.97% 17.11%
Hong Kong 20 22.22% —
Others At 7.63% 8.12%
Notes: -
4. Employee turnover rate in the category = X/Y * 100% 4. LERMES RAE =X/Y * 100%

X = Number of employees leaving employment in the category during the year
Y = Number of employees in the category at the end of the year
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REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

On the basis of evaluating the value of employees’ positions, the
Group has established a fair, reasonable and competitive remuneration
and benefits system based on its business strategy and with reference
to the industry level and regional level. At the same time, the Group
strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations, continuously
improves employee benefits and reviews the working hours of
employees, pays various statutory social insurances according to laws,
and guarantees that employees enjoy statutory holidays and other
benefits. In addition, our employees are entitled to paid annual leave,
wedding leave, maternity leave and other holidays.
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Case Study: All levels of trade unions under the Group carry out the March 8th Festival activities

In order to welcome the International Women's Day on March 8th, enrich the cultural life of female employees,
and enhance their sense of happiness and belonging, trade unions at all levels under Yunnan Water actively carried
out activities on March 8th, including the “Gathering in Xishan, Meeting for Health” mountaineering activity, the
“Showcasing the Charm of Women and the Warmth of Border Water Company” activity, and carry out an outing
activity in Nujiang Liuku.

AE (=) \ERSHELE] @SRRI MER  EREAXBINERELEBRE - =ANB  EFKBHES
RIGHEBRR=Z/\ES - B85 [HEEAEL  BHRE] BES - [MEREAREEKEE] EF8  UARRINERER

BERE

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Group has strictly complied with relevant national and local
government laws and regulations, adopted a fair, just and open
recruitment process, and formulated relevant systems to eliminate
discrimination in recruitment process, no employee will be
discriminated against due to factors such as race, gender, colour, age,
family background, national tradition, religion, physical fitness and
nationality, so that employees can enjoy fair treatment at all stages
of recruitment, salary, training, promotion, termination of labour
contracts and retirement, and we can also try our best to recruit
professionals with different backgrounds to join the Group. The
Group is committed to providing equal opportunities in all aspects
and maintaining diversity of employees, and also strongly prohibits

any unfair treatment.
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B2.

Health and Safety

The Group regards employees as important assets of the Group and
therefore attach great importance to occupational health and safety
management in the production and operation process. The Group
has complied with all laws and regulations related to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards, including but not limited to the “Safety Production Law of
the PRC”, the “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Disease”, the “Fire Protection Law of the PRC", the
“Special Equipment Safety Law of the PRC"”, the “Special Equipment
Safety Supervision Regulations and the Hazardous Chemicals Safety
Management Regulations in Mainland China” and the laws and
regulations of other applicable countries. In the past three years
(including 2022), the Group has not found any major violations of
applicable national laws and regulations related to health and safety
that have a significant impact on the Group, nor has it recorded
any work-related death accident, nor working days lost due to work
related injuries (2021: has not recorded any work-related death
accident, nor working days lost due to work related injuries).

The Group has implemented the safe production responsibility at
each level, carried out hazard identification and risk assessment, and
strengthened hazardous operation management during the operating
management process. Safety inspection is conducted regularly to
eliminate hidden safety hazard at the production site and prevent
the occurrence of accidents. During the project construction process,
the Group is committed to fulfilling the safety responsibilities of the
owner, and has formulated a series of safety measures and policies
to enhance safety monitoring in order to ensure construction safety
and provide its staff with a safe working environment. The Group
has also obtained the OHSAS18001 International Management System
Certificate and further strengthened the operation and management
of the occupational health and safety management system.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A &l Annual Report 2022 4 [& i &

B2.

BREHZZ
AEBEREBRAAGEEZEEER
E ALKELEELEBRETSE
ERBERREALE2ER - A&E
EEEThAEREZETHER
ERRERESECABEEEES
B LEG  BEERRR
RE AR EARLMELZ 2
EEE) - (REARLFE R
APRE) ~ (RFEARELMEE
FE) (PEARALFMBFER
BLE2FR) (BEIEBEL2ER
®wH) (ERIEERLZE2ERE
BOADREMBERABR 2 EZERK
BEl-BE=F(BE_FT=_=
F) AEBYERRTAERE
EisRERYENEEREREZ M
BOEAESEERENZEXR
BRET NESSEMNAEIE
BEMEBHFLTHEINEMG - 3k
AIEmEBAZITEBE(ZE
T—F: EHEBEIERTEN
FETHEBLAZIIERED) -

AEBATELERRERERE
REXRHEERE FARERE
BB E - MARBRIEXEE
B THREEZXE2RE  HRAE
ERSEHZ2REE MHEexs
EESMMNEE - THBEER
BER  AXEEREEREXEH
MEZEHE  WEHTE —RI%E
2REMBAEEK  MBLX2EE -
BWRELLZE  AETRMH—@
ZE2MIERE - AEEMEE
OHSAS18001 #J Bl B & 12 §8 R R
B E—SRILBERELZEE
BEANEENER -



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

The Group has implemented the following measures to create and
maintain a safe working environment for employees:

o Set up a safety management organisation in accordance with
regulations;

o Hire registered safety engineers;

o Appoint safety management personnel;

. Formulate safety, quality and environmental management

policies and targets;
o Establish a safety management system and system;

o Compile and publish a comprehensive emergency response
and rescue plan for production safety accidents and a special
emergency response plan for safety accidents; and

o Establish a safety production committee and hold regular
meetings to study, deploy and solve problems in the production
safety management process.

PREVENTIVE AND CONTROL MEASURES OF PANDEMIC
Since the outbreak of Pandemic, the Group has conscientiously
implemented the deployment of Pandemic prevention and control
by superior government departments and the Group, established a
leading group for Pandemic prevention and control, and formulated
and issued the implementation plan for Pandemic prevention and
control and the emergency rescue plan for Pandemic prevention and
control. The Group has incorporated the emergency management of
outbreak prevention and control into the construction of emergency
management system, established and improved emergency systems
and plans such as “Emergency Response Plan Management System”
((REEMHEZBREEGIE) ), "Emergency Rescue Plan for
COVID-19" ( TﬁﬁiAJﬂif%ﬂUEﬁ ) ), and “Emergency Plan
for Medical Waste Disposal during Major Pandemic” ( {EARZI5HR
BEEEVREERSAR) ).

IR g -

/\-h— \A
Zi JS&=Y #& =
AEECEBTUATEE  BK
REEBEERBERZE2TIHIR
iE

s BMHREMIZLZEZEIEME

o BEBEFGEMZRETIZA

e (EmEE2EHRASR:

s HERE HE REER
FEMERF
e BULTEEBRHEMEZR:

s REIBMLEELRZFNF
ARERMEGARENR S
EWEHEBERER K

s RURZEEZESUEM
BREGH  #t - BEMER
REEZ2EBBIERFE
B o

RIER 2
REBREUR  AEEREER
EE LRI AR A R AN S B A
REDEIIERE R RED
Wlﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ'ﬂE&T%E
BRI E 77 R R =
MERR -AEECDBRERBE
DZEESEEMARSERRR
E%*Eihﬁﬁ%%#ﬁéﬁ
REBRHE) GhEMARE
%M%ﬁxﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁg
BREVEERSER)SEESHE
SSEE

Annual Report 2022 4 Z %% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z 7k % & AR5 A R A 7 289



Environmental, Social & Governance Report
R g NER®RS

Due to the obvious rebound of the global Pandemic, the local AE2REIERERE  BHNE
aggregated Pandemic caused by overseas import has successively AS|ENARLIEEMZRE K&
affected many provinces. In order to further implement the Pandemic BEZEEH  ”BTE—SMHT
prevention and control work, the Group held three special meetings BIEHEIE R-ZT -
on Pandemic prevention and control in 2022. The special meeting AEBABHE-ZANEBHEREE
on Pandemic prevention and control was held in the form of on-site g o RIBEHIEERGURSMNE
and video. Members of the Group's leading group, main heads of AR EIT REBEEEHR K
various departments, and main heads of major regions and wholly- B BHMEEEBEA UERE
owned subsidiaries also participated. The meeting informed the AE  2EFRAETEMNEBEA
Pandemic situation at home and abroad and the Pandemic prevention MBS HE - @7 BERMEINY
and control of the Group. The meeting mainly covered the Pandemic REBRAEAEENRIBHIERB
situation at home and abroad and the Pandemic prevention and e @HFETBERETHAFEI
control situation of the Group, analysed the current situation and WEEBRRAEENE BT
challenges of Pandemic prevention and control of the Group, and the B D MEMAEBEZBHIE
requirements of Pandemic prevention and control of the Group. The R AMEE - UREKER
requirements of the Group’s Pandemic prevention and control include BIEMEIENESR - KEER
but are not limited to: BEHEIENERBERTR
NI
. Improve the awareness of prevention and control and e ReEWEEH - EFEEAN
implement individual prevention and control; P
. Strictly control gathering meetings, training and other activities; o EBIERIBEMMNEE B
ANEEE
. Accelerate the vaccination work; and e  MREHEEEEEIE:
X
. Strengthen emergency response. Strictly abide by the relevant e  WILEREEBETIE - BiKE
requirements of Pandemic prevention and control, and actively TFTRIGHIERBER - BE
cooperate with the implementation of normalised prevention A EEBRELHIZEEGE -

and control measures.

SAFETY PRODUCTION AND QUALITY TRAINING EREEREEE

The Group actively carries out safety trainings and education for the AREEEGBHEE I Z2E
staff, regularly enhance the professional skill and safety awareness HE THRESE INEBKEE
of the staff. The Group also distributes labour insurance supplies on MEREH WKBRAEBLR
time in accordance with the labour insurance supplies management mEEHE  REERSERE
system and organises regular health checks every year for its staff in M BETHAMBE TETRE
order to prevent them from being exposed to occupational harm and B o HEETHEHT IIERBE
occupational diseases. FRIBEHSERBERMNE

A o
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The Group has also formulated a series of emergency plans to deal AEBNAEMNRESHEMHT
with emergencies, such as the “Comprehensive Emergency Plan for —RIESER  PIIKEERS
Production Safety Accidents” and the “Emergency Plan for Sudden EWEEAEESTER) RCEEMIR
Environmental Incidents”, etc., and requires to organise no less than BEEHESER)E  TERKEF
one flood prevention drill training activity every year; the fire and BT LR —IREB LR B F
earthquake prevention equipment and facilities shall be inspected at ARG FHH A ERESE
least once a year to ensure that they are all in good condition. We DEITRRE  AERRE
strive to improve the ability of employees to deal with emergencies BHEEETIH  BRBRAEER
through emergency drills for production safety accidents. SEWEZER R BIHE

BENHEEREN -

Case study: “Safe Production Month” Emergency Drill Activity
BRAR [REEEA IBSEHRETDH

In June 2022, the Group launched a series of safety production month activities with the theme of “complying

with the safety production law and being the first responsible person”, advocating for the various safety production
responsibilities of the main responsible persons of the enterprise, improving the safety awareness of all employees,
eliminating various safety hazards, and continuously consolidating the foundation of safety management.
FEER_Z__FRARRN [BIFL24EEE EHE—FEA] REIENRIZE2EEREDY  BERETZATA
WBEZEEERES RE2EZE2EH  HRSRZERE  THHFEL2EEER -

Zhengxiao Environmental Protection also organised emergency drills for sudden Pandemic events, firefighting, and
emergency evacuation in June. This exercise has established two exercise projects based on the risk characteristics of
Zhengxiao Environmental Protection business, namely fire extinguishing and emergency evacuation, and emergency
response to sudden Pandemic events. Fire extinguishing and emergency evacuation drills include three projects:
personnel emergency evacuation, rescue of trapped personnel, and fire extinguishing drills.

EBERRTNNAEBHEREEBFEHMRANRESREESBRES - ZBMRIRER EBIRRER R AT R 7B AR

A - RERBEHRZEEMERRAR - MANERBAVRREIEABESHE - BRIEE A 8 R ARR={EEA
=)

On 20 June, Yunnan Water, in collaboration with the property management company, held emergency evacuation
and fire drill activities in the headquarters office park. The exercise subjects include emergency evacuation, casualty
rescue, and fire extinguishing exercises. During the drill, the plan was initiated quickly and timely, the organisation and
command were scientific and orderly, the department coordination and cooperation were in place, and the participants
were in good order, demonstrating good emergency response capabilities from the occurrence of accidents to the
elimination of safety hazards.

NAZTH  ERKBHBEWERRNERBHARREBRESRBSOENERES - ZERE B BRERSGMA - BERI
BARRE=ZIANR - ERPE - BHRZARRE - EBEENEEF - BPIBHAES I - 2RAEBRTFHA - B
BAEIERZZRBE  RRTRUNESEEREN -

On 27 June, Yunnan Water Yuxi Kelin Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yuxi Kelin”) has carried
out emergency drills for fire and explosion accidents. During the event, the emergency command centre immediately
activated the “Emergency Plan for Fire and Explosion Accidents” upon receiving the alarm, and organised various
emergency rescue teams to rush to the accident site to carry out accident rescue and disposal. During the drill, each
emergency team closely cooperated and successfully completed the subjects of emergency evacuation, initial fire
suppression, first aid for the injured, and medical treatment.

RARZ+ER  EEKBEETRMBREBMEEGRELR ( T[RRI ) ARTANREEHESRZREE <« JEET @ B
SAREMEEIRER AR (AKBEEHESER) - ARSESNER NMARIIENIIS - WREGIEEE < &R
M BESNETYIRS - BT T ESEE - RS - BESREBRUAERE -
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Case study: Conducting a Safety Management Experience Exchange Meeting in the East China Region
BRARE  EXRAEHRZZEELRIAS

In order to further implement the main responsibility of enterprise safety production, the East China Region of the

Group organised a safety management experience exchange activity during the Safety Production Month in June
2022, selecting one excellent unit for hazardous waste, wastewater, and tap water to share their experience. At the
exchange meeting, participants had extensive exchanges and discussions on regional safety management work. Taian
Tengyue, Yeli Yunshui, and Huize Water (Qingzhou) companies exchanged and reported on the construction of dual
systems, maintenance and hazardous operation management, safety file management, and safety education and training
respectively, providing successful experience for improving the safety management level of each project company. At
the meeting, it was required that all project companies fully recognise their shortcomings, identify gaps, and learn from
each other’s strengths and weaknesses. The main responsible persons should further improve their political stance,
effectively fulfil the seven safety production responsibilities of the main responsible persons, deepen the construction
of the safety responsibility system, strictly implement the principle of “safety must be taken into account in production
management, safety must be taken into account in operational management, and safety must be taken into account in
business management”, establish and improve a list of safety responsibilities for all employees in accordance with the
requirements of “Party and government share responsibilities, dual responsibilities for one position, and accountability
for dereliction of duty”, to ensure that safety responsibilities are fully implemented. The safety management department
of the East China Region hosted an experience exchange meeting, with full-time and part-time safety officers from
various functional departments attending the meeting on site. The general managers, deputy general managers in
charge of safety, safety department managers, and full-time and part-time safety officers of various project companies
participated in the experience exchange through DingTalk videos.
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B3. Development and Training B3. R EEI

The Group attaches great importance to the establishment of its NEFTE ¥R D IEEY
internal management training and development system. Through HIEEZMEYT  EEARE
diversified training modes such as induction training, management Y B ASEY - RMTASE
training, technical training and pre-job training, we meet the different YIFEATEINE S TR
needs of employees at all levels and types and to improve their R ERSREREETITHNIARE
skills so that they can continue to provide high-quality services and Sk CEAB IR FETEN
assist the Group in its sustainable development, meanwhile assisting sEm M e EENIRE BB A
employees in their personal growth and development. EERTASEERE RS
BTEAKRKRER -

292 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A &l Annual Report 2022 4 [& i &



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

In 2022, the Group has approximately 58.72%° (2021: approximately
77.92%) of the trained employees within the reporting scope of
this Report, and each employee completed approximately 11.59
hours” (2021: approximately 104.41 hours) of training on average.
The decrease in training hours was due to the reduction in training
activities organised by the Group due to Pandemic prevention reasons.
The percentage of employees trained®, and the average training hours
completed per employee® by gender and employee category are as
follows:

IRIE -

Zi &Hr \A%ﬁ& =

M-E- —F KREBRKR
EHREHBENZIEETS LS
4 B58T2%(Z B = —F : #
77.92%) * Bl fE B FH X
B A5 NE (DB —F
#9104.41/ R ) B 3F 3| o 35 8| 5 250
> T R A & A B R AR
LEBEIES - RER RIEES
ERBEASHNZIIEE M U
kEEREEB TR T
SN

Distribution of trained employees by gender

BERIE D XI5

31.76%
29.46%

As at
31 December

As at 2021

31 December 2022
HE-ZT-—F
+=ZA=+—H

MW Male m Female
e g

68.24%

70.54%

Distribution of trained employees by employee category

BESERIE D Z 2 M

3.53%

0.18% —m8
0.17% \/— 3.59%
As at
1D

As at = ZeggTber
31 December 2022 B —

BE_T-—F T
— +=-—A=+—H

+-A=+—~H

96.24%?

96.29%

B Senior management = Middle management
=REIRE hREEE

General staff
—fRET
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2022 2021
Average training hours’ F 15 Z 3| B B =2 —E_—F
By gender ﬁiﬁmﬂ/}}
Male B 11.66 92.23
Female ZiE 11.45 129.26
By employee category REEEHE D
Senior management BREEE 52.86 47.22
Middle management FRERE 37.45 35.82
General staff —RET 10.84 106.47
Notes: T
5. Percentage of trained employees = X/Y * 100% 5. ZilfEE A D = XY * 100%
X = Total number of trained employees for the year X=FRAZIEEBLAL
Y = Total number of employees for the year Y=FRNEBBAK
6. Distribution of trained employees in the category = X/Y * 100% 6. ZHEANZINEEDH = XY *
100%
X = Number of trained employees in the category for the year X=FRNZBEHNZIEE A
Y = Total number of trained employees for the year Y=FAZIEEBAE
7. Average training hours in the category = X/Y * 100% 7. ZREBFHENEE = Xy o+
100%

X = Number of training hours for employees in the category for the year
Y = Number of employees in the category at the end of the year

TRAINING MANAGEMENT

To help new staff to get involved as soon as possible, the Group
provides induction training programs for new staff to introduce
the corporate culture and various internal rules and regulations of
the Group. The Group’s staff receives different types of training
according to their roles and responsibilities. In 2022, the financial
centre conducted financial business training on financial systems and
policies and tax policies, etc.. The safety management department is
responsible for conducting safety education and training. The business
planning department conducted specialised training on the three-year
action work of state-owned enterprise reform. The internal control
department carried out training including risk management and
internal control evaluation.
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The Group provides its staff with comprehensive training programs
according to the characteristics of different positions in order to help
employees grow rapidly and realise individual value and to contribute
to the growth and development of the Group. The Group provides
professional safety technical training for personnel in special jobs
such as boilers, pressure vessels, elevators, electrical, lifting, welding
equipment, vehicle driving, inflammable and explosive. Employees
need to pass the examination of relevant departments and obtain a
qualified operation certificate (“License”) before they can be allowed
to operate independently within the specified validity period. In
addition, for the on-duty personnel of special types of jobs, they must
receive regular safety education to ensure work safety.

Labour Standards

PREVENTING CHILD AND FORCED LABOUR

The Group has complied with all laws and regulations related to
the prevention of child labour or forced labour, including but not
limited to the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour in the PRC”. In 2022, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with child and forced
labour-related laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group.

The Group has formulated relevant policies to strictly prohibit any
child labour and forced labour. The Group clearly stipulates that
only employees who have reached the legal age are hired, and
new employees are required to provide true and accurate personal
information when entering employment. In addition, the Group also
conducts background checks based on the information provided
by the employees, and does not employ those who are found to
have falsified information. If any of these are found to be illegal,
we will also report them to the regulatory authority to prevent
similar problems from arising. The Group also conducts regular
audits and inspections to prevent any child labour and forced labour
in its operations. In addition, employees of the Group only work
overtime voluntarily when necessary. The Group will never condone
any negative behaviours such as verbal abuse, corporal punishment,
physical abuse, oppression and sexual harassment of its employees for

any reason.
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B5.

Supply Chain Management

FAIR AND OPEN PROCUREMENT

In accordance with the provisions of the “Tendering and Bidding
Law of the PRC"” and other relevant national laws and regulations,
the Group selects qualified suppliers through public bidding on the
public resource trading platform where the project is located. The
Group has formulated the “Administrative Measures for Bidding and
Procurement”, with dedicated personnel responsible for procurement
related matters, to regulate bidding and procurement activities and
improve the efficiency of fund use, and to safeguard the interests of

the Group at the same time.

In accordance with the principles of unified management, legality
and comprehensive selection of the best, the Group conducts bidding
activities for all construction projects and procurement activities for
goods, projects and services. All personnel involved in bidding and

procurement management shall abide by the following regulations:

o Strictly implement the relevant laws and regulations of the state
and Yunnan Province on tendering and bidding management,
and adhere to the principle of “openness, fairness, justice,

honesty and credibility”;

o Strictly abide by procedures, act in accordance with regulations,
manage in accordance with the laws, and be honest and self-
disciplined;

o Comply with bidding and bid evaluation disciplines, and shall
not disclose any bidding information and materials that should
be kept confidential during the bidding and bid evaluation
process; and

o Strictly forbidden to split project and circumvent the Company’s

bidding and procurement regulations.

Any violation of tendering and bidding laws and regulations and non-
compliance with bidding discipline shall be investigated, verified and
dealt with by the discipline inspection department of the Group. For
those that have not reached the bidding amount specified in the
Tendering and Bidding Law, the Group selects qualified suppliers by
bid invitation, competitive comparison or bid negotiation according to
the specific circumstances.
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The number of suppliers of the Group by region is as follows:

Environmental, Social & Governance Report
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AEEZREOKERHE W

T

Unit 2022 2021

B ZEZCF —E-—F
The PRC Number 10 10
a3 {i&
Total number of suppliers Number 10 10
HEMAY 1&
PROCUREMENT AND BIDDING PROCESS HEREERE

After the project has met the bidding conditions and has been
approved by the Company’s management, the Group will organise
a unified bidding or comparative procurement for the project in
accordance with the bidding process stipulated in the Administrative
Measures for Bidding and Procurement and the Process for
Competitive Comparison Procurement of the Group. All of the major

EHREBECAGBRRGHLAEER
EEEELRER  AEEBZEAR
SE(ER WBEEERZTH
BRER BT ERBERE
RZERBETR -HESRRERL
ERB -MATIEHRERIRE

suppliers were evaluated and engaged through the procurement and il iR R EE SRR E TR
bidding process mentioned above. BB o

The following table sets out the simplified “Bidding Flowchart of

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited”: MERARBERIEE) :

Draw up bidding o
plan

BRERBAR

The bidding and procurement department is responsible for providing various approval
documents required for bidding filing;

The bidding and procurement department compares and selects, entrusts a bidding agency
and a cost consulting company, and the project department assists in reviewing the blocked
bid price; and

The bidding agency prepares bidding documents, the bidding and procurement department

and the contract cost department review business documents, and the project management
centre and the technical risk control centre review technical documents.

AERBHAEREBRERMSSHEL

HRERBHLE ZRBEREQFAREERARAF HEN BB UBEEELETER
&

BEREARGHEBEX - BEREY AREESELZAH XM - BHEEEFTL
Bl A AR L B AR S
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Establish a pre-qualification assessment team to review the pre-qualification documents
under the supervision of the bidding supervision leading team;

The assessment team issues a pre-qualification report; and

Issue a notice of pre-qualification results.

R ERAENENE BEREBRXMHETHIE HEEERENEHETEE

FENMEHAERAERSE K

BHERARERBA -

Form a bid evaluation committee to review the tendering documents under the supervision
of the bidding supervision leading team;

The bid evaluation team issues a bid evaluation report; and

Determine the bid winning results.

MRFEZAY  WREXETHE REEEAE METEE

ARNEHAFERS R

BEPRE

The bidding and procurement department, the project management centre and relevant
departments clarify the key points of contract execution; and

The bidding and procurement department assists the project manager of the project
department to establish a working relationship with the contractor.

RRREH BRERRORARBFILHARARTERRTRE &

PERES R EE N EHEEERADH R TERE -

R ﬁ:“;&‘k\A¥E:
Bidding .
BE :
Bid winning :
End of bidding :
BE&ER :
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The following table sets out the simplified “Flowchart for Competitive
Comparison Procurement of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited”:

Compare suppliers

EEE

Quotation and

evaluation

g

BERTE

Contract

confirmation

Environmental, Social & Governance Report
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TRAEBIERO(ERKERER
MARARFEFELERBRE
&) :

The bidding and procurement department issues competitive comparison and selection
invitation documents to more than 3 suppliers based on the content of the task handover
form. Among them, the business conditions are drawn up by the bidding and procurement
department and the purchasing application department, and the technical requirements are
drawn up by the technology and risk control centre or related departments; and

The list of suppliers to be invited shall be jointly determined by the relevant departments
organised by the bidding and procurement department, reported to the leaders in charge
and the general manager for approval and implementation, and submitted to the bidding

supervision leading team for review.

HEERBSIEREEEREATOIRN LHEFH L BRFELEES XM - Ed
R TS (6 1 e S0 IR BR S AR B ER R FR RS AP PI B TE - R B SRk ey R B AL 2 rp 0 S AR B AR PS
BE R

REF2MOHERLEMBERBLALEENIIHARTE RO ERERELE
HEER BESEERE/NEES -

After all quotations are collected, the bidding and procurement department will organise
the application department and relevant cooperation departments to jointly open and
review the bids under the supervision of the bidding supervision leading team;

Adjust the quotation requirements, ask all parties to make the second quotation on the
same level; and

The bidding and procurement department organises the application department and
relevant cooperation departments to jointly review the second quotation based on the same
technical level, and select the top three.

BERXMEERR  ABERBOES  PEBPIREHREALPAIARFER 75 A
BEERG/NEEE

ABRREER BEAER—KFRLET RBRE R

ER— ROk - RS - BB AR BRI ARE KBRS
#E FHI=4

The bidding and procurement department is responsible for organising contract

negotiations, with the participation of the application department and the assistance of the
relevant cooperating departments.

AERBHAEAGARKA  HHEHM2HE - HERSAFIHE -
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Contract ° The bidding and procurement department and the contract execution departments clarify
performance the key points of contract execution;
o The bidding and procurement department assists the project leaders of the contract
execution departments to establish working contacts with the supplier;
° The bidding and procurement department tracks and urges suppliers to supply on time and
quality;
o If goods return or exchange needed, the bidding and procurement department will assist in
contacting the supplier to return or exchange the goods; and
° The bidding and procurement department conducts after-sales evaluation of the supplier
based on the feedback from the contract execution.
AR o BEREDERSANTHFEERARTERETIE

AERBS BB ERNTHFIEREAEALHEREL TIERE
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MANAGE ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RISKS OF THE SUPPLY
CHAIN

The Group attaches great importance to the management level of
suppliers in terms of sustainable development. In order to better
identify and control the environmental and social risks of the supply
chain and maintain the stability of the supply chain, the Group has
formulated strict procurement management methods. In selecting
suppliers, the Group will give priority to suppliers with good
environmental and social performance as its business partners. At the
same time, the Group will communicate the Group’s expectations
on material quality and safety as well as service to suppliers so as
to ensure a steady and continuous supply of high-quality materials
and services. In addition, the Group will conduct annual supplier
assessment, which will include suppliers’ performance in environmental
and social aspects, qualification level, quality of goods or services
provided, service adaptability and capability, and quotation. Supplier
assessment will be scored by the relevant departments receiving the
service, if the score is poor, it will be eliminated from the supplier list.
The Group also closely monitors the business practices of suppliers
and subcontractors through on-site inspections. Any irregularities
found during site inspection will be reported to management
immediately.
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GREEN SUPPLY CHAIN

The Group is committed to integrating sustainability into its
procurement practices to minimise its impact on the environment, and
shares this philosophy with its business partners and suppliers. The
Group is expected to improve its suppliers’ environmental protection
awareness, and promote the good environmental performance and
governance measures among its business partners and suppliers. In
addition, at the supplier meetings, the Group encourages suppliers to
consider the risks posed by climate change to their operations and
actively mitigate its environmental impacts.

Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to product and service quality
and corporate reputation. The Group actively ensures product quality
through internal control and is committed to providing services
that meet industry standards. The Group strictly complies with the
relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to the “Law
of the PRC on Protecting Consumers’ Rights and Interests” and the
“Advertising Law of the PRC”. In 2022, the Group was not aware of
any violations of applicable national laws and regulations related to
product responsibility that had a significant impact on the Group, nor
did it receive any cases of products sold or shipped requiring recycling
due to safety and health reasons, nor did it receive any complaints

about products and services (2021: no recycling, no complaints).

PRODUCT QUALITY

The Group has the necessary technology and industry experience to
maintain quality in various stages of environmental protection project
design, investment, construction, operation, etc. For instance, the
Group adopts advanced online monitoring systems to continuously
monitor the quality of the treated wastewater and supplied water
during the operating process of the wastewater treatment and
water supply facilities. Specifically, the monitoring data of the online
monitoring system for wastewater treatment will be transmitted to
the government platform for pollution sources of the authority in
a real-time way for 24-hour monitoring. The Group adheres to the
policy of “quality first, prevention first”, and continuously improves
process control in accordance with the cyclical work method of

“planning, execution, inspection, and processing”.
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Besides, the Group has obtained international management system
certificates such as 1SO9001, 1SO14001 and OHSAS18001, strictly
abides by the above standards during the process of production and
assembly, and enhances the operation of the systems on quality,
environment, occupational health & safety in order to ensure the
quality of the membrane products manufactured by the Group.

The Group carries out major businesses by strictly implementing and
complying with the relevant national or industrial standards. With
regard to the wastewater treatment business of the Group, the
Group is committed to ensuring that the treated wastewater meets
the requirement of “Discharge Standard for Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB-18918-2002)" or “Environmental
Quiality Standard V for Surface Water” or local standards, and that
wastewater discharge outlets are built in strict compliance with the
requirements of the environmental impact assessment report approved
by the government for designated discharge.

With regard to the water supply business of the Group, the Group
attaches great importance to water quality control from the water
source to users since the quality of the water supplied directly affects
public health. Water supplied by the Group meets a number of
national standards, including but not limited to “Hygienic Standard
for Drinking Water (GB-5749-2006)", “Standard for Quality of Urban
Water Supply (CJ/T-206-2005)", “Technical Regulations on Operation,
Maintenance and Safety of Urban Water Supply Plant (CJJ-58-2009)",
“Technical Regulations on Operation, Maintenance and Safety of
Urban Water Supply Pipeline Network (CJJ-207-2013)" and “Urban
Water Supply Services (GB/T32063-2015)" in order to ensure reliable
and safe water supply. The Group has established strict quality
management systems, tests and inspects against various indexes on
production and operation and conducts real-time monitoring on the
water quality to ensure that the water quality meets the relevant
standards.
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With regard to the solid waste treatment business, the services
provided by the Group are governed by “Pollution Control Standard
for Domestic Waste Landfill (GB-16889-2008)", “Pollution Control
Standard for Municipal Waste Incineration (GB 18485-2014)",
“Technical Requirements on Medical Waste Incinerator (GB-19218-
2003)" and “Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste
Incineration (GB-18484-2001)". The Group has set up internal control
systems and set discharge limits for incineration plants according to
strict operation conditions and technical requirements in order to
minimise the impact of waste incineration to the environment and to
the public.

PROTECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

In 2022, the Group continued to devote substantial resources in
research and development capabilities. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group has a total of 171 registered patents in the PRC related to
wastewater treatment, water supply, sludge treatment, membrane
manufacturing and application, and municipal waste treatment. The
Group respects the intellectual property rights of third parties, and
is also committed to protecting its own intellectual property rights
from infringement. In the future, the Group will closely monitor
infringements in the market and crack down on any infringements
such as counterfeit trademarks.

ADVERTISING AND LABELING

As a company providing environmental protection services, the
operation of the Group does not involve major matters related
to advertising and labeling. Nevertheless, the Group is committed
to ensuring that the labels of its products conform to the actual
product conditions. The Group strictly abides by the “Advertising
Law of the PRC” and other relevant advertising and marketing
laws and regulations, formulates and implements relevant systems
for monitoring advertising and marketing, strictly reviews publicly
released promotional materials and sales commitments, and prevents
promotional content from being inaccurate or misleading, so as to
protect the consumers’ rights from being infringed.
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The Group requires all external image display, event promotion,
marketing promotion and other publicity content of its units, agencies
and subordinate projects be produced and published after the
approval of the leader in charge, to avoid any form of false publicity,
and to ensure that the content of the publicity true and accurate.

CUSTOMER PRIVACY PROTECTION

Due to the nature of our business, the Group requires access to a
large amount of customer personal or corporate information. The
Group attaches great importance to protecting customer rights
and privacy, strives to comply with high security and confidentiality
standards, maintains and protects personal data privacy, and strictly
adheres to regulatory regulations related to data privacy. In addition
to formulating relevant policies and guidelines, we also hold regular
training to ensure that employees handle customer personal data
with caution, thereby enhancing their awareness of the importance of
protecting customer privacy.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

The Group attaches great importance to customers’ opinions, and
establishes multiple communication channels to investigate customer
satisfaction, including written questionnaires, customer forums, return
visits and telephone inquiries, etc. The Group conducts investigation
and analysis of customer satisfaction and takes the results therefrom
as the basis for evaluating the performance and improvement of the
quality management system. If the Group receives complaints from
customers, it will handle them with care and all material complaints
will be kept in writing. The relevant responsible departments of the
Group will also analyse and investigate the contents of the complaint
and formulate a resolution opinion, and finally, they will give
feedback to the complainants and follow up the satisfaction of the
complainants for the resolution opinion.
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Anti-corruption

PREVENTING CORRUPTION AND FRAUD

The Group has established a disciplinary committee and a disciplinary
inspection and supervision office dedicated for preventing bribery,
extortion and fraud prevention as well as relevant investigations and
handling. The Group has established a corruption risk prevention
and control system, developed corruption risk prevention and control
measures, so as to implement dynamic management of corruption
risk prevention and control. In addition, the Group has established
whistleblowing channels via telephone and e-mail to accept reports
relating to the violation of laws and the code of conduct. The Group
also attaches importance to corruption risk education, organises
corruption risk training, holds special lectures on corruption prevention
and enhances the anti-corruption awareness of the staff.

The management and all employees of the Group strictly abide
by the Group’s code of ethics and conduct and relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the “Tendering and Bidding
Law of the PRC” and the “Interim Provisions on the Prohibition of
Commercial Bribery”. In 2022, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with any laws and regulations in relation
to the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
that would have a significant impact on the Group. There were no
concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issue or its employees (2021: no concluded legal cases regarding

corrupt practices).

The Group provides anti-corruption training to its directors and
employees at least once a year. In 2022, the Group’s Directors and
employees accepted approximately 2 hours and 24 hours of anti-
corruption training respectively (2021: approximately 2 hours and
approximately 20 hours respectively), of which contents include
but not limited to how Directors undertake and practice their anti-
corruption responsibilities, ESG report disclosure requirements on anti-
corruption, relevant requirements and regulations on anti-corruption
required by the laws of the PRC, and the instance of corruption
committed by the public officials of listed company. Through the
training, Directors and employees at different ranks are better
informed of their respective roles and responsibilities in anti-corruption
and business ethics, as well as the points to note in business
compliance.
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Case Study: 2022 Discipline Inspection Cadre Training
BRME : —B-—FLREBIIFI

In order to further study and implement the relevant spirit of the report of the 20th National Congress of the Communist
Party of the PRC, and further improve the political and theoretical literacy and professional ability of discipline inspection
cadres, the Group’s Commission for Discipline Inspection held a three-day training course for discipline inspection cadres
in 2022. A total of 190 people participated in on-site training by topic, and 144 non-Kunming personnel, such as leading
group members of major regions and provincial regions, participated in the training by video. The content of this training
closely follows the spirit of the report of the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of the PRC and the practical
work of disciplinary inspection. It provides guidance on six themes, including interpreting the report on the construction of
party conduct and anti-corruption work at the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of the PRC, the connection
between discipline and law and the prevention of duty crimes, analysis of key and difficult points in state-owned enterprise
supervision, evidence collection and application, procedures and precautions for handling petitions, and interpretation
of key points in drafting disciplinary inspection and supervision documents. This training focuses on forging a loyal and
steadfast, responsible, law-abiding, and honest disciplinary inspection army, and sets sail for the high-quality development
of the Group’s disciplinary inspection work.

RANEBBEREN__TAREHERER E-—FPRALRBIBNBLAEREBNERE N AEELEZN_ZT
ZTZERBABRNERBEIFIIN AT 100ASEEL2MBESEN  EREREREHBRERFHNESIHE
ERAABIMARBEL2I - ARRBIARNETENEN T RABEBENMERIIEER BREN-_TAREARERR
BESMRBRITERE LEEENERBRELE BECEEEERHERIN FBROKREEER  BEHHE
EREMIEFE LREZXXEEEIFEURESOHEEBRETHSE - WIHIIEHBREBHET  KHERE &
L BERZNLERHEE  AZIREAASELRIESEELRTBEEE HEM -

Case Study: Organise and hold a warning education conference on promoting reform through case studies

BRME : ABERURERETREBEAS

On 26 January 2022, in order to effectively implement the main responsibility of the Party Committee in building a clean
and honest government, and strengthen the education of clean and honest leadership cadres, the Group organised a
warning education conference. The meeting pointed out that all cadres and employees of the Group should take the
case as a reference, integrating the rectification of conduct, discipline and anti-corruption, deepening reform, improving
systems, promoting governance, and promoting the development of the Group, effectively serving and ensuring the overall
development of the Group. The meeting was held in a “live+video” format, with all personnel from the headquarters of
the Group and 170 middle-level and above management personnel from the Kunming secondary company attending the
meeting on-site; 605 middle-level and above management personnel from various regions, leaders of party organisations at
all levels, full-time and part-time disciplinary inspection staff, and project company leaders attended the meeting via video.
ZEZF-RZTARB RENENEEEZERREERTIBEMT MREERMBRIAE  AEEEZAH
NRERETHEAG - SHEL A5EL2ERMBETIEUNRAE LIAFRLRBEEREHE TEHE R
HRE HPAEEEREBER FNEAREBREREEERARD - FHUIRIGRBIFTXEBT  REEX
%%%AE'm%:mAﬂ¢%MiaEAETmAﬁ%%MM%:%ﬁ@@%&MLEEAE'%@QQMEE
CHFBALARIEAER BHEHEAGABAGBABRER2MEE -
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Community Investment BS. #HERE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY PEHEEMN
The Group has a strong sense of social responsibility. As an active REBR—FXEERIHTEEFTFE
advocator for building a learning-oriented enterprise, the Group BEDE - FARAlEETRDE
regards cooperation with universities as a far-reaching public welfare WEREEE  AEFHERIK
undertaking. The Group has formulated relevant policies to makes HNEEERSAE—BEBALER
contributions in implementing the strategy of developing the country MAREE KAEBECH THE
through science and education and reinvigorating the country through B EREBEMEACES
talents development as well as building a harmonious society while BERE B8 EE BRI HER
actively establishing and enhancing the reputation of the Group. MATEBBRE (REMBHLE
ERETAMEASEEENER
& o
As an environmental enterprise, the Group particularly focuses EA—BRELE KXEBLH
on environmental protection and education. In 2022, the Group EITNBERENHE KR _Z
has conducted different activities to raise the public awareness on ZZFERN - AEEEBAREE
environmental protection. NIREAREBERENESH -

Case Study: 2022 Energy Conservation Promotion Week
BEME : —S__FHEEEB

The 32" National Energy Conservation Promotion Week is held from 13 to 19 June 2022, with the theme of “Green and

low-carbon, energy-saving first”, which 15 June is the National Low Carbon Day, with the theme of “Implementing the
Double Carbon Action and Jointly Building a Beautiful Home"”. The Group takes the responsibility of urban environmental
comprehensive service providers, bearing in mind the General Secretary’s emphasis on “promoting green low-carbon
technology to achieve major breakthroughs, seizing the deployment of low-carbon cutting-edge technology research,
accelerating the promotion and application of pollution reduction and carbon reduction technologies”, and the overall
layout spirit of ecological civilisation, so as to provide a strong boost for the realisation of the goal of “carbon emission
peak, carbon neutrality”. To this end, we are committed to advocating the concept and knowledge of energy conservation
and emission reduction to the society through WeChat official account and other channels, and creating a green, low-
carbon, civilised and healthy social conduct.

CECCFRATZREETNRARZEENASESEHE  TERIGEEN - HgkiTl AP RATEAREE
BiE  EREFTEREEIEWRITY  HEXBRE| - AEEUBERRGERBENECTEE  FLBERE
ERFAN B FEERRMERERRLE - MEFZEGATE BRI - IR HE E & R IRS iR | E X
PAERMREES RERMBGEE  RPNINEE BHBENNBEER - Bt MR NBEBMELIRRKAR
HiRE MESEEHERNEI RN €ERCERNMXARENT GRS

The combination of “reverence, thankfulness and confidence” has [HEL AL BEL]I=0O
always been the cultural concept advocated by the Group since E—RAEEKIUKR-—EESE
its inception. The spirit of actively undertaking responsibilities, NEEXLES AEBEITRE
dedication and caring heart of the Group’s employees fully reflects mEE RRER  BEEMAD
the centripetal force and cohesion of our corporate culture. Under the B ROBRTASEELEX
guidance of this concept, the Group will continue to strive to perform RO IOMEBEREN - FiE—X
its social responsibility as well as actively hold and participate in social ﬂzﬁ’%\ﬁ’\]?‘a %I "F ’ $‘§ EEp S
charity activities. HEREET BE EERE

- /§517i’\”*‘ BREEH -
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE ESGHE S| R B RS &
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Chapter/Statement
BERESRE BHBH
Governance Structure INTRODUCTION — ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
EIRRE FFE — ESGRIBAM
Reporting Principles REPORTING FRAMEWORK
i ¥ R A HEER
Reporting Boundary REPORTING SCOPE
b ¥ 45 & WEHE

Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

BE- - —REE Description Chapter/Statement
RERERIER ot EH 8BS

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEAT: By

General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and  Emissions

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to waste gas
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, etc.

—RRIEEE EHERIOAZEREHN MR LEES BELEEEEVNEE FRY
(QBEK  MOEBETHETABERTENHEREEZLRROINER -
KPI A1.1 Types of emissions and related emissions data. Emissions — EXHAUST GAS
EMISSIONS
FRERERALL RO EEREEHEREE - R — BE R
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in  Emissions — GHG

tons) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume, EMISSIONS
per facility)

FHREXERA2 HEEEDIEREEZ(BED)REREBHRE CAMGE)R(WERE #HHY —BEEREHN
FEMASEEEMN  SEREFE) -
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BE- - —RIEE Description Chapter/Statement
RERBERIER ot =5, 88
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity  Emissions — HAZARDOUS

A B 1B A RAL3

KPI'A1.4

B A BB IZA 4

KPI'A1.5

A 52 4 AR 1RALS

KPI'A1.6

A 5248 AR 1RAL6

(e.g., per unit of production volume, per facility).

af

FEEEEEEDLEE UMt E) R(NER)ZE(MABESSEM - BB
RiEHHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume, per facility)
FEEREEEYEE UWEAE) R(MER)ZRE(MASES$EN - 814
st E) -

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

WAL HERERRRAED G LB RMERNSHE -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

WRREEAERBEEERMN L REAMIZIHNRERRERAEDE
LB R RENE B -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2 : ERER

General disclosure

— R

Policies for effective use of resources (including energy, water and other raw
materials).

BREAER(EFEER KR EAMEM ) BB

Annual Report 2022 4F & R4 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k BB &M B H R A 7

WASTE (Not applicable —
Explained)

Yy —BEEEEY
(TER —B®mE)
Emissions — NON-
HAZARDOUS WASTE
PR —BEERY

Environmental Targets;
Emissions — GHG
EMISSIONS

RIBAEE  BERY — A=
B BE R
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Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

BE- - —RIEE Description Chapter/Statement
REARBERIER ik B/ 8Y
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g., electricity, gas or oil) Use of Resources —

A 5 1B AR RA2

KPI'A2.2

B8 AR K R RA2.2
KPI A2.3

A 52 48 HE 1RA2.3

KPI' A2.4

FiR B MIERA24

KPI'A2.5

A 52 48 B HE 1RA2.5

310

in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume,
per facility).

REAESMEER, SKEEER(NE - moloh)B2FE (T ET R
BE)RBE(MABESEMN  BHERMAE) °

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume,
per facility).

BRKERTBE(WUSEEBEN BEREAE) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

WAFTE] Y MBEERERAME B R R R ERGELBRMERRHTE -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

SR EGE A AOR LRI BRI R RE - LA R PTAT S8 AR B IR R R iE R
EL BRI LR -

Total amount (in tons) of packaging materials used in the finished products
and, where appropriate, the amount per production unit.

X RAABEMHNEE AME) R(NER)BEEEMLGLE -
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION

BIRER — eREF

Use of Resources — WATER
CONSUMPTION
BIRE R — KRB
Environmental Targets; Use
of Resources — ENERGY
CONSUMPTION

RIFEAE BERER — 8
R FE

Environmental Targets; Use
of Resources — WATER

CONSUMPTION
RIRER ERER —K
;/\5% %%

Use of Resources — USE OF
PACKAGING MATERIALS
(Not applicable —
Explained)
BRER — BEMEER
(TER —BmE)
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key performance
indicator (KPI)
BE- - —REE
REARBRIER

Environmental, Social & Governance Report

IR g -

Description

o

Zi& k\AiFED

Chapter/Statement
BH/ 89

Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources

[E A3 :
General disclosure

—RIEE
KPI A3.1

B 5248 AR 1RA3

BRERRARER

Policies to reduce the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

WEBTABRRERRAERENERTZENBR -

Description of the significant impact of business activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage the impact.

MEGFEBHERERRAERNEAZENCRNEEFHEZENTH -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EEAL : RIZE1L

General disclosure

—RIEE
KPI A4.1

7 B2 48 AR 1RALAN

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REAEERAIEEEUHBETAEEXENERNREHBREEOEER
Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

HREERAIESEBETAELEXENEARRGREBMEE - REHTH -

Aspect B1: Employment

EBmB1: EE

General disclosure

—RIE

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
Bk E BEIEA  TIERF  RE
B R A B B 15 3B SR AB A B ¢ ()RR ¢+ Ke(b)E 57
BERERBOINEHR -

CFE#RE kR
HBETABEATZENE

Environmental and Natural
Resources

RERRABR
Environmental and

Natural Resources —
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
MANAGEMENT
RERRAABR —REY
e

Climate Change
R
Climate Change —
PHYSICAL RISKS,
TRANSITION RISKS,

OPPORTUNITIES
FRE(—ERAR  H
LE R - #8
Employment

(A
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Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

BE- - —RIEE Description Chapter/Statement
RERBERIER # =588
KPIB1.1 Total number of employees by gender, type of employment (i.e., full-time or ~ Employment
part-time), age group and region.
B8 4 A8 A IE 1B 1.1 RS EEEAEN (2B RE)  FRAMNRMEE S WESLE - 1%
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover by gender, age group and region. Employment —
RECRUITMENT,

78 82 48 W5 1EB1.2

RIS FieAN R RE SN ESRKLE -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2: REEZ2

General disclosure

— R E

KPI B2.1

8§ 48 3B 12B2 1
KPI B2.2

78 42 A8 2 3E 1RB2.2
KPI B2.3

FA 4R 1A 38 12R2.3

312

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
EHRRRZE2TIHERERREEEREBELERLEN « @QIEE  kb)&ESF
HETABERZENHEBZEERRONER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year.
BE=ZF(BRERFE)SFRICTHOABRLE -

Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries.
AIGHRAIEBRE -

Description of the occupational health and safety measures adopted, as well as
related implementation and monitoring methods.

WAFMRAOBEREFEAL2EE  ARBHERTRERENE -
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Health and Safety

REEZE

Health and Safety
REEZ 2

Health and Safety —
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BERZE —REEER

g e85l



Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)
BE- - —REE
REARBERIER
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Description

o

Chapter/Statement
BH/ 89

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EmEB3: #EREI

General disclosure

— MR
KPI B3.1

78 52 48 W5 12831
KPI B3.2

2 45 B IR 12B3.2

Policies to improve employees’ knowledge and skills in performing their
duties. Description of the training activities.
EHRAEEBRITIERENNBRRENBRE - flHIED -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.,
senior management, middle management).
ZERNRESEN(NERERE TREBRB)EAI>NIIEEAIIL -
Average number of training hours completed by each employee by gender and
employment category.

ZURIREEREFNE D  BREETHEINNFHEE -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : BT %A

General disclosure

— IR

KPI B4.1

A 5 48 5 RBA1

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child or forced labour.
BRAMIEEZETNEEIETH : (QEE  R(b)ESF
BERERBOIONER -

Description of the measures to review recruitment practices to avoid child

HBETABEAZENN

labour and forced labour.

s BB P EEAREE T RBGHIET -
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Aspect, general

disclosure and

key performance

indicator (KPI)

BE- - —RIEE Description
REARBRIER #ut

Chapter/Statement
BH/ 89

KPI B4.2 Description of the steps taken to eliminate the situation when a violation is
discovered.

BARIEMIEIRBA2 R ERRERBEREEREEBERARRNLE -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
FETEBS5 : HEHEERE

General disclosure Policies to manage the environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
— R E EIRMERENIRE A ERBEBUR o
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by region.

FRARIERBS.] MR ESMMEEEA -

KPI B5.2 Description of the practices for engaging suppliers, the number of suppliers to
whom the practices are implemented, and the implementation and monitoring
methods of the practices.

BSRAMIERBS2 Ml ABMERAHEENEN  AERTEBEONEEREE  UREB
HMITRERFE -

KPI'B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

PARIEMIEIRBS3 WM ABBRHEESERTNBERLERRNEH - URBEATR

BEERITE °

KPI'B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

FASEIEIRB5.4 M EREEHERRRELRRRERRRENEN - N RABBERTRE
BAE -
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Labour Standards —
PREVENTION OF CHILD AND
FORCED LABOUR
BTAA—HIEET kA
#5 T

Supply Chain Management
HEEER

Supply Chain Management
— FAIR AND OPEN
PROCUREMENT
HEEEE — 2T RAR
REE

Supply Chain Management
— PROCUREMENT AND
BIDDING PROCESS
HEHEE —RXBRAE
miz

Supply Chain

Management — MANAGE
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL RISKS OF THE
SUPPLY CHAIN

HEREE — ERHERE
B IR IR RAt g R

Supply Chain Management
— GREEN SUPPLY CHAIN

HEREE —GEHER



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

RE g kERdmE
Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)
BE- - —RIEE Description Chapter/Statement
RERBERIER ot =5, 88
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEB6: EmEE
General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and  Product Responsibility

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress

— R E FHRMRFERNRENERREL Y  EBE SRHEELBEEARBERS
EE @QBE  ROBETFHETABERZENHEBEEZLAOINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of the products sold or delivered that must be recycled for safety

and health reasons.

942 45 2045 12B6..1 EEADERXEMAETRL2EREEAMALKNBE DL

KPI B6.2 Number of complaints received about products and services and the handling
methods

B RIEIRB6.2 BN ESRRBHORFEE U REYFHE -

KPI'B6.3 Description of the practices related to the maintenance and protection of

intellectual property rights.

PARIEMIEIRBE3 g RRENBEEFBOED -

KPI B6.4 Description of the quality assurance process and product recycling procedures.

A 2 48 W 12B6.4 M ESRTEBERERBIKERF °
KPI B6.5 Description of the consumer data protection and privacy policies, and the
related implementation and monitoring methods

PREMEIRBES M EBEEERRBRABERE  URHABEATRERSE -
Aspect B7: Anticorruption

EmEB7: R&ES
General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
from bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
— R E BRI LR PR BREFAREREN  @QBUER  ROBETHETARE
TENMEBEERRONER -

pul

Emaff

Product Responsibility

EXDD 'EE

Product Responsibility —
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION
EnBET —EFPREE
Product Responsibility

— PROTECTION OF
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
EmEE —NBHEERE
Product Responsibility —
PRODUCT QUALITY
EREA—EMEE
Product Responsibility

— CUSTOMER PRIVACY
PROTECTION

EmBEE —EFPALER#

Anti-corruption
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report
IR i/% Zi &kk B #& =

Aspect, general

disclosure and

key performance

indicator (KPI)

BE- - —RIEE Description
REARBRIER #ut

Chapter/Statement
BH/ 89

KPIB7.1 Number of concluded lawsuits regarding corruption brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period and the results of the lawsuits.

B B2 48 W5 1RB7 1 RERANHETASHEERHVERTANE S FARGHEE RFA
R o

KPI B7.2 Description of the preventive measures and reporting procedures, as well as
the related implementation and monitoring methods.

FASRIEMIEIRBT.2  HRBHBEERBREF  UREBRITRERFX -

KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

FEREMIERE73 fHlRnEERETRH#ORESE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEB8: HEBRE

General disclosure Policies related to community participation to understand the needs of the
community in which the issuer operates and to ensure that its business
activities will take into account the interests of the community.

— MR ER FEUHES2ER T REEMTHER ENBREEBEDEEEHLET
I M BUR
KPI'B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (such as education, environmental issues, labour

needs, health, culture, sports).
8 52 48 %5 12881 BIEREB(HE BEZTHE SIEHRK BFE Xt -BE) -

KPI B8.2 Resources (such as money or time) used in the focus field.

BAREMIEIRB82 HEHIHBAMHAER(NSHERER) -
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Anti-corruption —
PREVENTING CORRUPTION
AND FRAUD

RES —BIEET REK

Anti-corruption —
PREVENTING CORRUPTION
AND FRAUD

REF — P IEE)T REE
Anti-corruption —
PREVENTING CORRUPTION
AND FRAUD

RE)G — B IEE S R FFEK

Community Investment

HEREE

Community Investment

— CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

HEEE —CEESEME
Community Investment

— CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

HEKE —rETEEME
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